
ALASKA BOARD OF  

CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS

BOARD PACKET 

Meeting of October 6th, 2016 

Anchorage, Alaska

1



Alaska Board of Chiropractic Examiners 

Board Member Appointed Reappointed Term Expires 

Daniel Holt, Chiropractor 
 

 
 

03/01/2009 03/01/2013 03/01/2017 

Walter Campbell, Chiropractor 
 

 
 

 

03/01/2010 03/01/2014 03/01/2018 

Edward Barrington, Chiropractor 
 

  
 

06/21/2012 03/01/2017 

Jeffrey Reinhardt, Chiropractor 
 

 
 

03/01/2016 03/01/2020 

John Aderhold, Public Member 
 

  
 

03/01/2016 03/01/2020 

2



2017 STATE HOLIDAY CALENDAR
JANUARY
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

APRIL
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

FEBRUARY
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28

MAY
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

MARCH
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

JUNE
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

JULY
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

AUGUST
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

SEPTEMBER
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

OCTOBER
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

NOVEMBER
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

DECEMBER
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

State calendar maintained by the 
Division of Finance,  

Department of Administration  
http://doa.alaska.gov/calendars.html  

Rev. 04/08/2016

Date Holiday
01/01 New Year’s Day

(observed 01/02)

01/16 MLK Jr.’s Birthday

02/20 Presidents’ Day

03/27 Seward’s Day

05/29 Memorial Day

07/04 Independence Day

Date Holiday
09/04 Labor Day

10/18 Alaska Day

11/11 Veterans’ Day
(observed 11/10)

11/23 Thanksgiving Day

12/25 Christmas Day

State Holidays State Holidays
Holiday

Biweekly employees please refer to 
appropriate collective bargaining unit 
agreement for more information regarding 
holidays.

3



Agenda Item #4 

Review/Approve Agenda 

4



ALASKA STATE BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS 
HOTEL CAPTAIN COOK - EASTER ISLAND ROOM 

939 W. 5TH, AVE, ANCHORAGE, ALASKA 

TENTATIVE MEETING AGENDA 
Thursday, October 6th, 2016 

CONFERENCE CALL #: 1-800-315-6338, ACCESS CODE#: 52588 

TIME TOPIC       LEAD PERSON(S) 

1. 8:00 a.m. Written Exam Laura Carrillo, Licensing Examiner 

2. 9:00 a.m. Oral Interview with Board Daniel Holt, Chair 

3. 10:00 a.m. Call to Order/Roll Call Chair 

4. 10:01 a.m. Review/Approve Agenda Chair 

5. 10:05 a.m. Review/Approve Meeting Minutes Chair 

 From 2016: May 20, June 16, September 28
6. 10:10 a.m. Board Business Chair 

 Ethics Reporting

 Ratify New Licenses
o Josephine Ball
o Kyle Bergquist
o Aimee Burgess
o Joshua Fidler
o Luke Waack
o Richard Woolley

 Clarify philosophy as an approved subject/Review CE applications
 Draft regulations (SB69)

7. 11:00 a.m. Division Update/Budget Report Martha Hewlett & Sarah Chambers 

8. 11:45 a.m. Old Business Chair 

 Review Goals & Objectives

 Position statements
o Injectable nutrients (Tabled)
o Advertising of Free Services (Tabled)
o Sexual Harassment (Tabled)
o Valid therapies under manipulation (New)
o Massage Therapists under Chiropractic licenses (Posted)

9. 12:00 p.m. Chair 

10. 12:15 p.m.

11. 1:15 p.m.

12. 2:00 p.m.   Brian Howes, Investigator 

13. 2:10 p.m.

Utilization Review Committee

Lunch 

Public Comment 

Investigative Report 

New Business  Chair 
 Continuing education documents
 HB316

14. 2:30 p.m. ACS Update Sheri Ryan 

15. 2:45 p.m. Administrative Business Chair 

o Sign wall certificates and meeting minutes
o Set next meeting date
o Task list
o TA’s & Receipts

16. 3:00 p.m. Adjourn Chair 

 Insurance companies/chiropractic audit concerns

5



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______  Tab #______ Topic: __________________________________ 

Primary Motion 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

6



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

MOTION WORDING: 

“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 

confidential;  OR 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR  
Board only to remain during session.” 

Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 

7



Agenda Item #5 

Review Meeting Minutes

May 20th & June 16 , 2016

8



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 1 of 17 

State of Alaska 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development 

Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 
 

BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
Friday, May 20th, 2016 

  
By authority of AS 08.01.070(2), and in compliance with the provisions of AS 44.62, 
Article 6, a scheduled meeting of the Board of Chiropractic Examiners was held at 
the Westmark Hotel, Fairbanks on Friday, May 20th, 2016, beginning at 9:25 a.m.  
 

Agenda Item 3 Oral Interview with the Board  Time: 9:25 a.m. 
 
Richard Woolley entered the room for his oral interview with the Board. Dr. Woolley is 
from Utah and attended Northwest Health Sciences University. The Board asked Dr. 
Woolley about what facilitated his interested in chiropractic, to which he responded that he 
has been practicing as an athletic trainer and saw the benefits of spinal manipulation. Dr. 
Woolley also stated that he was pursuing a diplomate as a sports physician. The Board 
inquired to Dr. Woolley if he had a place to practice, to which he stated that he was currently 
working at Northwest Spine Relief Services in Fairbanks. When asked what he would 
contribute to the chiropractic profession, Dr. Woolley responded that he wanted to 
emphasize on expressed assessment skills to provide patients with an enhanced 
understanding of their conditions and treatment. Dr. Woolley was then informed that he had 
passed the jurisprudence examination. 
 
Luke Waack then entered the room for his oral interview with the Board. Mr. Waack 
informed the Board that he was still pursuing the chiropractic curriculum at Northwestern 
Health Sciences and would be graduating in October. Mr. Waack also informed the Board 
that he had a military background and previously worked as a newspaper editor at Fort 
Richardson AFB. When asked what facilitated his interest in chiropractic, Mr. Waack stated 
that he has had personal relief from seeking chiropractic care, and that his elder brother is a 
chiropractor, who he also credits for his interest. Mr. Waack was approached to work as an 
associate and has an internship planned under Dr. Endsley in Soldotna. Mr. Waack was then 
informed that he had passed the jurisprudence examination and encouraged to contact the 
Alaska Chiropractic Society for membership, as well as the examiner if he had any questions 
regarding statutes and regulations. 
 

9



Board of Chiropractic Examiners 
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 2 of 17 

The next exam candidate, Josephine Ball entered the room and informed the Board she was 
originally from Poulsbo, WA and attended the University of Western Science where she first 
completed her masters in exercise science. When asked what began her interest in 
chiropractic, she stated that she had been seeing a chiropractor since she was about aged 
three. Dr. Ball indicated to the Board that she was intending on incorporating physical 
therapy into her practice, and stated that she would be working at Arctic Chiropractic in 
Juneau. When asked what she could contribute to the chiropractic profession in Alaska, Dr. 
Ball expressed her interest in working with school sports teams, and also with families and 
children. Dr. Barrington commented that the recent and fortuitous passing of SB69 bill 
would be conducive to her interests. Dr. Ball further informed the Board that she had 
recently passed the CCSB test. Dr. Ball was then informed that he had passed the 
jurisprudence examination and encouraged to contact the Alaska Chiropractic Society for 
membership. 

Kyle Bergquist the entered the room and informed the Board he was from Seattle, WA. 
When asked what sparked his interest in chiropractic, Dr. Bergquist informed the board that 
he first received a degree in sports medicine. Dr. Bergquist looked into physical therapy and 
chiropractic, and after job-shadowing a few chiropractors, he noted the immediacy of same-
day results and decided he wanted to pursue a career in that profession. When asked where 
he intends to practice, Dr. Bergquist stated that he had 8 practices under the clinic name, 
Northwest Pain Relief Services; 3 of which were in Alaska. Dr. Bergquist stated that his 
clinics are integrative, incorporating nurse practitioners and medical doctors. He emphasized 
that the focus of his practice is non-medication based without surgery, with which the goal is 
to get patients through the acute phase as fast as possible. Dr. Bergquist was then informed 
that he passed the state examination. 

Rebecca Fidler then entered the room for her oral interview with the Board. Dr. Fidler is 
originally from Toronto, Canada and completed her undergraduate degree in human kinetics, 
but wanted to pursue a more hands-on profession in chiropractic. When asked what the 
focus of her practice was going to be, Dr. Fidler stated that she initially wanted to focus on 
sports chiropractic, however, with her past experience working as an intern at a VA clinic, 
she stated she still has somewhat of an interest to focus on treating veterans as well. Dr. 
Fidler commented that she also holds an interest in pediatric chiropractic. Her husband, Dr. 
Joshua Fidler is also pursuing licensure as a chiropractor in Alaska and currently holds a spot 
at Anchorage Wellness group, where she may consider working at as well. Dr. Fidler 
expressed her gratitude for being able to meet the Board in person, which she was unable to 
do for her Utah or California license. Dr. Fidler was then informed that he had passed the 
jurisprudence examination and encouraged to contact the Alaska Chiropractic Society for 
membership and information regarding positions at VA clinics. 

10



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 3 of 17 

Joshua Fidler then entered the room for his interview. Dr. Fidler is originally from 
Wisconsin and was previously in the army where he held a position as a medic. When asked 
what facilitated his interest in chiropractic, he stated that he was actually pursuing a degree in 
biology. On a field study gathering data on bats with a classmate, he became injured and 
subsequently tried cortisol shots and muscle relaxers with no relief. After finally seeing a 
chiropractor and seeing appeasement of his pain, he was inspired to pursue a career in 
chiropractic.  When asked about what would be the focus of his practice, Dr. Fidler 
informed the Board that he was interested in exercise therapy, having been a personal trainer 
for 9 years. Fidler was then informed that he had passed the jurisprudence examination and 
encouraged to contact the Alaska Chiropractic Society for membership. 
 
The last exam candidate, Aimee Burgess then entered the room for her oral interview with 
the Board. Upon greeting the Board, Dr. Burgess stated that she is originally from Illinois 
but was raised on a Navajo reservation in Arizona before moving to several other states. 
When asked what facilitated her interest in chiropractic, Dr. Burgess stated that she initially 
began as a massage therapist, but wanted to fill a more clinical role while being able to 
maintain the ability to apply hands-on treatment. When asked whether she had located a 
place in which she intends to practice, Dr. Burgess stated that she is currently working under 
a temporary permit at Life Sprout Chiropractic in Fairbanks. The Board then inquired to Dr. 
Burgess what her intended focus of practice would be, to which she commented that she 
would like to see more community outreach in regards to chiropractic. Dr. Burgess was then 
informed that he had passed the jurisprudence examination and encouraged to contact the 
Alaska Chiropractic Society for membership. Dr. Burgess also inquired as to when she 
would receive her license and was told it could take up to ten days. Dr. Campbell 
commented that the Board may want to look at a regulation change to extend the temporary 
permit such that holders are covered for malpractice insurance purposes. 
 
Agenda Item 3 Call to Order/Roll Call  Time: 10:16 a.m. 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair, Daniel Holt at 10:19 a.m. 
 
Board Members Present, constituting a quorum: 
 
 Daniel Holt, Doctor of Chiropractic 
 Walter Campbell, Doctor of Chiropractic  
 Edward Barrington, Doctor of Chiropractic 

Jeffrey Reinhardt, Doctor of Chiropractic  
John Aderhold, Public Member 

 

11



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 4 of 17 

New chair, Dr. Daniel Holt called the meeting to order at 10:19 am and welcomed two new 
Board members, Dr. Jeffrey Reinhardt and John “Wayne” Aderhold. Before beginning the 
meeting, Dr. Reinhardt made a statement on the record to clarify that while there may be the 
potential of a perceived conflict of interest as he is an employee of Dr. Campbell, the 
Division and the Department of Law has confirmed there is no conflict. Dr. Reinhardt 
stated that if an issue ever arises in which a conflict of interest may be in question, he would 
be diligent in recusing from voting.  
 
Attending from the Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing were: 
 

Laura Carrillo, Licensing Examiner 
 Brian Howes, Investigator (via telephone) 
 Martha Hewlett, Administrative Officer (via telephone) 
  
Agenda Item 4 Review Agenda  Time: 10:19 a.m. 
 
The Board reviewed the agenda for May 20th, 2016. Dr. Holt addressed the Board roster and 
commented to Ms. Carrillo that it would be helpful to have the roster of the Peer Review 
Committee located in the packet. Ms. Carrillo stated that there was a roster of the 
Committee, but that it was located further in the packet under the corresponding section. 
Ms. Carrillo then informed the Board that under the Budget Report, Director Hovenden 
would be discussing the Board’s fee analysis. The Board verified that they did review the 
excel spreadsheet prior to the meeting. Ms. Carrillo commented to the Board the importance 
of stating the Board member name for the record so as to capture the correct speaker for the 
purposes of writing meeting minutes. 
 
On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded Edward Barrington, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  
 RESOLVED to accept the agenda as written. 
 
Agenda Item 5 Review Minutes  Time: 10:21 a.m. 

 
The Board reviewed the minutes from the January 22nd, 2016 meeting. Hearing nothing 
further on reviewing the agenda, the Board began reviewing the meeting minutes from their 
January 22nd, 2016 meeting. Dr. Campbell commented to Ms. Carrillo that on page 9, the 
motion including Dr. Holt as a primary and secondary motion initiator would need to be 
corrected. Dr. Campbell also pointed out an error on page 10, which stated that the 
discussion on the request for reconsideration involved clarification from Dr. Campbell, not 
from Dr. Barrington as erroneously stated. On page 21 of the minutes, Dr. Campbell also 

12



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 5 of 17 

noted that the motion involving Christine Hill and Dr. James Heston’s recusal did not result 
in unanimous and would therefore need to be corrected. 
 
On a motion duly made by Wayne Aderhold, seconded by Walter Campbell, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to approve the minutes of the January 22nd, 2016 meeting as 
amended. 
 

TASK: 
Laura Carrillo will correct pages 9, 10, and 21 of the meeting minutes. 
 
Agenda Item 6 Board Business  Time: 10:26 a.m.  
 
Ethics Report  
Hearing nothing further on reviewing meeting minutes, Chair, Dr. Holt addressed ethics 
reporting. There were no ethics violations to report. 
 
Dr. Campbell addressed a correspondence item from an individual who was inquiring about 
musculoskeletal manipulation. Dr. Campbell stated that it is not within the Board’s purview 
to dictate how a chiropractor should manipulate a bone, and that clarification of such a 
scope would be better answered by an osteopath. Dr. Barrington prompted clarification 
from the Board as to whether Ms. Carrillo should respond to her question, as it was initially 
directed to her. Dr. Campbell reiterated that the inquiry was not explicitly included in the 
chiropractic statutes and regulations, and as such should be diverted to the medical Board. 
Ms. Carrillo stated that she would include it as an examiner task.   
 
TASK: 
Ms. Carrillo will inform Erin that her question is not within the scope of chiropractic, and to 
seek clarification from the insurance company as the nature of her question relates to billing. 
 
Ratify Licenses 
Hearing nothing further from ethics or correspondence issues, the Board then moved to 
discussion on ratification of licenses. Ms. Carrillo inquired to the Board whether they would 
like to continue this practice. Dr. Campbell and Dr. Barrington began entertaining the 
omission of ratifying licenses, as there appeared to be some degree of redundancy. Ms. 
Carrillo commented that some exam candidates don’t actually follow through with paying 
for the license fee, after which time Dr. Campbell and Dr. Barrington stated this necessitates 
the Board needing to continue ratifying licenses. 
 

13



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 6 of 17 

On a motion duly made by Edward Barrington, seconded Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to ratify licenses for Tyler Best, Truman Davidson, Crystal 
Glaser, Laura Homacki, Laura Huling, and James Peterson. 

 
Review Applications 
The Board then moved to reviewing and approving continuing education applications. For 
the purpose of explaining the protocol to the new Board members, Ms. Carrillo stated 
that—prior to Board review—all continuing educations are first presented to Dr. Fred Risch 
for his recommended approval. Ms. Carrillo stated that for the current batch, Dr. Risch has 
recommended that the Board approve all courses. Dr. Holt commented that while Dr. Risch 
has greatly enjoyed this delegated task, he had expressed an interest in passing the initial 
reviewer roll onto another Board member. Dr. Holt added that Dr. Heston may be suitable 
for this role as he still would like to be involved with the Board to some extent. 
 
TASK: 
Ms. Carrillo will contact Dr. Risch and Dr. Heston as to whom would be the initial reviewer 
for continuing education applications. 
 
Dr. Barrington provided the new Board members with clarification in stating that when a 
chiropractor is seeking credit for participation in a course or seminar, the chiropractic college 
or the chiropractor submits an application with the required fee. Dr. Barrington further 
stated that courses are typically approved if they are offered by a chiropractic college or 
PACE, but that topics such as chiropractic philosophy are usually not approved. The Board 
reviewed the applications. Ms. Carrillo commented that for the purpose of familiarizing the 
new Board members with the review process, she included the check sheets to show what 
documents are required by regulation, but that these checksheets would not be provided for 
subsequent reviews. 
 
On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
   

RESOLVED to approve course 15278 – “Online: Spinal Trauma Pathology” 
offered by Texas Chiropractic College. 
 

On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

14



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 7 of 17 

RESOLVED to approve course 15280 – “Hormone Advanced Practice 
Module” offered by Northwestern Health Sciences University 
 

On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to approve course 15281 – “Energy Advanced Practice Module” 
offered by Northwestern Health Sciences University. 
 

On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to approve course 15282 – “Radiology Rounds, Current Cases” 
offered by Radiologic Consulting. 
 

On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to approve course 15320 – “Optimizing Musculoskeletal Health” 
offered by Northwestern Health Sciences University. 
 

On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to approve course 15321 – “2016 IAACN Scientific Symposium” 
offered by Texas Chiropractic College. 
 

On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to approve course 15322 – “2016 TCC Annual Convention and 
Homecoming” offered by Texas Chiropractic College, with the exception of 
two hours in the topic of philosophy. 
 

Correspondence 
The Board discussed the correspondence piece under Agenda Item #6. 
 
Agenda Item 7 Budget Report/Division Update Time: 11:01 a.m. 
 

15



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 8 of 17 

Division Director, Janey Hovenden and Administrative Officer, Martha Hewlett joined the room 
telephonically at 11:01am. 
Division Director, Janey Hovenden and Administrative Officer, Martha Hewlett left the room telephonically 
at 11:34am. 
 
Hearing nothing further on correspondence, Ms. Carrillo informed the Board that Division 
Director, Janey Hovenden and Administrative Officer, Martha Hewlett would be working 
with the Board via teleconference to present their fee analysis. During the Board’s last 
meeting, the Board was informed that their fee analysis would take place in April—Ms. 
Carrillo had spoken with Martha Hewlett prior to this May meeting and had arranged to 
have a laptop present for working out the numbers in an excel workbook. Prior to the 
meeting, the Board was informed that they would be experiencing fee increases. The Board 
reviewed the Division’s recommendations of proposed fee changes, which included the 
following: 
 

 $100 increase to the initial application fee - $250 

 $200 increase to the locum tenens permit application fee - $250 

 $200 increase to the courtesy license application fee - $250 

 $50 increase to the temporary license fee - $150 

 $50 increase to locum tenens permit fee - $150 

 $50 increase to courtesy license fee - $150 

 $150 increase to license fee - $600 

 $150 increase to renewal fee - $600 

 $50 increase to inactive license fee - $150 

 $50 increase to retired license fee - $150 

 $25 increase to specialty designation fee - $50 

 $100 increase to exam fee - $200 

 $50 increase to continuing education fee - $100 

 $25 increase to continuing education change fee - $50 

 $50 increase to delayed renewal penalty fee - $100 

 $250 increase to peer review penalty fee - $300 
 
Ms. Carrillo commented that the Board rarely receives locum tenens applications or courtesy 
license applications, but that there may be an anticipated influx of the latter following the 
Board’s expansion of the scope of this license type. Ms. Carrillo also commented that the 
most common application submitted to the Board is continuing education, such that the  
Board may want to make adjustments to the continuing education fee.  
 

16



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 9 of 17 

Director Hovenden and Ms. Hewlett joined the room to present the Board’s FY16 1st-3rd 
quarter report. Ms. Hewlett informed the Board that their budget report reflected a non-
renewal year, with which the Board ended at a total licensing revenue of $17,835 with 
$41956 in personal services included in the total direct expenditures of $50,828. She added 
that the Board’s ending cumulative surplus was at $32,907. Ms. Hewlett also touched on 
travel and contractual services included in direct expenditures. Ms. Hewlett then directed the 
Board’s attention to the 7100 series of the collocation code breakdown for pay 
determinations based on account name (function). 
 
The Board expressed a concern in the numbers not making sense in fact that the Board was 
in a $23,495 deficit after ending with a surplus in preceding years. After the Board’s 
discussion on fees, they ultimately decided to keep the Peer Review fee at $50.00, however, 
they wanted to increase the continuing education fee by $75.00, with a proposed new fee of 
$125.00 per application.  
 
Dr. Holt called for break at 11:34am. 
Off record at 11:34am 
On record 11:48am 
 
On a motion duly made by Daniel Holt, seconded by Walter Campbell, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to keep the Peer Review fee at $50.00 and increase the continuing 
education fee by $75.00 to a total of $125.00 

 
Agenda Item 8 Old Business  Time: 11:48 a.m.  
 
 Review Goals and Objectives 
 
Hearing nothing further on the budget report, Dr. Holt moved to discussion on reviewing 
the Board’s goals and objectives. Dr. Holt stated that all goals remained relevant, but that 
Goal 3, Objective 4 could be removed as it had been met.  
 
On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded Edward Barrington, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to remove Goal 3, Objective 4. 
 

TASK: 
Ms. Carrillo will remove Goal 3, Objective 4 in the Board’s Goals and Objectives for FY16. 

17



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 10 of 17 

At its previous meeting and after suggestion by previous Board chair, Dr. James Heston, the 
Board tasked Dr. Barrington with adding a Goal 7 with two objectives pertaining to national 
background checks and contracting rights for impaired physicians. The Chiropractic Board’s 
intent for inclusion into these areas fall within centralized licensing statues, AS 12.62.400 and 
AS 08.01.050, respectively. The Board reviewed Dr. Barrington’s draft, and Ms. Carrillo 
suggested to the Board to alter the wording of “centralized” since AS 12.62.400 is actually 
not a centralized licensing statute. Ms. Carrillo also commented that in addition to pursuing 
inclusion into this statute, they would need to pursue this change in AS 08.20.  
 
On a motion duly made by Edward Barrington, seconded Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to approve Goal 7, “The Board will endeavor, through the 
legislative process, to add the Board of Chiropractic Examiners to relevant 
centralized and non-centralized statutes that enhance the profession and its 
administrative efficiency. 
 
Objective 1:  The Board will pursue authority to utilize National Criminal 

History Record checks under AS 12.62.200, and will pursue 
similar authority under AS 08.20. 

Objective 2:  The Board will pursue inclusion into AS 08.01.050(d) for the 
purpose of providing licensed chiropractors the resources 
needed to address abuse of alcohol, drugs, or other 
substances. 

 
Goal 1: Carry out assigned duties of the board:  

 

Objective 1:  Conduct a minimum of three board meetings a year and rotate the  location of the 

meetings between different regions of the state.  

Objective 2: Continue licensing chiropractic physicians and processing applications in a timely 

manner.  

Objective 3: Review investigative reports, monitor disciplinary actions and provide 

professional direction to Division investigative staff regarding disciplinary 

actions, probation matters, criminal history record information and chiropractic 

practice.  

Objective 4: Utilize the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners (NBCE) Special Purposes 

Examination for Chiropractic (SPEC) and Ethics & Boundaries Examination 

(E&B) in memorandum of agreements.  

Objective 5: Continue to review and process requests for continuing education credit approval 

in a timely manner.  

Objective 6:  Continue to administer the jurisprudence exam concurrent with Board   

   meetings and to include candidate interviews as part of the examination.  

18



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 11 of 17 

Goal 2: Provide information regarding board activities to the profession and the public.  

 

Objective 1:  Inform all licensees of any pending regulation changes in the customary  

   manner.  

Objective 2:  Provide a public comment period at each meeting.  

Objective 3:  Address concerns presented by licensees and the public at each meeting.  

Objective 4:  Provide copies of agendas and/or minutes of the meetings to all who  

   request them.  

Objective 5:  Continue to work with other licensing boards, at both the district and  

   national level.  

Objective 6:  Continue to address the reporting requirements for domestic violence and  

   sexual assault.  

Objective 7: Support efforts to educate the public regarding the benefit of chiropractic care as a 

health care form.  

Objective 8:   Raise awareness regarding public health, emergency training, hazardous  

   materials and OSHA requirements.  

Objective 9:  Ensure current information is available on the Board website through  

   regular updates by staff and regular monitoring by Board members.  

 

Goal 3: Continue affiliation with the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) to work cooperatively in 

the best interest of the profession and the public.  

 

Objective 1:  Encourage regular Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS)    

   participation at Board meetings.  

Objective 2:   Support the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) in its efforts to provide  

   information to the profession and the public.  

Objective 3:  Support the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) in its efforts in pursuing  

   statutory changes relevant to the profession and public safety.  

Objective 4:   Support the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) in pursuing statutory 

authority for licensing chiropractic assistants, technicians and interns/preceptors.  

Objective 5:  Support the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) in its efforts in pursuing a 

statutory change to allow for animal chiropractic in cooperation with the 

Veterinary Board.  

 

Goal 4: Access and evaluate regulations. 

 

Objective 1:  Continue to assess and evaluate continuing education requirements. 

Objective 2:  Continue to assess and evaluate radiological safety, professional ethics and 

  boundaries, public health and emergency training. 

Objective 3: Proactively make recommendations through regulations to anticipate changes in 

the health industry. 

 

Goal 5: Assess and evaluate the review process available through the Peer Review Committee.  

 

Objective 1:   Refine procedures for committee review of cases and the reporting  

19



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 12 of 17 

process; consider establishing criteria (guidelines) for utilization review under 12 

AAC 16.430.  

Objective 2:   Direct review inquiries to the committee.  

Objective 3:   Keep the committee roster fully staffed with three chiropractors and one  

   public member at all times.  

 

Goal 6: Continue affiliation with the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards (FCLB), the 

National Board of Chiropractic Examiners (NBCE), the Association of Chiropractic Board 

Administrators (ACBA), and the Council on Chiropractic Education (CCE), as well as the Council 

on Licensure, Enforcement and Regulation (CLEAR) and the Federation of Associations of  

Regulatory Boards (FARB):  

 

Objective 1:  Promote attendance of Board members and staff at district and annual meetings of  

  the FCLB and NBCE in order to provide input and obtain information at both  

  national and state levels regarding matters impacting Alaska Chiropractors.  

Objective 2: Work with the FCLB on maintaining a listing of Alaskan Chiropractors on the National 

Database (CIN-BAD).  

Objective 3: Promote attendance of Board members at the semi-annual NBCE Part IV Examinations 

and Part IV Examination Review committee meetings of the NBCE to provide input and 

obtain information on the Exams required for chiropractic licensure in Alaska.  

Objective 4: Promote attendance of the Licensing Examiner at the annual meetings of the ACBA and 

FCLB to provide input and obtain information at both national and state levels regarding 

matters impacting the regulation and licensure of Alaskan Chiropractors.  

Objective 5: Promote attendance by Board members and staff at the annual CLEAR and/or FARB 

conferences.  

 
Position Statements 
The Board had previously addressed writing position statements on injectable nutrients, 
advertisement of free services, and sexual harassment. It was stated that more information 
was needed to complete these. 
 
On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded Edward Barrington, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to table the position statements for injectable nutrients, 
advertisement of free services, and sexual harassment until the Board’s next 
scheduled meeting.  

 
Myoscience/Iovera° Update 
Myoscience/Iovera° has been an ongoing discussion amongst the Board since September, 
2015. Through attorney, Amy Welch, Drs. Shannon and McAfee submitted a request for 
reconsideration for the Board to accept the device (Iovera°) as an acceptable form of 
cryotherapy treatment for therapeutic purposes. At its last meeting on January 22nd, 2016, the 

20



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 13 of 17 

Board approved the request for reconsideration, but decided to table further discussion until 
manufacturing company, Myoscience, clarified whether there was a specific recommended 
anesthetic and method of administration. Subsequent to the January meeting, Dr. Barrington 
contacted Myoscience for clarification on this issue, as well as whether they would sell the 
device to chiropractors. The company issued a response saying that they would not sell to 
chiropractors, only to medical physicians.  
 
In a letter dated April 18th, 2016, Drs. McAfee and Shannon asked the Board to specifically 
answer the following questions: 
 
1.) If cryotherapy falls within scope of AS 08.20.900 (cryotherapy is mentioned in the 

scope) 
2.) Whether Iovera is surgery as defined by 12 AAC 16.990(b)(2)  
 
The Board deliberated on this issue.  
 
The Board’s attorney, Harriet Milks entered the room at 12:01pm. 
The Board’s attorney, Harriet Milks left the room at 12:10pm. 
 
Amy Welch addressed the Board on behalf of Dr. McAfee and Dr. Shannon regarding the 
topic of Iovera, a cryotherapy product developed by Myoscience. In 2015, the Board via the 
licensing examiner, Ms. Carrillo, informed Myoscience that Iovera was not within the scope 
of chiropractic as Myoscience specifically asked Ms. Carrillo whether lidocaine was accepted. 
Lidocaine, being a prescription drug, is not allowed per Alaska Statute, 80.20.900(3), and as 
such, Myoscience was informed that it was not within the scope. Drs. McAfee and Shannon 
had since indicated that if permitted to administer the device, lidocaine would not be used. 
Citing 12 AAC 16.990(b)(2), Ms. Welch asserted that Iovera does not fall within the 
definition of surgery, using the analogy that flu shots, tattoos and piercings would be 
considered surgery under this theory. Ms. Welch further added that who Myoscience 
chooses to sell their product to is irrelevant, as their clients may change over time. 
Myoscience had previously indicated that they could not sell to non-medical physicians due 
to their FDA clearance. Ms. Welch urged the Board to focus on whether said device fell 
within the definition of surgery under their specific statutes and regulations, 08.20 and 12 
AAC 16, respectively.  
 
Dr. Barrington suggested that the Board go into executive session. Attorney, Harriet Milks 
first clarified that there was no current adjudication; that no chiropractor involved was being 
disciplined, and as such, it was recommended that executive session was not appropriate. Dr. 
Campbell disagreed, and inquired to the Board what they wanted to do. The Board 
ultimately decided to go into executive session under attorney-client privilege. 

21



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 14 of 17 

On a motion duly made by Dr. Barrington, seconded by Walter Campbell, and in  
accordance with AS 44.62.310, the Board unanimously moved to enter executive 
session for the purpose of discussing AS 44.62.310(4). Staff, Ms. Carrillo and attorney, 
Harriet Milks would be present for discussion.  
 
Off Record at 12:12 a.m.  
On Record at 12:54 a.m. 
 
The Board’s attorney, Harriet Milks entered the room at 12:12pm. 
The Board’s attorney, Harriet Milks left the room at 1:37pm. 
 
The Board came out of executive session to vote on Iovera, as no vote was made during 
executive session.  
 
On a motion duly made by Edward Barrington, seconded by Jeffrey Reinhardt, and 
approved by the majority of the Board, it was 
  

RESOLVED to approve the use of Iovera as it does fit in the scope of 
chiropractic as an acceptable form of cryotherapy under AS 08.20.900(9)(c) and 
does not constitute the incision of living tissue as prohibited practice under 12 
AAC 16.900(2)(a), if not used with prescription drugs as prohibited in AS 
08.20.900(b)(1).  

 
Dr. Holt recused from voting due to personal reasons. 
 
Agenda Item 12 Investigative Report  Time: 1:30 p.m.  
 
Brian Howes joined the room telephonically at 1:30pm. 
Brian Howes left the room telephonically at 1:32pm. 
 
Investigator, Brian Howes joined the room telephonically to present the Board’s 
investigative report, which included activity from January 21st, 2016 through May 1st, 2016. 
Mr. Howes directed the Board to the paper report, which stated that the Division had 
opened four files, closed five matters, and that two matters remain open. The two open 
matters relate to sexual misconduct and a criminal action-conviction.  
 
Agenda Item 9 Peer Review Committee    
 

22



Board of Chiropractic Examiners 
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 15 of 17 

The Board did not discuss matters relating to the Peer Review Committee as they were 
behind schedule; however, Dr. Holt stated that he would be handing off his Board liaison 
position to Dr. Jeffrey Reinhardt. 

Agenda Item 11 Public Comment Time: 1:15 p.m. 

No one was available for public comment. 

Agenda Item 10 Lunch Time: 1:40 p.m. 

The Board went to lunch at 1:40pm. 

Off record at 1:40am 
On record 2:42am

Agenda Item 8 Old Business Time: 2:43 a.m. 

The Board returned to Agenda Item #8 to address SB69. 

SB69 Update:  
As S69 was signed by the Governor, and because Dr. Barrington dedicated a lot of time and 
resources to advocate for this bill, Dr. Holt presented Dr. Barrington with the pen.  

Agenda Item 13 New Business Time: 2:45 p.m. 

Administrative Management Companies 
Dr. Reinhardt addressed administrative management companies and their efforts to sidestep 
reimbursements by claiming some procedures to be experimental. The Board deliberated 
this, as it is a coding and state insurance plan issue that could greatly impact the integrity of a 
chiropractor’s practice.  

TASK: 
Dr. Reinhardt will work on a position statement for valid therapies under chiropractic 
manipulation. Dr. Barrington will advise as necessary. 

Regulation Projects 

 Courtesy License 12 AAC 16.205 (amendment approved 01/22/16)

 Specialty Designation, 12 AAC 16.047 (amendment approved 01/22/16) – IBCN
needs to be added to regulation.

23



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 16 of 17 

 NBCE Exams, 12 AAC 16.033(7) and 12 AAC 16.037(b) – The Board reviewed Dr. 
Heston’s suggestions on clarifying NBCE exam requirements, which includes the 
suggestion to reword as follows: 

   
“12 AAC 16.033. Application for Licensure by Credentials. (7) An official grade transcript sent 
directly to the Department from the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners showing that the 
applicant has successfully passed the Special Purposes Examination of Chiropractic (SPEC), or 
parts 1-4 of the national examination” 

 
“12 AAC 16.037. National Examination Requirements. (b) An application who has been in the 
active practice of chiropractic for five continuous years before the date of application for a license in the 
state may substitute successful passage of the Special Purposes Examination of Chiropractic (SPEC) 
of the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners for Parts 3 and 4 of the national examination.”  
 

 Surgery, 12 AAC 16.990(b)(2)(A) – Dr. Heston also suggested to the Board to review 
and clarify the definition of surgery. 

 Continuing Education, 12 AAC 16.290 – Dr. Heston also suggested to the Board to 
review and clarify the hours of continuing education required. 

 
The Board will continue discussing regulations projects. 
 
Agenda Item 14 FCLB/NBCE  Updates  Time: 3:16 p.m.  
 
Dr. Holt shared with the Board an update on the FCLB/NBCE conference in Phoenix, AZ, 
and expressed the experience as satisfactory. Dr. Holt commented that he attended a session 
on spinal disc pathology and was able to hear a lecture by Dr. Wayne Wolfson, a leading 
chiropractor on the topic of malpractice insurance. Dr. Holt also expressed his satisfaction in 
being able to attend the Joseph Janse lecture. Ms. Carrillo provided the Board with an update 
CBAC, including discussions on the online jurisprudence exam, myicourse for CCCA, CIN-
BAD, online continuing education, and other statutes/regulations by state. Ms. Carrillo also 
discussed EBAS (Ethics and Boundaries Assessment Services), which is a tool that Boards 
can use to help guide disciplinary actions. 
 
Dr. Holt commented that the next FCLB/NBCE conference would be held in Orlando, 
Florida, in which Dr. Campbell would be in attendance. Dr. Holt also expressed his interest 
in attending the regional meeting in Colorado Springs in October. 
 
Agenda Item 15 ACS Update  Time: 3:35 p.m.  
 

24



 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of May 20th, 2016 
Page 17 of 17 

Todd Curzie joined the room telephonically at 3:35pm. 
Todd Curzie left the room telephonically at 3:41pm. 
 
Todd Curzie joined the room to present the ACS report as Sheri Ryan was unavailable. On 
behalf of the ACS, he expressed his excitement in the passing of Senate Bill 69. Dr. Curzie 
also commented on the ACS Annual Convention, which is slated to occur October 6-8, 2016 
in Anchorage and will provide sufficient continuing education opportunities to meet Alaska 
renewal requirements. 
 
Agenda Item 16 Administrative Business  Time: 3:42 a.m.  
 
Wall Certificates 
The Board signed wall certificates for James Petersen and Tyler Best. 
 
Set Meeting Dates 
The Board set their subsequent meeting dates for October 6th, 2016 in Anchorage, and 
January 27th, 2017 in Juneau. 
 
Board Travel 
The Board discussed Board travel for the NBCE Part IV exam, FCLB/NBCE conference 
and FCLB regional meeting. Travel for the following members/events are requested: 
 

 Dr. Barrington: NBCE Part IV exam proctoring, November 2016 

 Dr. Campbell/Ms. Carrillo: FCLB/NBCE conference, May 3-7, 2017 in Orlando, FL 

 Dr. Holt: FCLB regional meeting, October 13-16 in Colorado Springs, CO 
 

Agenda Item 17 Adjourn  Time: 4:02 p.m.  
 
The Board adjourned the meeting at 4:02 p.m. 
 
                                         
 
                                           
 
 

Respectfully Submitted by: 
                                                                                        
_______________________________ 
Laura Carrillo                                                                 
Licensing Examiners 
 
Approved by: 
 
________________________________ 
Dr. Daniel Holt, Chair 
Alaska State Board of Chiropractic Examiners 

25



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______  Tab #______ Topic: __________________________________ 

Primary Motion 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

26



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

27



Board of Chiropractic Examiners 
Board Meeting of June 16th, 2016 
Page 1 of 4 

State of Alaska 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development 

Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 

BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
Thursday, June 16th, 2016 

By authority of AS 08.01.070(2), and in compliance with the provisions of AS 44.62, 
Article 6, a scheduled meeting of the Board of Chiropractic Examiners was held at 
the State Office Building, Conference Room B in Juneau, Alaska on Thursday, June 
16th, 2016, beginning at 9:25 a.m.  

Agenda Item 1 Call to Order/Roll Call Time: 1:04 p.m. 

The meeting was called to order by Chair, Daniel Holt at 1:04 p.m. 

Board Members Present, constituting a quorum: 

Daniel Holt, Doctor of Chiropractic 
Walter Campbell, Doctor of Chiropractic  
Edward Barrington, Doctor of Chiropractic 
John Aderhold, Public Member 

Attending from the Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing were: 

Laura Carrillo, Licensing Examiner 

Agenda Item 2 Review Agenda Time: 1:05 p.m. 

The Board reviewed the agenda. Ms. Carrillo reminded the Board that an individual study 
approval request would be discussed under Agenda Item #4. 

On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Edward Barrington, and 
approved by Dr. Holt and Mr. Aderhold to establish a quorum, it was 

RESOLVED to accept the agenda as written. 

Agenda Item 3 Ethics Time: 1:39 p.m. 

28



 

 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of June 16th, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 

There were no ethics disclosures to discuss. 
 
Agenda Item 4 Discuss Continuing Education Time: 1:06 p.m.  
 
The Board moved to discussion on continuing education relating to credit hours required for 
renewal, certificates required for auditing purpose, and an individual study request submitted 
by Dr. Kim Lazarus. 
 
12 AAC16.290. Hours of Continuing Education Required.  
The Board discussed removing the specific dates included in 12 AAC 16.290(a)(1)(2) and 
(b)(1)(2). Dr. Campbell commented that the intention behind including these dates were 
necessitated by the Board experiencing a renewal regulation change/transition at the time, 
but that such dates have since become obsolete.  Dr. Barrington and Dr. Holt confirmed this 
and the Board discussed new wording in lieu of these dates. 
 
On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Edward Barrington, and 
approved by Daniel Holt and John Aderhold to establish a quorum, it was 
  

RESOLVED to reword 12 AAC 16.290(a)(1) to state: “An applicant applying for license 
renewal who has been licensed for at least two years must complete 32 hours of continuing education; 
at least one-third and no more than one-half of the total hours required under this paragraph must be 
devoted to”  
 

On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Edward Barrington, and 
approved by Daniel Holt and John Aderhold to establish a quorum, it was 
  

RESOLVED to remove 12 AAC 16.290(b)(1). 
 
On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Edward Barrington, and 
approved by Daniel Holt and John Aderhold to establish a quorum, it was 
  

RESOLVED to reword 12 AAC 16.290(b)(2) to state: “An applicant applying for 
license renewal who has been licensed for at least one year must complete 16 hours of continuing 
education” 
 
 

On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Edward Barrington, and 
approved by Daniel Holt and John Aderhold to establish a quorum, it was 
  

29



 

 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of June 16th, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 

RESOLVED to add a new subsection that states: “An applicant applying for license 
renewal who has been licensed for less than one year is not required to complete hours of continuing 
education” 
 

Ms. Carrillo then commented to the Board that the Division is transitioning to providing the 
availability of online renewals, and that removing 12 AAC 16.290(d)(1)(5) is necessary so as 
not to force auditing behaviors from licensing staff. Currently, this regulation requires 
licensees to document on their renewal form the name of the sponsoring organization, title, 
description of course, dates of attendance, number of continuing education hours claimed, 
and the course approval number. By requiring licensees to provide this detailed information, 
it essentially prompts the examiner to audit at the time of renewal, which defeats the purpose 
of the random 10% audit. Dr. Barrington also commented that it would reduce the staff time 
charged to the Board. Dr. Campbell expressed that having to document these activities is 
beneficial for tracking purposes, to which Ms. Carrillo commented that she could draft a 
renewal activity log for licensees’ personal records. This document could be made available 
on the website. Dr. Campbell was receptive, stating that the document should clearly state 
that the document is not to be submitted for renewal purposes, and reiterated that it would 
just serve as a renewal record keeping document for the chiropractor. Dr. Holt agreed.  

 
On a motion duly made by Edward Barrington, seconded by Walter Campbell, and 
approved by Daniel Holt and John Aderhold to establish a quorum, it was 
  

RESOLVED to remove (1)(2)(3)(4)(5) of 12 AAC 16.290(d), such that it only 
reads: “An applicant for renewal of a license to practice chiropractic must submit, on a form 
provided by the department, a sworn statement of the continuing education that the applicant 
completed during the concluding license period”. 

 
TASK: 
Ms. Carrillo will draft a renewal activity log to be posted to the Board’s site. This log will not 
be required to be submitted at the time of renewal, but is intended to be used for personal 
record keeping of continuing education activity. 
 
12 AAC 16.350. Individual Study. 
The Board then moved to an individual study approval request submitted by Dr. Kimberly 
Lazarus, who was requesting that 16 hours of continuing education completed through a 
University of Arizona program be accepted for the upcoming renewal. The title of the 
course was, “Integrative Health & Lifestyle, Integrative Coaching”. 
 
On a motion duly made by Edward Barrington, seconded by John Aderhold, and 
approved by Daniel Holt and Walter Campbell to establish a quorum, it was 

30



 

 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of June 16th, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

  
RESOLVED to approve the individual study request submitted on behalf of 
Dr. Kimberly Lazarus pending receipt of the $50.00 continuing education 
application fee.  
 

TASK: 
Ms. Carrillo will contact Dr. Kim Lazarus for payment of the continuing education fee prior 
to approving the individual study program. 
 
Ms. Carrillo then asked the Board if they were in favor of sending the regulation project to 
the regulations specialist, which would include changes made to the courtesy license scope, 
NBCE requirements, approved specialty designation programs, and the continuing 
education changes discussed above. Dr. Barrington inquired to Ms. Carrillo as to whether 
the Board had approved Dr. Heston’s proposed NBCE regulation changes. Ms. Carrillo 
commented that she would double-check the minutes. All other proposed changes have 
been approved by the Board at previous meetings. 
 
TASK: 
Ms. Carrillo will double-check the minutes from the May 20th, 2016 meeting to confirm 
whether or not the Board approved Dr. Heston’s proposed NBCE changes. If there was no 
vote on record, Ms. Carrillo would send the proposed changes for a vote via e-mail ballot.  
 
Agenda Item 17 Adjourn  Time: 1:40 p.m.  
 
With no other matters to discuss, the Board adjourned the meeting at 1:40 p.m. 
 
On a motion duly made by Edward Barrington, seconded by Walter Campbell, and 
approved by Daniel Holt and Wayne Aderhold to establish a quorum, it was 
  

RESOLVED to adjourn the meeting.  
 
  

Respectfully Submitted by: 
                                                                                        
_______________________________ 
Laura Carrillo                                                                 
Licensing Examiners 
 
Approved by: 
 
________________________________ 
Dr. Daniel Holt, Chair 
Alaska State Board of Chiropractic Examiners 

31



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

32



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

MOTION WORDING: 

“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 

confidential;  OR 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR  
Board only to remain during session.” 

Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 

33



 

 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of September 28th, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

State of Alaska 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development 

Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 
 

BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING 
Wednesday, September 28th, 2016 

  
These are DRAFT minutes prepared by the staff of the Division of Corporations, 
Business and Professional Licensing. These minutes have not been reviewed or 
approved by the Board. 
 
By authority of AS 08.01.070(2), and in compliance with the provisions of AS 44.62, 
Article 6, a teleconference meeting of the Board of Chiropractic Examiners was held 
at the State Office Building on 333 Willoughby Ave, 9th Floor, Conference Room A in 
Juneau, Alaska on Wednesday, September 28th, 2016, beginning at 8:34 a.m.  
 

Agenda Item 1 Call to Order  Time: 8:34 a.m. 
 
Board Members Present, constituting a quorum: 
 
 Daniel Holt, Doctor of Chiropractic 
 Edward Barrington, Doctor of Chiropractic  
 Walter Campbell, Doctor of Chiropractic  
 Jeffrey Reinhardt, Doctor of Chiropractic 

John Aderhold, Public Member 
 
Attending from the Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing were: 
 

Laura Carrillo, Licensing Examiner 
Brian Howes, Investigator 

 
Agenda Item 2 Voluntary Suspension   Time: 8:34 a.m. 
 
The Investigations Section of the Division brought to the Board’s attention a voluntary 
suspension of a chiropractic license signed by Jesse L. Webb. Brian Howes clarified that 
there was no conviction at this point and that the Board, through the Division, would not be 
taking action on his license at this time, however, the Board could accept his suspension for 
a period of time. The Board discussed the length of the suspension, to which Mr. Howes 

34



 

 
 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners  
Board Meeting of September 28th, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

suggested could be until there has been a criminal finding, until Dr. Webb is exonerated, or 
until there is other resolution or consequence as appropriate and consistent with 
statutory/regulatory authority. The Board acknowledged that under a license suspension, Dr. 
Webb could come before the Board with a reinstatement application subsequent to 
completion of the case. 
 
The Board addressed concerns relating to the continued care and treatment of Dr. Webb’s 
patients during his absence. Such continued care is implied in the Board’s statutes, and it is 
the licensee’s responsibility to ensure that patients are not abandoned. It was suggested that 
regulatory changes could be made to clarify this in similar future circumstances. 
 
On a motion duly made by Walter Campbell, seconded by Wayne Aderhold, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
  

RESOLVED to accept the voluntary license surrender of Jesse L. Webb in 
accordance with AS 08.01.075(a)(2) for a period of time consistent with the 
completion of the investigation by the Division. 
 

TASK: 
Dr. Barrington will sign the voluntary suspension document and send to Brian Howes. 
 
Agenda Item 3 Adjourn  Time: 8:52 a.m.  
 
On a motion duly made by Edward Barrington, seconded by Wayne Aderhold, and 
approved unanimously, it was 
 

RESOLVED to adjourn the meeting at 8:52 a.m. 
 
                                         
 
                                           
 
 

Respectfully Submitted by: 
                                                                                        
_______________________________ 
Laura Carrillo                                                                 
Licensing Examiners 
 
Approved by: 
 
________________________________ 
Dr. Daniel Holt, Chair 
Alaska State Board of Chiropractic Examiners 

35



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______  Tab #______ Topic: __________________________________ 

Primary Motion 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

36



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

37



Agenda Item #6 

Board Business 

 Ethics reporting

 Ratify new licenses

 Review CE applications
Draft Regulations (SB69)

38



 

39



 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______  Tab #______ Topic: __________________________________ 

Primary Motion 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

52



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

53



STATE OF ALASKA 
BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS 

 
State Chiropractic Examination 

Candidate List 
 

October 6th, 2016 
Anchorage, Alaska 

 
 
“Upon a motion duly made by _______________________________, seconded by 
_________________________________ and approved unanimously, it was: 
 
RESOLVED to ratify new licenses.” 

 
 
 

CANDIDATE NAME (verify name for license) 

Josephine Ball 

Kyle Bergquist 

Aimee Burgess 

Joshua Fidler 

Luke Waack 

Richard Woolley 

 
 
 

54



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

55



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

MOTION WORDING: 

“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 

confidential;  OR 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR  
Board only to remain during session.” 

Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 

56



Authority: AS 08.20.055 AS 08.20.170(d) 

12 AAC 16.310.  COMPUTATION OF ACADEMIC CREDIT CONTINUING EDUCATION HOURS.  (a) 
One quarter hour academic credit from a college or university constitutes 10 hours of continuing education. 

(b) One semester hour academic credit from a college or university constitutes 15 hours of continuing 
education. 

(c) Challenged courses are not acceptable for continuing education credit. 

Authority: AS 08.20.055 AS 08.20.170(d) 

12 AAC 16.320.  APPROVED SUBJECTS. To be approved by the board, a subject must contribute directly to 
the professional competency of a person licensed to practice as a chiropractor and be directly related to the concepts 
of chiropractic principles, philosophy, and practice, including the following: 

(1) treatment and adjustment technique, including physiotherapy, nutrition and dietetics; 
(2) examination and diagnosis or analysis including physical, laboratory, orthopedic, neurological and 

differential; 
(3) radiographic technique and interpretation involving all phases of roentgenology as permitted by law; 
(4) study of the methods employed in the prevention of excessive radiation and safety precautions to the 

patient; and 
(5) diagnostic imaging. 

Authority: AS 08.20.055 AS 08.20.170 

12 AAC 16.330.  NONACADEMIC PROGRAM CRITERIA.  (a) Nonacademic continuing education 
programs requiring class attendance are approved by the board if 

(1) the program is at least one hour in length; 
(2) the program is conducted by a qualified instructor; 
(3) a record of registration or attendance is maintained; and 
(4) an examination or other method of assuring satisfactory completion of program by participant is 

incorporated. 
(b) A qualified instructor or discussion leader is anyone whose background, training, education or experience 

makes it appropriate for the person to lead a discussion on the subject matter of the particular program. 

Authority: AS 08.20.055 AS 08.20.170(d) 

12 AAC 16.340.  APPROVED NONACADEMIC CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAMS.  (a) The 
following programs are approved by the board: 

(1) educational meetings of the following associations, if the documentation required by 12 AAC 16.290 
demonstrates that the meeting in question meets the requirements of 12 AAC 16.320 and 12 AAC 16.330. 

(A) American Chiropractic Association; 
(B) International Chiropractors Association; 
(C) Canadian Chiropractic Association; 

(2) educational classes, if 
(A) they are conducted by any chiropractic college that is accredited by or has accreditation status with the 

Council on Chiropractic Education; and 
(B) the program sponsor or the applicant for renewal of a chiropractic license 

(i) requests board approval; and 
(ii) demonstrates to the board's satisfaction that the educational classes meet the requirements of 

12 AAC 16.320 and 12 AAC 16.330 
(3) continuing education programs that are certified by the Providers of Approved Continuing Education 

through the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards. 
(b) The board may approve other continuing education programs under 12 AAC 16.345. 
(c) Repealed 1/29/2009. 

Authority: AS 08.20.055 AS 08.20.120 AS 08.20.170 

12 AAC 16.345.  APPLICATION FOR CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE APPROVAL.  (a)  Except 
as provided in 12 AAC 16.340(a), to be approved by the board to meet the continuing education requirements of 12 
AAC 16.290, 12 AAC 16.320, and 12 AAC 16.330, an applicant for continuing education course approval shall 
submit to the board, not less than 90 days before the date of the proposed program presentation date, 

(1) a completed application on a form provided by the department; 
(2) the continuing education course approval fee specified in 12 AAC 02.150; 
(3) the name of the course provider; 
(4) a complete course description, including the course title and a description of the learning objectives; 
(5) a course syllabus; and 

57

lncarrillo
Highlight

lncarrillo
Highlight



58



59



60



                                     Perinatal Care with Optional Webster Certification 

(Course Description/ Objectives) 

 

Techniques, case management and evidence based practice for the perinatal period. Hands 
on demonstrations and application of specific adjusting techniques in pregnancy with 

biomechanics of the female pelvis. Common disorders in pregnancy and the chiropractic co-
management with other birth care providers. Safety, effectiveness and contraindications. 

Informed based practice relating to perinatal care and birth outcome for the mother. Causes 
of dystocia: physiological/ neuro-biomechanical, emotional and medical/ technological and 

the chiropractic solution to these causes. 

61



 
ICPA Module Outline 

Perinatal Care  
 Techniques and case management for pregnancy in preparation for normal, physiological birth.  

 

Jeanne Ohm, D.C. 
 
 
Hour 1 :  Principles and Purpose.  
General discussion of family wellness care and the importance of pediatric and pregnancy care 
from an evidenced based model. Scope of practice considerations Public education skills to 
represent chiropractic in regards to family care. Peer reviewed research substantiating safety 
and effectiveness of family chiropractic care from the salutogenic model of health.  

(Patient Management) 
 
 

Hour 2: The need for chiropractic care in pregnancy for normal neuro-biomechanical function in 
birth. Birth trauma: the medical definition and causes. A look at the medical process of birth. 
Neurological implication of technocratic birth procedures on the infant with current research on 
its injurious effects.  Subluxation patterns in the neonate’s spine as a result of birth. Safety of 
chiropractic care for children. 

(Physiology) 
 
 
Hour 3: Chiropractic in Pregnancy: An overview of the history of adjusting in pregnancy and the 
evidenced based representation of chiropractic care in pregnancy. Research relating to low back 
pain, neuromuscular dysfunction, improved birth outcome and the ethical representation of 
chiropractic care. Safety of Chiropractic in pregnancy: literature review.  

(Physiology) 
 

 
 
Hour 4:  Initial Visit:  
Patient intake, consultation, exam. Common questions, concerns and patient management. 
Understanding normal pelvic neuro-biomechanics for accurate exam and adjustment.  Postural 
considerations in pregnancy. Patient recommendations based on intake and exam. At home 
recommendations to support care and achieve desired biomechanical outcome  
 

(Exam) 
 
 

Hour 5:  The Neuro-biomecahnical causes of Dystocia and the Chiropractic Role in Pregnancy   
Understanding the physiological changes during pregnancy as they relate to pelvic neuro-
biomechanics. The three causes of dystocia with emphasis on the biomechanical causes of 
dystocia as outlined in William’s Obstetrics.  

(Physiology) 

62



 
 
Hours 6: The Emotional Causes of Dystocia and the Chiropractic Role in Pregnancy.  
A look at the Autonomic Nervous System as outlined by Stephen Porges, PhD.  
Understanding the relationship of chiropractic care to the ANS including adjustments and 
patient support in pregnancy. The importance of the maternal nervous system on the 
developing fetus’ health. The significance of maternal emotional stress on birth outcome.  
 

                                                                                                             (Physiology) 
 
Hours 7-8: The Technocratic/ Iatrogenic causes of Dystocia and the Chiropractic Role in 
Pregnancy.  Chiropractic considerations for the pregnant and laboring mother. Maternal 
neurology and birth outcomes. Intervention and effects on the mother’s and baby’s nervous 
system. Current research and review of modern obstetric birthing procedures and their 
relationship to neurological function. Patient education, management and collaborative care for 
safer, easier births.  

 
(Physiology) 

Hour 9: Enhancing Normal Perinatal Physiological Function: the relationship between 
chiropractic care, normal physiology and safer pregnancy and birth outcomes. Neurological 
considerations in natural births, infant care: technocratic and alternative. Chiropractic 
considerations.  

(Physiology) 
 

 
 
Hours 10-13:  Specific Analysis and Adjustment in Pregnancy. 
Safety of chiropractic adjustments in pregnancy. Common neuro-biomechanical considerations. 
Exam and adjusting guidelines and techniques using specific sacral protocols for pregnancy. 
Video demonstration for each adjustment. (Logan, SOT, Diversified) Protocols, Frequency, 
Patient Understanding, Ethics. Hands on application of each specific technique. Each Doctor will 
be personally evaluated for competency in diversified sacral analysis and adjustment of the 
pregnant patient. 

(Adjusting Technique) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

63



Curriculum Vitae 
 

Jeanne Ohm D.C. 
 327 N. Middletown Rd. Media, Pa. 19063 

610 891-1190 ohmdc@comcast.net 
 

Professional Education: 
Certified in the Principles and Practices of Chiropractic Pediatrics: ICPA and Life College: 

1994 
Pennsylvania College of Chiropractic  Langhorne, PA. -1981 
Nassau Community College, New York -1978 
 
Private practice:  

Practicing, Family Chiropractor since 1981 
Guest speaker for local TV networks, radio shows and community lectures on the 
Chiropractic Family Wellness Lifestyle. 
Child-Birth, Post Partum and Breastfeeding  Counselor /Coach 
 

Professional Contributions:  

 Ongoing Continuing Ed Instructor for State Associations and Chiropractic 
Colleges on the subject of Chiropractic Pediatricsand Pregnancy: Technique and 
Case Management since 1997. 

 Current and previous post-graduate faculty for: Cleveland Chiropractic College, 
Life Chiropractic College West,  Life University, Parker College of Chiropractic, 
Sherman College of Chiropractic; North Western Health Sciences University, 
Palmer University. 

 Co-developer of ICPA/ PBRN 

 Author of numerous published research papers on chiropractic care for children 
and in pregnancy. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed  

 Author of Perinatal Care chapter in Chiropractic Pediatrics Textbook. 

 Author and instructor for the ICPA’s Proficiency Class on the Webster Technique. 

 Instructor for ICPA’s  360 hour Diplomate Program: Module: Perinatal Care. 

 Executive Coordinator for the International Chiropractic Pediatric  Association. 

 Creator and editor of the I.C.P.A.’s public education magazine: Pathways to 
Family Wellness   

 Secretary/ Treasurer:  ICPA’s Board of Directors  www.icpa4kids.com,  

 Advisory Board: Holistic Pediatric Association: www.hpakids.org  

 Panel Member of Mothering: Ask the Exert. 

 Author of Chiropractic articles in Chiropractic, Birthing  and National Publications 

 Founder of "Makin' Miracles...Connecting Kids n' Chiropractic":  Community and 
patient educational programs about the importance of lifetime chiropractic care. 

 Song-writer and producer of “Power On!” a children’s song about chiropractic. 

 Producer of educational dcoumentary, “Birth Trauma: A Modern Epidemic”  

64

mailto:ohmdc@comcast.net
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed
http://www.icpa4kids.com/
http://www.hpakids.org/


 

 

 

    Dr Drew Rubin, BS, DC, CCSP, DACCP  
Pediatric Alphabet Soup: ASD, ADHD, LD, PDD, SP….what they mean and how to care for 
them   

 

Course Description/Objectives: 
Students will have the knowledge and the confidence on how to specifically take care of 
children who come to their offices with a variety of neurodevelopmental issues. This will range 
from infant challenges such as nursing/latching issues, colic/reflux and difficulties in 
crawling/walking to many of the “Alphabet Soup” disorders like ADHD, ASD, LD, and SPD.  
Students will also have an understanding of specific history taking and examination procedures 
to special types of chiropractic adjusting, functional neurological exercises, and dietary 
changes.   

 

65



 
ICPA Module Outline 

Pediatric Alphabet Soup: ASD, ADHD, LD, PDD, SPD…what they mean & how to care 

for them 

Drew Rubin, BS, DC, CCSP, DACCP 
 

Course Objective: A course designed to raise your awareness in dealing with kids with all kinds 
of “Alphabet Soup” diagnosis from a board certified ICPA doc with over 26 years’ experience.   
He will cover all phases of care of the child ranging from Autism through ADHD, incorporating 
chiropractic with concepts from, functional neurology, occupational therapy, and the latest in 
nutrition.   

 
 
 
Hour 1:  Autistic spectrum disorders  
Autism, PDD (Pervasive Developmental Disorders) & Asperger’s vs. Learning based issues: ADHD 
(Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder), LD (Learning Disorders), Dyslexia, SPD (Sensory 
Processing Disorders), NLD (Non Verbal Learning Disorder).  How to do a complete history and 
exam, to get all the facts you need to start a care plan for this special need population.  

     (Examination Procedures/Diagnosis) 
 
Hour 2:  Functional Neurology  
Functional neurology as applied to pediatrics and the special needs population.   Primitive Reflex 
Charts- how to place a child on the chart to determine if their chronological age matches their 
neurodevelopmental age, based on the work of The Institutes, Goddard and Melillo.  Focus on 
assessment of primitive reflexes and left/right brain exercises of the pre-school and elementary 
school age child.  Hands-on. 

(Examination Procedures/Diagnosis) 
 

Hours 3:  Infant/toddler special needs: latching/nursing problems, tongue-tie, reflux/colic, and 
torticollis, difficulties in crawling, walking & talking, including assessment from a functional 
neurology perspective.  How to refresh reflexes that are missing or sluggish in a newborn, and 
eliminate them in an older baby/toddler, to get past these issues.  Hands-on. 
                                       (Examination Procedures/Diagnosis)  
 
Hour  4:  Infant/toddler special needs adjusting: Specific adjustments for latching/nursing 
problems, tongue-tie, reflux/colic, and torticollis, difficulties in crawling, walking & talking.  
Includes TMJ , cranial, sustained contact & infant toggle headpiece.  The use of brushing to 
reintegrate or extinguish primitive reflexes.  Hands-on 
                                                        (Adjustive Technique) 
 

Hours 5: Early detection of Autism and other brain-based issues in at-risk kids: The grasp test 
and eye gazing test for children under age 1.  How to differentiate atypical from typical patterns 
of behavior.  Assessment of joint attention and social attributions.  Use of standardized tests 
such as the MCHAT 

                                (Examination Procedures/Diagnosis) 

66



 
 
 
Hours 6: Pediatric Neurodiversity.  Combination of chiropractic, diet, and neurological 
based exercises.  Hands on 10 minute neurodevelopmental exam for the preschooler and school 
age child.   Biofeedback (such as Heart Math and Stress check), Metronome, and other 
interactive apps available for free or low cost on phones/tablets that can create a new way to 
deal with these children.  Hands on. 
     (Examination Procedures/Diagnosis) 
 
 

Hour 7: Pre-school and elementary age children.  Certain issues surface at different 
times, such as Autism, ADHD, SPD and LD.  How to work with comorbidities such as 
Bipolar, OCD,  Anxiety, and Tourette’s.  Exercises to be given to this age child to 
extinguish retained primitive reflexes. Hands on.  
 

     (Examination Procedures/Diagnosis) 

 
 
Hour 8: Preconception: The new science of how to create the healthiest possible pregnancy, 
especially if the family is at high risk for a neurodevelopmentally challenged child (ie, high 
maternal age, siblings or other kids with issues).  The 8 step program to improved fertility (based 
on the Foresight program and the work of Dr. David Berger).  
                                                                                         (Adjustive Technique) 
 
Hour 9-10: Instrument adjusting: Instrument adjusting for the pediatric population.  Specific 
adjustments for a variety of issues like Torticollis and Toe walking. Use of challenge to confirm 
listings.   Use of infant toggle headpiece (as originally taught by Dr. Larry Webster).  Hands-on. 
                                                                                                                                      (Adjustive Technique) 

 
 
 
Hour 11:   Cranial adjusting, modifying your adjustments for special needs kids.  
Gentle low force adjusting for children, based on Phillips work.  Modifying your 
adjustments for special needs kids. Hands-on. 
 

                                                                                                                               (Adjustive Technique)  
 
 
Hour 12: Pediatric Adjusting Algorithms...how to best choose what technique would work for  
what child.  Does a child with Autism benefit from the same adjustment as the child with OCD?  
 Where do you start with a child who won't even lie face down on the table?  When should we  
use manual adjusting versus instrument versus non force adjustments ? Decision trees on when 
to do what to whom.  Differential adjusting table based on Dr. Larry Webster's work as to what 
areas to adjust for specific issues.   

       (Adjustive Technique)  

67



Dr. Drew Rubin, Chiropractor 

License/ Certification GA License # 6579--- active status, also licensed in NY and NJ 

Advanced degrees:  Fellow candidate, American Board of Childhood Neurodevelopmental  
Disorders, 2012 

                                   Diplomate, International Chiropractic Pediatric Association (DACCP), 2008 

                                   Activator Methods, Advanced Proficiency Rated, 2009 

                                   Certified in the Webster In-Utero Constraint Technique, 2001 

                                   Certified Chiropractic Sports Practitioner (CCSP), 1992 

Education 

 

1989 Life Chiropractic College 

Doctorate of Chiropractic  

1985   State University of New York at Albany 
Bachelor of Biology 

Speaking/Teaching 

Experience 

 

Life University: Adjunct Faculty, Pediatric Diagnosis (2001-present), Chiropractic Principles (2001-
2002), Adjusting Special Populations (2008-2010), Advanced Pediatric Diagnosis and Technique 
Electives (2010-present), Pediatric Mental Health (2011), Pediatric Health Challenges (2012-
present) 

Life Leadership Weekend/Life Force 1000 Speaker, 2010, 2011, 2013 

Postgraduate Faculty for Life University, 2002-2008 & 2011-2012: “Pediatrics A-Z”, “Whole Life 

Chiropractic”, “Pediatric Alphabet Soup” 

Life University Homecoming, 2002-2007, 2011-2012 

LifeSource, January and April 2004, April 2005, October 2005, April 2007, July 2007 

Virginia Chiropractic Society Annual Convention, September 2005 

Numerous state organizations for philosophy nights (NY, NJ, MA, etc.) 

Sherman College of Chiropractic Student Triune (2001) 

New Beginnings Chiropractic Philosophy Weekend (1997-2004) 

Chiropediatric University on the Road Teleclasses  (1998-2000)  

Canadian Memorial Chiropractic College (Circle of Innate) 2000 

Life Chiropractic College Gonstead Club Sergeant-At-Arms (1987-1988) Secretary (1988-1989) 

Office: 255 Village Parkway, 
Suite 620 
Marietta, GA  30067 
Work Phone: 770-937-6300 

E-mail:   
rubinchiropractic@gmail.com 
Website: www.theadjustment.com 

68

mailto:rubinchiropractic@gmail.com


Television/Radio/News  

Fox News Network, Family Talk (CN8); Bergen Outlook; Body, Mind and Spirit Show, WINS, 
WJUX (Athens, GA), Marietta Daily Journal, WKSU (Kennesaw University)  

Professional experience 

March 1990, opened practice in Cresskill, NJ, delivering over 100,000 adjustments and 
introducing over 2000 patients to subluxation-based chiropractic care, including 100+ pregnant 
patients and 600+ children (30% of practice is children).   

August 2001, opened office in Marietta, GA, with a focus on families, pregnant women and 
children, in which over 30% of practice is children and 70% are families. 

Writing experience 

The Adjustment- A Novel, September 1998, The Acceptance, 2004 (sequel), 23 Lessons from my 
Dad 2005, It’s a small world 2006, 23 Lessons from my Parents, 2012. 

Professional 

memberships/advisory 

boards/awards 

 

Life University, Class of Fall 2010-Class of June 2012, Most Influential Faculty Award- 7 quarters 
in a row, June 2013 

ACC-RAC Reviewer, 2009-present 

Delphi Panel, Pediatric Consensus on Best Practices, 2009 

ICPA, 2008-present; Academy of Family Practice Advisory Board 

JVSR/JFMPH, 2008-present; Peer Reviewer for Pediatric and Pregnancy related articles 

ICA, 1985-present; ICPA, 1993-present  

Parents for Freedom of Vaccine Choice, Founder, 1994-present 

 

Research/Publications 

ACC/RAC conference, Washington, D.C., March 2006, Poster presentation on: Effective 
Determination of a Seriously Ill Child Using the Yale Observation Scale: A Chiropractic Case 
Study 

JVSR, February 2007, article published: Effective Determination of a Seriously Ill Child Using the 
Yale Observation Scale: A Chiropractic Case Study 

ACC/RAC conference, Phoenix, Arizona, March 2007, Poster presentation on: Triage in a 
Chiropractic Pediatric Practice 

Journal of Chiropractic Medicine, September 2007, article published: Triage in a Chiropractic 
Pediatric Practice 

ACC/RAC conference, Washington, D.C., March 2008, Platform presentation on: The 
Effectiveness of the Activator Adjusting Instrument on a 16 Year Old Elite Gymnast With Lower 
Back Pain 

ACC/RAC conference, Las Vegas, Nevada, March 2009, Poster Presentation on The Use of the 
Infant Toggle Headpiece in a Chiropractic Pediatric Practice 

ACC/RAC conference, Las Vegas, Nevada, March 2010, Poster Presentation on: Resolution of In 
Utero Constraint using the Activator Adjusting Instrument 

Journal of Pediatric, Family, and Maternal Health, Winter 2010, article published: Resolution of In 
Utero Constraint using the Activator Adjusting Instrument 

Journal of Chiropractic Medicine, April 2010, article published: 21st Century Pediatric Injuries: 4 
Cases of ‘Wii-it is’ Resolves Under Chiropractic Care 

69



ACC/RAC conference, Las Vegas, Nevada, March 2011, Platform Presentation: Current 
Status of Pediatric Education in Accredited Chiropractic Colleges 
 
ACC/RAC conference, Las Vegas, Nevada, March 2012, Platform Presentation: Student 
Rating of the Importance of Advanced Pediatric Education in Chiropractic Institutions 
 
ACC/RAC conference, Washington, DC, March 2013, Platform Presentation: The Use of 
Debate in a Chiropractic Classroom Setting 
 

 

Extracurricular 

Activities 

 

Head Coach, Riverwood High School Roller Hockey Club, 2008-2011 

Inline Roller Hockey Coach, Northeast Cobb YMCA, March 2006-2008 

Coach’s Award, Northeast Cobb YMCA Inline Roller Hockey League, April 2007 

Inline Roller Hockey Adult Men’s League, Player 2005-2011; 4 championship teams 2006-2010 

 

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

370



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

MOTION WORDING: 

“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 

confidential;  OR 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR  
Board only to remain during session.” 

Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 

371



 

  Enrolled SB 69 

LAWS OF ALASKA 
 

2016 
 
 
 

Source Chapter No. 
CSSB 69(FIN) _______ 
 
 
 
 

AN ACT 
 
Relating to the Board of Chiropractic Examiners and the practice of chiropractic. 
 
 

_______________ 
 
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF ALASKA: 
 
 
 

THE ACT FOLLOWS ON PAGE 1

372



373



 

 -1- Enrolled SB 69 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AN ACT 
 
 
Relating to the Board of Chiropractic Examiners and the practice of chiropractic. 1 

_______________ 2 

   * Section 1. AS 08.20.055 is amended to read: 3 

Sec. 08.20.055. Board regulations. The board shall adopt [SUBSTANTIVE] 4 

regulations necessary to effect the provisions of this chapter, including regulations 5 

establishing standards for  6 

(1)  continuing education; [AND]  7 

(2)  the application, performance, and evaluation of chiropractic core 8 

methodology; 9 

(3)  the training, qualifications, scope of practice, and employment 10 

of chiropractic interns and chiropractic preceptors; 11 

(4)  the designation of one or more nationally recognized 12 

certification programs for chiropractic clinical assistants; and 13 

374



 

Enrolled SB 69 -2-  

(5)  the performance of patient examinations authorized under 1 

AS 08.20.100(b). 2 

   * Sec. 2. AS 08.20.100(b) is amended to read: 3 

(b)  A person licensed under this chapter may  4 

(1)  analyze, diagnose, or treat the chiropractic condition of a patient by 5 

chiropractic core methodology or by ancillary methodology;  6 

(2)  accept referrals for [CHIROPRACTIC] treatment by chiropractic 7 

core methodology or by ancillary methodology;  8 

(3)  consult on chiropractic matters;  9 

(4)  refer patients to other health care professionals;  10 

(5)  perform, [SIGN (A)] within the scope of chiropractic practice, 11 

[CERTIFICATES OF] physical examinations of [FOR] children for school physical 12 

examinations and preparticipation physical examinations for sports and school 13 

activities [BEFORE THEY ENTER SCHOOL];  14 

(6)  sign 15 

(A) [(B)]  reports for excuses from employment and from 16 

attendance at school or participation in sports activities; and  17 

(B) [(C)]  authorizations for sick leave;  18 

(7) [(6)]  perform preemployment and workplace health examinations;  19 

(8) [(7)]  provide disability and physical impairment ratings;  20 

(9)  [AND (8)] provide retirement health and disability authorizations 21 

and recommendations;  22 

(10)  employ nationally certified chiropractic clinical assistants; 23 

and 24 

(11)  employ chiropractic interns and chiropractic preceptors. 25 

   * Sec. 3. AS 08.20.100 is amended by adding a new subsection to read: 26 

(d)  This section does not apply to a chiropractic intern who is acting within the 27 

scope of practice authorized by the board and is under the personal supervision of a 28 

licensed chiropractor. 29 

   * Sec. 4. AS 08.20.160 is amended to read: 30 

Sec. 08.20.160. Temporary permits. Temporary permits may be issued to 31 

375



 

 -3- Enrolled SB 69 

[PERSONS APPARENTLY] qualified applicants until the next regular meeting of 1 

the board.  2 

   * Sec. 5. AS 08.20 is amended by adding a new section to read: 3 

Sec. 08.20.168. Chiropractic clinical assistant. (a) Enrollment in or 4 

completion of a nationally recognized certification program under AS 08.20.055(4) is 5 

required to practice as a chiropractic clinical assistant in this state. 6 

(b)  A person who meets the requirement under (a) of this section may, under 7 

the general supervision of a person licensed under this chapter, 8 

(1)  perform diagnostic imaging studies; 9 

(2)  use ancillary methodologies; and 10 

(3)  perform procedures. 11 

   * Sec. 6. AS 08.20.185 is amended to read: 12 

Sec. 08.20.185. Utilization [PEER] review committee; confidentiality. (a) 13 

The [IN ADDITION TO PEER REVIEW AUTHORIZED UNDER AS 08.01.075, 14 

THE] board may establish a utilization [PEER] review committee to review 15 

complaints concerning the reasonableness or appropriateness of care provided, fees 16 

charged, or costs for services rendered by a licensee to a patient. A review conducted 17 

by a utilization [PEER] review committee under this section may be used 18 

[UTILIZED] by the board in considering disciplinary action against a licensee, but the 19 

results or recommendations of a utilization [PEER] review committee are not binding 20 

on [UPON] the board. A member of a utilization [PEER] review committee 21 

established under this section who in good faith submits a report under this section or 22 

participates in an investigation or judicial proceeding related to a report submitted 23 

under this section is immune from civil liability for the submission or participation.  24 

(b)  The board shall charge a complainant a fee, established under 25 

AS 08.01.065, for utilization [PEER] review under this section.  26 

(c)  Patient records presented to a utilization [PEER] review committee for 27 

review under this section that were confidential before their presentation to the 28 

committee are confidential to the committee members and to the board members and 29 

are not subject to inspection or copying under AS 40.25.110 - 40.25.125. A committee 30 

member or board member to whom confidential records are presented under this 31 

376



 

Enrolled SB 69 -4-  

subsection shall maintain the confidentiality of the records. A person who violates this 1 

subsection is guilty of a class B misdemeanor.  2 

   * Sec. 7. AS 08.20 is amended by adding a new section to article 2 to read: 3 

Sec. 08.20.195. Limitation of practice. A person licensed under this chapter 4 

or a person who is practicing as a chiropractic intern, chiropractic clinical assistant, or 5 

chiropractic preceptor under this chapter may act only within the scope of practice 6 

authorized by the board. 7 

   * Sec. 8. AS 08.20.200 is amended to read: 8 

Sec. 08.20.200. Unlicensed practice [A MISDEMEANOR]. A person who 9 

practices chiropractic in the state without a license in violation of AS 08.20.100 is 10 

guilty of a class A misdemeanor and may be punished as provided in AS 12.55 [, 11 

AND UPON CONVICTION IS PUNISHABLE BY A FINE OF NOT MORE THAN 12 

$1,000, OR BY IMPRISONMENT FOR NOT MORE THAN A YEAR, OR BY 13 

BOTH].  14 

   * Sec. 9. AS 08.20.210 is amended to read: 15 

Sec. 08.20.210. Fraudulent licenses and certificates. A person who obtains 16 

or attempts to obtain a chiropractic license or provides the board with evidence that 17 

the person is nationally certified to practice as a chiropractic clinical assistant 18 

[CERTIFICATE] by dishonest or fraudulent means [,] or who forges, counterfeits, or 19 

fraudulently alters a chiropractic license or chiropractic clinical assistant certificate 20 

issued by a nationally recognized certification program is guilty of a class A 21 

misdemeanor and is punishable as provided in AS 12.55 [BY A FINE OF NOT 22 

MORE THAN $500, OR BY IMPRISONMENT FOR NOT MORE THAN SIX 23 

MONTHS, OR BY BOTH].  24 

   * Sec. 10. AS 08.20.900(7) is amended to read: 25 

(7)  "chiropractic examination" means an examination of a patient 26 

conducted by [OR UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF] a person licensed under this 27 

chapter, or by a chiropractic clinical assistant or chiropractic intern under the 28 

supervision of a person licensed under this chapter, for the express purpose of 29 

ascertaining whether symptoms of subluxation complex exist and consisting of an 30 

analysis of the patient's health history, current health status, results of diagnostic 31 

377



 

 -5- Enrolled SB 69 

procedures, including x-ray and other diagnostic imaging devices, and postural, 1 

thermal, physical, neuro-physical, and spinal examinations that focuses on the 2 

discovery of  3 

(A)  the existence and etiology of disrelationships of skeletal 4 

joint structures; and  5 

(B)  interference with normal nerve transmission and 6 

expression;  7 

   * Sec. 11. AS 08.20.900 is amended by adding new paragraphs to read: 8 

(11)  "chiropractic clinical assistant" means a person who works under 9 

the general supervision of a person licensed under this chapter and who is  10 

(A)  enrolled in a nationally recognized certification program 11 

that certifies chiropractic clinical assistants; or  12 

(B)  certified by a national organization that certifies 13 

chiropractic clinical assistants; 14 

(12)  "chiropractic intern" means a person who is engaged in the 15 

practice of chiropractic while under the personal supervision of a person licensed 16 

under this chapter for the purpose of obtaining practical experience for licensure as a 17 

chiropractor; 18 

(13)  "chiropractic preceptor" means a person who is licensed under 19 

this chapter and who participates in the instruction and training of chiropractic interns. 20 

378



Proposed Changes to Chapter 16, Article 2 
In accordance with SB 69 
 

(Words in boldface and underlined indicate language being added; words [CAPITALIZED 

AND BRACKETED] indicate language being deleted.  Complete new sections are not 

underlined.) 

 

12 AAC 16.____ (add new section for certified chiropractic clinical assistants): 

12 AAC 16.___. APPLICATION FOR CERTIFIED CHIROPRACTIC CLINICAL 

ASSISTANT BY EXAMINATION. (a)  The Board may approve an applicant for 

certification as a chiropractic clinical assistant by examination who meets the requirements 

of AS 08.20.055(4), AS 08.20.168, and this section if the applicant submits 

(1)  a complete notarized application on a form provided by the 

department including 

(A) the applicant’s name, mailing address, telephone number, and date of 

birth  

(B) a signed statement indicating that a high school diploma or equivalent 

has been earned 

(C) a complete response to professional fitness questions regarding criminal 

and professional conduct history   

(D) a signed statement of responsibility from the supervising chiropractor 

licensed under this chapter;  

(2) the applicable fees established in 12 AAC 02.150; 

(3) verification of completing the Certified Chiropractic Clinical Assistant Program 

(CCCA) administered by the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards (FCLB) 

or an equivalent nationally recognized program 

 (A) if a certificate of completion has not yet been issued, an applicant under 

this section must submit a verification of enrollment  

 (B) an acceptable equivalent program will be determined by the Board in 

accordance with AS 08.20.055(4); 

(4) a criminal background check from the applicant’s state of residence and from 

the state of Alaska, and; 

(5) completes a technical examination prepared and administered by the Board 

 (b) An individual approved for certification under section (a) of this chapter must submit 

an application for renewal in accordance with 12 AAC 16.290. 

379



Proposed Changes to Chapter 16, Article 2 
In accordance with SB 69 
 

12 AAC 16.___. APPLICATION FOR CERTIFIED CHIROPRACTIC CLINICAL 

ASSISTANT BY CREDENTIALS. (a)  The Board may approve an applicant for 

certification as a chiropractic clinical assistant by credentials who meets the requirements 

of AS 08.20.055(4), AS 08.20.168, and this section if the applicant submits 

(1)  a complete notarized application on a form provided by the 

department including 

(A) the applicant’s name, mailing address, telephone number, and date of 

birth  

(B) a signed statement indicating that a high school diploma or equivalent 

has been earned 

(C) a complete response to professional fitness questions regarding criminal 

and professional conduct history   

(D) a signed statement of responsibility from the supervising chiropractor 

licensed under this chapter;  

(2) the applicable fees established in 12 AAC 02.150; 

(3) verification of completing the Certified Chiropractic Clinical Assistant Program 

(CCCA) administered by the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards (FCLB) 

or an equivalent nationally recognized program  

 (A) the verification must indicate compliance with CCCA continuing 

education 

(B) an acceptable equivalent program will be determined by the Board in 

accordance with AS 08.20.055(4); 

(4) a criminal background check from the applicant’s state of residence and from 

the state of Alaska; 

(5) verification of certification as a certified chiropractic clinical assistant issued by 

another state licensing agency  

(6) completes a technical examination prepared and administered by the Board 

 (b) An individual approved for certification under section (a) of this chapter must submit 

an application for renewal in accordance with 12 AAC 16.290. 

 

 

380



Proposed Changes to Chapter 16, Article 2 
In accordance with SB 69 
 

 

12 AAC 16.290 (amended to add a new section): 

(g) an applicant for renewal of a certified clinical chiropractic assistant who has been 

licensed for at least two years must complete six hours of continuing education activity, 

including the following: 

 (1) two hours in foundational knowledge 

 (2) two hours in patient safety and procedures 

 (3) one hour in documentation 

 (4) one hour in ethics and boundaries 

(h) an applicant for renewal of a certified clinical chiropractic assistant who has been 

licensed for less than two years is exempt from completing continuing education activity. 

(i) applicants for renewal under (g) of this section must certify that continuing education 

compliance with FCLB’s CCCA program or equivalent have been met 

 

12 AAC 16.____ (add new section for interns): 

12 AAC 16.___. APPLICATION FOR CHIROPRACTIC INTERN 

REGISTRATION. (a)  The Board may approve an applicant for certification as a 

chiropractic intern for the purpose of obtaining practical chiropractic experience if the 

applicant submits 

(1) a complete notarized application on a form provided by the 

department including 

(A) the applicant’s name, mailing address, telephone number, and date of 

birth  

(B) a signed statement attesting to graduate level enrollment at an accredited 

academic chiropractic institution  

(C) a complete response to professional fitness questions regarding criminal 

and professional conduct history   

(D) a signed statement of responsibility from the chiropractic preceptor 

licensed under this chapter and who meets the requirements of 12 AAC 16____;  

(2) the applicable fees established in 12 AAC 02.150; 

(3) transcripts from an accredited academic chiropractic institution issued no 

381



Proposed Changes to Chapter 16, Article 2 
In accordance with SB 69 
 

earlier than three months preceding the date of application 

(b) if approved by the Board, the intern may practice under a chiropractic 

preceptor for a period of no more than six months or until the date of the next 

scheduled jurisprudence examination 

 (A) a written request for extension of an intern registration may be extended 

upon approval of the Board 

 (B) if pursing licensure in this chapter under 12 AAC 16.030, the intern 

applicant must meet the state chiropractic examination score established in 12 AAC 

16.130(c)  

 (C) if an intern applicant applying for licensure under 12 AAC 16.030 fails 

the state chiropractic examination, a request compliant with 12 AAC 16.150 can be 

made to the Board 

 

12 AAC 16.___. APPLICATION FOR CHIROPRACTIC PRECEPTOR 

APPROVAL. (a)  The Board may approve an applicant licensed under this chapter as a 

chiropractic preceptor if the applicant submits 

(1) a complete notarized application on a form provided by the 

department including 

(A) the applicant’s name, mailing address, telephone number, and date of 

birth  

(B) a complete response to professional fitness questions regarding criminal 

and professional conduct history   

(C) a signed statement of responsibility acknowledging the scope of practice 

established in AS 08.20.900 

 (2) an attestation of good moral character completed by an individual who is not a 

consanguineal relative of the applicant;  

 (3) the applicable fees established in 12 AAC 02.150; 

(b) an applicant under this section must have been licensed under this chapter for no less 

than three years preceding the date of application 

 

 

382



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______  Tab #______ Topic: __________________________________ 

Primary Motion 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

383



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

384



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #7 
 

Division Update/Budget Report 
 

 

 

385



FY 10 FY 11 FY 12 FY 13  FY 14  FY 15 
 FY16

1st - 3rd Qtr 

Licensing Revenue 35,295         139,294       34,529        144,686          24,503            146,375               17,835                  
Allowable Third Party Reimbursement* -                    -                    -                   -                       537                  557                       -                             
Total Revenue 35,295         139,294       34,529        144,686          25,039            146,932               17,835                  

Direct Expenditures
          Personal Services 44,397         60,992         58,635        33,003            49,928            54,744                  41,956                  
          Travel 18,662         16,889         18,169        11,866            17,350            15,990                  6,001                    
          Contractual 18,600         20,873         4,526          3,747               13,399            12,687                  2,846                    
          Supplies 314               31                 255              233                  325                  80                         26                         
          Equipment -                    -                    -                   -                       -                   -                        -                             
Total Direct Expenditures 81,973         98,786         81,585        48,848            81,001            83,502                  50,828                  

Indirect Expenditures** 14,651         13,247         17,238        21,128            23,695            31,212                  23,409                  

Total Expenses 96,624         112,033       98,823        69,977            104,695          114,713               74,237                  

Annual Surplus (Deficit) (61,329)        27,261         (64,294)       74,709            (79,656)           32,219                  (56,402)                

Beginning Cumulative Surplus (Deficit) 103,997       42,668         69,930        5,635               80,344            688                       32,907                  

Ending Cumulative Surplus (Deficit) 42,668         69,930         5,635          80,344            688                  32,907                  (23,495)                

*The allocation of the allowable third party reimbursements, up to $50,000, will be completed at year-end

**Current year indirect costs are based on the prior fiscal year's total budgeted amount.  These costs are averaged over the current fiscal year, then adjusted after the close of the year.

Board of Chiropractic Examiners
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

386



Activity Name Board of Chiropractic Examiners

Object Code Object Name Sum of Expenditures
1011 Regular Compensation 22,727                          
1016 Other Premium Pay 7                                    
1023 Leave Taken 3,524                            
1028 Alaska Supplemental Benefit 1,613                            
1029 Public Employee's Retirement System Defined Benefits 3,380                            
1030 Public Employee's Retirement System Defined Contribution 569                               
1034 Public Employee's Retirement System Defined Cont Health Reim 462                               
1035 Public Employee's Retiremnt Sys Defined Cont Retiree Medical 183                               
1037 Public Employee's Retiremnt Sys Defined Benefit Unfnd Liab 1,183                            
1039 Unemployment Insurance 80                                  
1040 Group Health Insurance 6,624                            
1041 Basic Life and Travel 17                                  
1042 Worker's Compensation Insurance 276                               
1047 Leave Cash In Employer Charge 600                               
1048 Terminal Leave Employer Charge 302                               
1053 Medicare Tax 367                               
1077 ASEA Legal Trust 38                                  
1079 ASEA Injury Leave Usage 2                                    
1080 SU Legal Trst 2                                    
2000 In-State Employee Airfare 515                               
2001 In-State Employee Surface Transportation 3                                    
2002 In-State Employee Lodging 75                                  
2003 In-State Employee Meals and Incidentals 111                               
2008 In-State Non-Employee Meals and Incidentals 412                               
2009 In-State Non-Employee Taxable Per Diem 150                               
2010 In-State Non-Employee Non-Taxable Reimbursement 2,787                            
2020 Out-State Non-Employee Meals and Incidentals 226                               
2022 Out-State Non-Employee Non-Taxable Reimbursement 1,720                            
2036 Cash Advance Fee 2                                    
3002 Memberships 1,315                            
3044 Courier 7                                    
3045 Postage 61                                  
3046 Advertising 339                               
3057 Structure, Infrastructure and Land - Rentals/Leases 327                               
3069 Commission Sales 9                                    
3088 Inter-Agency Legal 378                               
3094 Inter-Agency Hearing/Mediation 410                               
4002 Business Supplies 26                                  
Grand Total 50,828                          

Grand Total Equals Direct Expenditures on Board Report

387



Please note: This is not an official CBPL document, but was created to give the Board a visual of 

license trends. These numbers reflect only newly issued licenses and does not depict the total 

license count for this program.   

Ten-year license/certification trend for the 

Alaska Board of Chiropractic Examiners 

(2006 – 2016) 

Year 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 l
ic

e
n

s
e

s
 i
s

s
u

e
d

 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Courtesy

Temporary

Chiropractor by Exam

Chiropractor by Credentials

Locum Tenens

388



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

389



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

MOTION WORDING: 

“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 

confidential;  OR 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR  
Board only to remain during session.” 

Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 

390



Agenda Item #8 

Old Business 

391



 
Goal 1: Carry out assigned duties of the board:  
 
Objective 1:  Conduct a minimum of three board meetings a year and rotate the  location of the 

meetings between different regions of the state.  
Objective 2: Continue licensing chiropractic physicians and processing applications in a timely 

manner.  
Objective 3: Review investigative reports, monitor disciplinary actions and provide professional 

direction to Division investigative staff regarding disciplinary actions, probation 
matters, criminal history record information and chiropractic practice.  

Objective 4: Utilize the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners (NBCE) Special Purposes 
Examination for Chiropractic (SPEC) and Ethics & Boundaries Examination (E&B) in 
memorandum of agreements.  

Objective 5: Continue to review and process requests for continuing education credit approval in a 
timely manner.  

Objective 6:  Continue to administer the jurisprudence exam concurrent with Board   
   meetings and to include candidate interviews as part of the examination.  
 
Goal 2: Provide information regarding board activities to the profession and the public.  
 
Objective 1:  Inform all licensees of any pending regulation changes in the customary  
   manner.  
Objective 2:  Provide a public comment period at each meeting.  
Objective 3:  Address concerns presented by licensees and the public at each meeting.  
Objective 4:  Provide copies of agendas and/or minutes of the meetings to all who  
   request them.  
Objective 5:  Continue to work with other licensing boards, at both the district and  
   national level.  
Objective 6:  Continue to address the reporting requirements for domestic violence and  
   sexual assault.  
Objective 7: Support efforts to educate the public regarding the benefit of chiropractic care as a 

health care form.  
Objective 8:   Raise awareness regarding public health, emergency training, hazardous  
   materials and OSHA requirements.  
Objective 9:  Ensure current information is available on the Board website through  
   regular updates by staff and regular monitoring by Board members.  
 
Goal 3: Continue affiliation with the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) to work cooperatively in the 
best interest of the profession and the public.  
 
Objective 1:  Encourage regular Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS)    
   participation at Board meetings.  
Objective 2:   Support the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) in its efforts to provide  
   information to the profession and the public.  
Objective 3:  Support the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) in its efforts in pursuing  

392



   statutory changes relevant to the profession and public safety.  
Objective 4:   Support the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) in pursuing statutory 

authority for licensing chiropractic assistants, technicians and interns/preceptors.  
Objective 5:  Support the Alaska Chiropractic Society (ACS) in its efforts in pursuing a statutory 

change to allow for animal chiropractic in cooperation with the Veterinary Board.  
 
Goal 4: Access and evaluate regulations. 
 
Objective 1:  Continue to assess and evaluate continuing education requirements. 
Objective 2:  Continue to assess and evaluate radiological safety, professional ethics and 
  boundaries, public health and emergency training. 
Objective 3: Proactively make recommendations through regulations to anticipate changes in the 

health industry. 
 
Goal 5: Assess and evaluate the review process available through the Peer Review Committee.  
 
Objective 1:   Refine procedures for committee review of cases and the reporting  

process; consider establishing criteria (guidelines) for utilization review under 12 
AAC 16.430.  

Objective 2:   Direct review inquiries to the committee.  
Objective 3:   Keep the committee roster fully staffed with three chiropractors and one  
   public member at all times.  
 
Goal 6: Continue affiliation with the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards (FCLB), the 
National Board of Chiropractic Examiners (NBCE), the Association of Chiropractic Board 
Administrators (ACBA), and the Council on Chiropractic Education (CCE), as well as the Council 
on Licensure, Enforcement and Regulation (CLEAR) and the Federation of Associations of  
Regulatory Boards (FARB):  
 
Objective 1:  Promote attendance of Board members and staff at district and annual meetings of  
  the FCLB and NBCE in order to provide input and obtain information at both  
  national and state levels regarding matters impacting Alaska Chiropractors.  
Objective 2: Work with the FCLB on maintaining a listing of Alaskan Chiropractors on the National 

Database (CIN-BAD).  
Objective 3: Promote attendance of Board members at the semi-annual NBCE Part IV Examinations and 

Part IV Examination Review committee meetings of the NBCE to provide input and obtain 
information on the Exams required for chiropractic licensure in Alaska.  

Objective 4: Promote attendance of the Licensing Examiner at the annual meetings of the ACBA and 
FCLB to provide input and obtain information at both national and state levels regarding 
matters impacting the regulation and licensure of Alaskan Chiropractors.  

Objective 5: Promote attendance by Board members and staff at the annual CLEAR and/or FARB 
conferences.  

 

393



Goal 7: The Board will endeavor, through the legislative process, to add the Board of Chiropractic 
Examiners to relevant centralized and non-centralized statutes that enhance the profession and its 
administrative efficiency. 

Objective 1: The Board will pursue authority to utilize National Criminal History Record checks 
under AS 12.62.200, and will pursue similar authority under AS 08.20. 

Objective 2: The Board will pursue inclusion into AS 08.01.050(d) for the purpose of providing 
licensed chiropractors the resources needed to address abuse of alcohol, drugs, or 
other substances. 

394



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

395



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

396



ALASKA BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS 
POSITION STATEMENT: ADVERTISEMENT OF FREE SERVICES 
 
Date: 
 
Status:   
 
Organized by:   
 
Adopted by: 
 
PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this position statement is to discourage the public advertisement of free 
services at a chiropractic office, including but not limited to: x-rays, examinations, therapies 
or other services.  Free offerings of appliances, vitamins and other non-service items are not 
condemned. 
 
HISTORY: 
Advertising of chiropractic services has historically been a source of friction in the 
chiropractic community.  Recently, a complaint by a chiropractic office regarding the 
advertisement by another office for free x-rays and examinations was made verbally to a 
Board member, expressing the feeling that this form of advertisement demeaned the 
profession, and lessened the seriousness of examination and x-ray.  It was also stated that 
this type of offer might lead to a “no-out-of-pocket-expense” (NOOPE) scheme where 
insurance would be billed, but the patient would not be charged. 
 
SUPPORTIVE MATERIAL: 
None available. 
 
SUMMARY: 
As there is very little public distinction between chiropractic practices and chiropractic is 
often categorized, unfairly, as a “one service” profession, the Board is sympathetic to the 
need for many chiropractic offices to advertise services publicly.  NOOPE schemes are not 
allowed.  The Board agrees that advertising free services, although not specifically 
prohibited, promotes an unfavorable public perception of the profession and lends to 
confusion.  Free public or in-office “screenings” are encouraged and supported. 

397



ALASKA BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS 
POSITION STATEMENT: INJECTABLE NUTRIENTS 

Date: 

Status:  

Organized by:  

Adopted by: 

PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this statement is to support the use of injectable nutrients by qualified 
Chiropractic Phyisicians. 

STATEMENT: 
The ABOCE supports the use of injectable nutrients by Chiropractic Physicians with 
appropriate training.  Although the Alaska Chiropractic Statutes and Regulations do not 
specifically mention injectable nutrients, the chiropractic profession has historically been an 
authority on nutrition for Alaskans to rely upon when consulting for health care needs and 
issues, and nutrition science is part of the core curriculum training of Chiropractic 
Physicians.  As the science of nutrition evolves, the method of application of vitamins, 
minerals and homeopathic solutions may change, and the ABOCE supports new methods 
with appropriate training.  

HISTORY: 
The issue of chiropractic use of injectable nutrients has been discussed by the Board since 
2006 when Dr. John Shannon, Chiropractic Physician licensed in Alaska, first came to the 
Board for approval of this treatment method.  Since that time, there has been at least one 
Board letter allowing the procedure and an opinion from the State Ombudsman’s office 
stating that the law is vague enough to allow the treatment. 

The definition of Chiropractic describes a healing method which does not use “prescription 
drugs or surgery”.  Since those regulations were established, vitamins have been labeled a 
drug by certain governmental agencies, and in 2010, the State of Alaska added to the 
Chiropractic Regulations that any substance which had the label “Warning, Federal law 
prohibits the use without prescription”, could not be prescribed by a chiropractor.  The 
ABOCE believes that the Statutes and Regulations regarding Chiropractic should be 
modernized to specifically allow certain substances and devices with this label to be used by 
Chiropractic Physicians in Alaska, and had not anticipated these changes in a timely manner 

398



in order to prevent this situation.  Also, a testimony in front of the Board (telephonically) on 
July 12, 2013 by Todd Araujo, Esq. from the Attorney General’s office, urged the Board to 
condemn the use of injectable nutrients because it was not part of Chiropractic “core 
curriculum”, and when sterile water is added to a vitamin, it becomes a “prescription drug”.  
The Board, however, maintains that the science of nutrition is part of the core curriculum 
training of Chiropractic Physicians, and the method of application: oral, parenteral or 
injectable, is something a Chiropractic Physician may study and learn to provide safely to 
patients. 

SUPPORTIVE MATERIAL: 
Statute Sec. 08.20.900(1) “ancillary methodology”; methods, procedures, modalities, devices, 
and measures commonly used by trained and licensed health care providers”; “counseling on 
dietary regimen”.  

SUMMARY: 
Chiropractic Physicians are trained in nutrition as part of their core education and have 
historically been a professional source for nutritional advice and treatment by Alaskans.  
Current Statutes and Regulations for the Chiropractic profession in Alaska should be 
modernized to specifically allow chiropractors to continue to provide quality service and in 
the manner and form that patient’s health condition may require.  The ABOCE will work 
with the Alaska Chiropractic Society to introduce appropriate legislative changes to bring the 
profession of Chiropractic to the level demanded by changes in the profession itself as well 
as regulatory bodies.  At present, the ABOCE supports the use of injectable nutrients by 
Chiropractic Physicians with appropriate training and support, as implied by current 
regulation. 

399



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

400



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

401



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #9 
 

Peer Review Comittee 
 

 

 

402



 UTILIZATION REVIEW COMMITTEE 

Advisory to the 

Alaska State Board of Chiropractic Examiners 

Date 
Appointed 

Ori. Exp. Reappointed Term Expires 

 
 

 
 

 

 

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   

 
 

 
 

 

  

  
 

 
 

 

 

   

403



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

404



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

405



Agenda Item #12 

Investigative Report 

406



407



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

408



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

409



Agenda Item #13

New Business

410



A little short on credits? Take the Online Jurisprudence Review  

and earn 2 credits! 
 

Here’s how: 

Visit http://akchiroboard.myicourse.com 

 Create an account. Click on LOGIN in the upper-right corner of the screen and select NEW USER. This will 

bring you to SITE REGISTRATION page. When finished entering your information, click REGISTER ACCOUNT. 

 Add the free Online Jurisprudence Review. On the COURSE CATALOG tab, add the review by clicking 

ADD TO CART and PROCEED TO CHECK-OUT.  

 View/begin course. After clicking on VIEW COURSE, you can begin the review by clicking on . 

One question is displayed per page. 

 Print certificate and transcripts. Once you have answered all of the questions, you will be notified that you 

have finished the test. Fill out the PDF certificate for your records and "Send transcripts" to your e-mail address. You 

must keep a copy of the certificate and transcript so that you can provide it if you are selected for an audit of your 

continuing education activity. 

 

411

http://akchiroboard.myicourse.com/


 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Biennial Renewal  

Period 

License Expiration 

Date After Renewal 

*When You Should 

Complete CE Activity 

Required Topics 

(Unless amended in regulation) 

12/31/2014 - 12/31/2016 12/31/2016 01/01/2013 to 12/31/2014 X-Ray, Coding/Documentation, 

Ethics/Boundaries, CPR  

12/31/2016 - 12/31/2018 12/31/2018 01/01/2015 to 12/31/2016 X-Ray, Coding/Documentation, 

Ethics/Boundaries, CPR 

12/31/2018 - 12/31/2020 12/31/2020 01/01/2017 to 12/31/2018 X-Ray, Coding/Documentation, 

Ethics/Boundaries, CPR 

12/31/2020 - 12/31/2022 12/31/2022 01/01/2019 to 12/31/2020 X-Ray, Coding/Documentation, 

Ethics/Boundaries, CPR 

12/31/2022 - 12/31/2024 12/31/2024 01/01/2021 to 12/31/2022 X-Ray, Coding/Documentation, 

Ethics/Boundaries, CPR 

12/31/2024 - 12/31/2026 12/31/2026 01/01/2021 to 12/31/2022 X-Ray, Coding/Documentation, 

Ethics/Boundaries, CPR 

 
*If an audit of your continuing education activity shows you are missing credits, you can use credits earned after this 

period to make up the credits, however, credits completed during prior renewal periods cannot be applied to satisfy the 

hours. The activity must be Board-approved; see FAQ’s on reverse for questions regarding CE applications.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Frequently Asked Questions on Reverse Side) 

Length of Licensure Minimum Hours Required Allowable Online Hours 

Licensed < 1 Year 0; See FAQ #3 - 

Licensed ≥ 1 Year,  < 2 Years 16 total, including: 

X-Ray = 8 

Coding/Documentation = 2 

Ethics/Boundaries = 2 

CPR = 2 

All can be online 

Licensed ≥ 2 Years 32 total, including: 

X-Ray = 8 

Coding/Documentation = 2 

Ethics/Boundaries = 2 

CPR = 2 

Up to 16 can be online 

Fees Related to Continuing Education/Renewal 

Renewal Fee $600 

Prorated Renewal Fee (If licensed < 1 year) $300 

Continuing Education Course Fee  $125 

Continuing Education Course Change Fee $50 

Delayed Renewal Penalty Fee $100 

Continuing Education (CE) 

Hand-Out 
 

GOVERNOR BILL WALKER 

 

412



FAQ’s: 

 

1.)  Q: Am I required to submit continuing education certificates with my renewal application? 

A: No, please only submit certificates if you have been notified of an audit of your continuing education activity. 

 

2.)  Q: What if I am audited?  

A: If selected for an audit of your continuing education activity, you will be sent a letter requesting certificates of 

all the activity used to satisfy the renewal requirements. The certificates must be received by our office within 30 

days subsequent to the date of the notice.  

 

3.)  Q: I have been licensed for less than one year. Am I required to submit continuing education activity?  

A: No, you are not required to complete any hours of continuing education. Please refer to the first table on the 

reverse side of this document for guidance on when to participate in continuing education activity. 

 

4.)  Q: How do I search for Board-approved continuing education activity?  

A: Google, “Alaska Board of Chiropractic Examiners” (Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic 

Development) and click on the “Continuing Education Courses” link, or Visit the Board’s homepage at: 

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/BoardofChiropracticExaminers.aspx. You can 

search by course provider, title, or course number. There are a few kinks in the website functioning, but we are 

working on getting these fixed! 

 

5.)  Q: I participated in a course approved by the Providers of Approved Continuing Education through the 

Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards (PACE), but it is not listed on the website of Board-approved 

courses. Are PACE courses acceptable?  

A: Yes, the Board accepts PACE-approved courses, so long as the continuing education certificate provided to 

you indicates that it is a PACE course.  

 

6.)  Q: I am interested in taking a course, but it is not listed on the website of Board-approved courses. How 

can I participate in this course and earn credit?  

A: There is a separate continuing education application for chiropractors, which requires a $125.00 fee. You may 

also contact the provider of the course/seminar/conference, and request that they submit a continuing education 

application on the form for providers. 

 

7.)  Q: I prepared for and/or instructed a course and would like to earn credit for this—is this possible?  

A: Yes, the Board—on an individual basis—will approve hours earned as an instructor or discussion leader. You 

must submit a continuing education application for chiropractors, as well as a $125.00 payment. 

 

8.)  Q: I participated in a formal correspondence program—are individual study programs acceptable for 

continuing education?  

A: Yes, the Board—on an individual basis—will approve hours earned for completing an individual study 

program from a university, organization, or other institution, so long as the program requires registration and 

provides a certificate of completion. You must submit the request in writing. 

 

9.)  Q: I published an article—can I earn credit for continuing education?  

A: Yes, the Board will approve the amount of credit to be awarded for publication of articles or books on an 

individual basis.  

 

10.)  Q: If I mail out my renewal application on December 31
st
, but it doesn’t arrive to the office of the Board 

until January 5
th

, will my renewal form be considered late?  

A: As long as the postmark date of your renewal application is on or before December 31
st
, your renewal form 

will not be considered late. 

 

 10.)  Q: If my renewal application is late, will I be disciplined?  

A: No, you will not be disciplined; however, if the postmark date of your application is on or after March 2
nd

, you 

will be required to submit a delayed renewal penalty fee of $100.00. 

413

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/BoardofChiropracticExaminers.aspx


Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

414



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

MOTION WORDING: 

“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 

confidential;  OR 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR  
Board only to remain during session.” 

Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 

415



 

416



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______  Tab #______ Topic: __________________________________ 

Primary Motion 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion: 

0 

Board Member Motion 2nd Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

417



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

418



Agenda Item #14

ACS Update

419



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

420



 

421



Thursday, October 6th  
Thursday  8 am - 5 pm  Credit Type: NON-CE 

ChiroTouch Users Group - Hands-on Training    
Sponsor:  ChiroTouch 

Description:  Alaskan ChiroTouch Users unite!  This seminar within a seminar will be available for a separate fee from Convention.  The rate will be 
$149 per person for ACS Members and $299 per person for non-members for the 8 HOUR hands-on training.  Bring your own laptop computers.  Pricing 
will include lunch.  ChiroTouch is building the training around the suggestions ChiroTouch Users made back in March.  Here's what some of the 
suggestions were:  Front desk/billing; billing; claims; Provider All in One; tracking massage vs. manipulation appts; medical history; forms, customization; 
accounting; efficiency; SOAP Notes; macros.   
 

Thursday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Thurs AM - Club Room 1  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Thursday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Thurs AM - Club Room 2  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Thursday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Coding   

Electronic Data:  Understanding, Accepting and Safeguarding  with  Brad Cost   
Sponsor:  InfinEDI 

Description:  This course will be a compilation of electronic data systems and documentation within your office, electronic data interaction in the 
chiropractic provider’s office, improving your business via managing your data and getting between the numbers.  This course will teach and prove the 
underlining knowledge of how a chiropractic healthcare provider can correctly evaluate, select and implement computer system, software and other data 
collection tools. It is of the utmost important that the industry is representing all chiropractic providers. Crucial to the validity of healthcare reform is the 
data to support the position of the industry.   You will also learn the basics of data and why it is important. The future of healthcare and electronic data 
interchange will be discussed, as well, as its role in the provider’s insurance relationships, networks and national and state association. Answer to more 
complex EDI business processes will be discussed as well as underlining the knowledge of how a current chiropractic healthcare provider should be 
applying EDI concepts to their practice.   Along with learning about electronic data interchange, I will discuss how you can improve your business via 
managing your data. Sources of data in healthcare, who is using the data, technologies and how they impact the healthcare industries will be discussed, 
as well as, what big data is and how it can affect your office and the healthcare industry.  Lastly, I will discuss numbers and their importance in every 
aspect of our lives. Specifically, how you can use numbers to help make life better for you, your staff, your patients and your business.  

 

Thursday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Ethics - HIPAA 

Protecting Your Practice in an Over-regulated World!  with  Ty Talcott, DC, CHPSE   
Sponsor:  HIPAA Compliance Services 

Description:  To supply information to simplify the implementation and maintenance of an appropriate HIPAA compliance program, with its extensive list 
of required and addressable standards, in the typical chiropractic or multidisciplinary clinic, so that the option exists for the doctor to delegate and/or 
oversee the majority of this process and/or participate to whatever level desired.  

422



 

Thursday  1 pm - 5 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Thurs PM - Club Room 1  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Thursday  1 pm - 5 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Thurs PM - Club Room 2  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Thursday  1 pm - 5 pm  Credit Type: Ethics - HIPAA (repeat class of Thurs AM session) 

Protecting Your Practice in an Over-regulated World!  with  Ty Talcott, DC, CHPSE   
Sponsor:  HIPAA Compliance Services 

Description:  To supply information to simplify the implementation and maintenance of an appropriate HIPAA compliance program, with its extensive list 
of required and addressable standards, in the typical chiropractic or multidisciplinary clinic, so that the option exists for the doctor to delegate and/or 
oversee the majority of this process and/or participate to whatever level desired. 

 

Thursday  1:00 pm - 5:00 pm  Credit Type: Documentation   

Understanding Documentation in the 21st Century  with  John Maltby, DC, FICA   
Sponsor:  MyoVision 

Description:  Understanding the requirements and new technology available to meet the needs of the patient's care and the requirements of the 
governing agencies and third party payors.  Hour 1  Present actual case examples of the consequences of poor and inadequate documentation.  Hour 2  
Defining the differences between qualitative and quantitative documentation and giving examples of each.  Hour 3  Application of advanced objective 
documentation protocols in the clinical setting. Hour 4  Interpretation of objective documentation into its application to patient care.  

 

 

  

423



Friday, October 7th  
Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Fri AM - Club Room 2  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: Radiology   

Classification of Disc Lesions  with  Alicia Yochum, RN, DC,DACBR   
Sponsor:  Foot Levelers, Inc. 

Description:  This course will cover spinal MRI normal anatomy and nomenclature as it refers to disc lesions.  Classification of Disc Lesions  A.    
Cervical Spine; B.    Thoracic Spine; C.    Lumbar Spine -1.     Bulge.  2.     Herniation - a.      Protrusion.  b.     Extrusion  c.      Sequestration (free 
fragment) 

 

Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Fri AM - Club Room 1  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: Clinical (technique ) 

Foot and Ankle Conditions, Injuries and Syndromes  with  Mitch Mally, DC   
Sponsor:  Foot Levelers, Inc. 

Description:  Attendees will learn the anatomy and biomechanics of the most common foot and ankle problems encountered in practice including "live" 
demonstrations.              

• PES PLANUS VS PES CAVUS AND COMMON SEQUELAE               
• PLANTAR FASCIITIS, ACHILLODYNIA, MORTON'S NEUROMA               
• INVERSION VS EVERSION SPRAIN               
• CASE STUDIES & TECHNIQUE DEMONSTRATIONS 

 

Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

Overview of Autism Spectrum Disorder  with  Janet Lintala, DC   
Sponsor:  NCMIC 

Description:  An introductory level overview of Autism Spectrum disorder (ASD) which discusses basic facts including signs, symptoms, screening and 
diagnosis of ASD, conventional medical approaches, prognosis and aspects of autistic culture.  A brief overview of the underlying health challenges, 
dysfunctions, and comorbid conditions of ASD will be presented.  Simple changes to make the office more suitable for autistic patients will be discussed, 
along with screening questions for the New Patient Questionnaire, helpful referrals, basic lab tests and simple supplement protocols to support improved 
health and function for the autistic patient.  No adjusting techniques will be discussed or demonstrated. 

 

424



Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: Radiology   

Rotator Cuff and Shoulder Pain with Kevin C. Paisley, DO 
Sponsor:  University Imaging Center 

Description:   The history of the shoulder and rotator cuff, types and causes of injury, and treatment options, both conservative and surgical.   

Vertebral Trauma  with  John McCormick, MD  
Sponsor:  University Imaging Center 

Description:  Review of vertebral anatomy with common anomalies.  Discussion of appearance of various types of trauma with concentration on 
cervical spine.  Trauma cases of thoracic and lumbar region will also be discussed.   

A Survival Guide to Different MRI Magnets: Which One Best Meets Your Needs  with  Jay S. Dworkin, PhD  - 2 hour talk 
Sponsor:  FONAR Corporation 

Description:  This educational seminar begins by comparing the different types of MRI magnets: High-Field, Open and Upright Weight-Bearing MRIs. 
Reviewing the steps in an MRI scan and highlighting the key   characteristics of MRI images precedes summarizing the hallmarks of spinal pathology 
using both individual MRI clinical case studies and peer-reviewed scientific papers. The objective is to appreciate how both patient positioning and field 
strength play critical roles in detecting clinically significant pathology. Several advanced imaging techniques will also be discussed. 

 

Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: Documentation/Coding   

Record Keeping Principles  with  Evan Gwilliam, DC, MBA, BS, CPC, CCPC, NCICS, CPC-I, CCCPC, MCS-P, CPMA   
Sponsor:  ChiroTouch and ChiroHealthUSA 

Description:  Documentation and Chiropractic Care that Satisfies the Coder, Auditor, and Claims Reviewer - To do business in today's healthcare 
environment, providers need to know what payers are looking for.  There must be a way to give them what they want without taking the fun out of 
practicing chiropractic.  In this program Dr. Evan Gwilliam, Certified Professional Medical Auditor, chiropractor, and Vice President of the ChiroCode 
Institute, will teach the most important parts of the 2016 ChiroCode Deskbook, which can be purchased at a discount with your registration.  After this 
presentation is over, doctors and staff will feel enabled and confident about documentation, coding and billing.  Learn how to think like an auditor - 
Document with confidence - Provide the best care to your patients.  Module 1 - Record keeping principles  - POMR, SOAP, and medical necessity; 
Medicare rules and documentation guidance; Evaluation and management coding and documentation - Review the basics of E/M, as it pertains to DCs 
and Complete an audit of a sample E/M record. 

 

Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

StrongPosture Rehab and Exercise Protocols  with  Steven Weiniger, DC   
Sponsor:  Performance Health and Chiro1Source 

Description:  From “Sitting is the new smoking” to “tech-neck”, posture is a growing concern in our slumping society.  Everyone knows it’s important to 
move and to exercise...and all motion begins with posture.  Strengthening posture means observing and then correcting sensorimotor errors between 
perceived position and motion and external reality.  Systematically retraining compensatory and adaptive patterns on a granular level is an important, 
often overlooked factor in clinical NMS practices.  Deliver improvement that encourages everyone to find their strongest, core engaged posture and 
literally stand taller.  Learn Monday morning takeaways to create awareness with a picture and train accurate control with the StrongPosture® protocols 
to build a wellness identity as "the Posture Specialist". 

*Designated Posture Practice seminar hours also fulfill the live training requirements for CPEP® posture specialist certification (optional). 
Contact cpep@bodyzone.com for more information. 

 

Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

Take Aim at Chronic Pain  with  Jerome Rerucha, BS, CSCS, DC   
Sponsor:  Erchonia 

Description:  The wisdom of chiropractic is integrated with the use of low level laser therapy in application with conditions associated with chronic pain. 
This class is for the practitioner who desires to maintain the traditional application of chiropractic and to enhance the benefits achieved by applying one 

425

mailto:cpep@bodyzone.com


of the newest, most researched technological advances in the healing arts. Specific protocols and techniques for common conditions such as neck, 
shoulder and low back pain will be taught using laser therapy and soft tissue correction and of course the chiropractic adjustment. 

 

  

426



Friday  9 am - 1 pm  Credit Type: Documentation/Coding   

Prepare for Records Request Like a Boss   |   A Deep Dive into Evaluation and Management Coding and Audting  with  Abbie Miller, MCS-P  
Sponsor:  KMC University 

Description:  Records Request - When is an innocent records request really a wolf in sheep’s clothing? Very often, asking for a few notes is really the 
fishing line dangled in the water to see if anything bites. If the records sent are sloppy, incomplete, or not compiled in an understandable, orderly fashion, 
it could lead to a deeper probe. This session will walk attendees through exactly how to make your records shine in a review.  

At the end of this session, attendees will be able to: 

• Organize and prepare records for a third-party request, whether a single visit or an entire chart 
• Use a case summary template to properly arrange and define the records that are requested  

 
E/M - In this session, we will expand upon the knowledge gained in the morning session and dig into the nuances of E/M coding and documentation. 
Compliance officers must have a keen understanding of the requirements for E/M coding and documentation. Likewise, well-informed CAs with in-depth 
knowledge of E/M can be an invaluable asset to the practice, knowing how to better understand when E/M codes can and should be used. This hands-
on session will include live auditing, coding training, and auditing practice.  

At the end of this session, the attendees will be able to: 

• Use an E/M auditing tool to identify which level of E/M code is appropriate for the documentation provided 
• Code E/M services for both new and established patients 
• Audit E/M visits in the context of a compliance audit 

 
 

Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Fri PM - Club Room 1  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

Add 6-figures of Profit by Understanding the Social Psychology of Why Patients Make Buying Decisions  with  George Birnbach, DC   
Sponsor:   

Description:  The 6-Figure Launchpad: "How to add 6 figures of profit in the next 12 months by understanding the Social Psychology of Patients. We 
will explore the neurochemistry and language patterns to create a 'Buying Mood BluePrint' while preserving your philosophy, technique, and quality of 
care. You will learn applications for New Patient Attraction, The 3-Tier Retention Program, and How to design a practice schedule that creates 
excitement while maximizing efficiency. 

 

Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: Documentation/Coding   

Compliant Patient Finances  with  Abbie Miller, MCS-P  
Sponsor:  KMC University 

Description:  In this session, we’ll discuss and train on all things money. This interactive training session will include a better understanding of how to 
read and organize EOBs, when to appeal, when to let it go, and how to master over-the-counter collections. Learn the rules and regulations for proper 
discounting and effective financial policy for maximum reimbursement.   

At the end of this session, attendees will be able to: 

• Understand all the financial aspects of the practice, from patient financial management to billing and collections 
• Offer compliant and proper patient discounts, if desired  
• Write and implement effective financial policy 

 

427



Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: Radiology   

Altered Biomechanics and Stress Related Injuries  with  Alicia Yochum, RN, DC,DACBR   
Sponsor:  Foot Levelers, Inc. 

Description:  This course will review current research performed at Logan University related to altered biomechanics of the foot as it pertains to the 
development of bone marrow edema and low back pain. It will also cover imaging of other stress related injuries. 

 

Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: Clinical (exam) 

Back to Basics: Primer on Spinal Pain.  Looking outside the box for Spinal Pain  with  Larry Levine, MD   
Sponsor:  Alaska Spine Institute 

Description:  Back to Basics: Primer on Spinal Pain Including: Differential Diagnosis, Anatomy, Physical Exam, Imaging, and Treatment Options for 
Spinal Pain.  Lecture and interactive approach to topic areas with hands on exam skills practice. Educational objectives met through case examples 
interspersed with lecture material as well as summary cases. 1) Differential Diagnosis.  2) Anatomy.  3) Physical Exam.  4) Imaging and Treatment 
Options.  5) Remaining time Q&A. 

Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Fri PM - Club Room 2  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: Coding  - (repeat of Thurs AM course) 

Electronic Data:  Understanding, Accepting and Safeguarding  with  Brad Cost   
Sponsor:  InfinEDI 

Description:  This course will be a compilation of electronic data systems and documentation within your office, electronic data interaction in the 
chiropractic provider’s office, improving your business via managing your data and getting between the numbers.  This course will teach and prove the 
underlining knowledge of how a chiropractic healthcare provider can correctly evaluate, select and implement computer system, software and other data 
collection tools. It is of the utmost important that the industry is representing all chiropractic providers. Crucial to the validity of healthcare reform is the 
data to support the position of the industry.   You will also learn the basics of data and why it is important. The future of healthcare and electronic data 
interchange will be discussed, as well, as its role in the provider’s insurance relationships, networks and national and state association. Answer to more 
complex EDI business processes will be discussed as well as underlining the knowledge of how a current chiropractic healthcare provider should be 
applying EDI concepts to their practice.   Along with learning about electronic data interchange, I will discuss how you can improve your business via 
managing your data. Sources of data in healthcare, who is using the data, technologies and how they impact the healthcare industries will be discussed, 
as well as, what big data is and how it can affect your office and the healthcare industry.  Lastly, I will discuss numbers and their importance in every 
aspect of our lives. Specifically, how you can use numbers to help make life better for you, your staff, your patients and your business.  

 

Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: Documentation/Coding   

ICD-10 Documentation that will stand up to an audit  with  Evan Gwilliam, DC, MBA, BS, CPC, CCPC, NCICS, CPC-I, CCCPC, MCS-P, CPMA   
Sponsor:  ChiroTouch and ChiroHealthUSA 

Description:  Documentation and Chiropractic Care that Satisfies the Coder, Auditor, and Claims Reviewer - To do business in today's healthcare 
environment, providers need to know what payers are looking for.  There must be a way to give them what they want without taking the fun out of 
practicing chiropractic.  In this program Dr. Evan Gwilliam, Certified Professional Medical Auditor, chiropractor, and Vice President of the ChiroCode 
Institute, will teach the most important parts of the 2016 ChiroCode Deskbook, which can be purchased at a discount with your registration.  After this 
presentation is over, doctors and staff will feel enabled and confident about documentation, coding and billing.  Learn how to think like an auditor - 
Document with confidence - Provide the best care to your patients.  Module 2 - ICD-10 Documentation (that will stand up to an audit).  Learn how to 
create a “Diagnostic Statement” that matches ICD-10 perfectly; Learn how to create “Provider Documentation Guides” to train doctors to document the 
top conditions they treat; Using evidence to create care plans that can't be denied - Become familiar with what payers are looking for in your care plans - 
Learn how to create effective goals - Learn to use CCGPP algorithms as guidelines to help you support the duration and frequency of care provided. 

428



 

Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: Clinical (technique) 

Neurosurgeon Reveals Leg Length Inequality - The Etiology of Knee, Hip, Low Back and Scoliosis  with  Mitch Mally, DC   
Sponsor:  Foot Levelers, Inc. 

Description:  This course features a historical review of the literature relative to the etiology and correction of the pathophysiology of 
spinal biomechanics. Dr. Mally highlights the clinical rationale for correcting LLI from heel lifts and insoles to outsoles and shoe modification               

• HISTORY AND EPIDEMIOLOGY               
• LEG LENGTH XRAY AND EXAM PROTOCOLS             
• REPORT OF FINDINGS & CORRECTIVE PROTOCOLS               
• CASE STUDIES AND ORTHOSES MANAGEMENT 

 

Friday  2:30 pm - 6:30 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

Posture and Gait Assessment, Documentation and Communication  with  Steven Weiniger, DC   
Sponsor:  Performance Health and Chiro1Source 

Description:  The PostureZone model is an observational and communications framework to logically and elegantly connect structure and function. 
Drawing from cutting edge neurology, Janda’s Cross syndromes and ancient yoga wisdoms, the model applies to visual assessment, digital image 
and/or video observations.   Posture is an relevant factor in clinical NMS practices, and so postural observations should be described, benchmarked and 
communicated to patients, third party payors and medical professionals.  Attendees learn hard science and common-sense concepts correlate structural 
postural asymmetry with clinical findings and presenting complaints.  Also, a large factor in falls (as well as chronic low back pain) is degeneration of 
postural control and stabilization.  Sensori-motor errors of  position and control sets the stage for incorrect weight shifting and falls, which is the reason 
why the controlled motion of Tai-Chi has received so much attention for fall prevention.   Attendess will learn to assess fall risk and postural balance with 
low-tech, evidence based tools (i.e. GUG, ETGUG, Tinetti) and commonsense communications.  Tap the chiropractic opportunity to uniquely strengthen 
balance to reduce fall risk and promote performance and successful aging with spinal manipulation and training StrongPosture® Balance, Alignment and 
Motion. 

*Designated Posture Practice seminar hours also fulfill the live training requirements for CPEP® posture specialist certification (optional). 
Contact cpep@bodyzone.com for more information. 

  

429

mailto:cpep@bodyzone.com


Saturday, October 8th  
Saturday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo -Sat AM - Club Room 1  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Saturday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Clinical  (nutrition) 

Advances in Connective Tissue Support  with  Jeannette Birnbach, MS, DC, CN, CCN   
Sponsor:  Standard Process NW 

Description:  Clinical Nutrition Strategies to support the inflammatory response, gut immune status, and accelerate recovery. How to language 
explanations of clinical nutrition programs to improve patient retention and new patient acquisition will be included.   Arthritis, immune and auto-immune 
components; Nutritional joint support; Gut microbes and weight; Gut endotoxins and systemic inflammation; Purification program 

 

Saturday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo -Sat AM - Club Room 2  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Saturday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Clinical (technique) 

Entrapment Neuropathies of the Elbow, Wrist and Hand - Featuring the Newest, Latest and Greatest in Carpal Tunnel Syndrome (CTS)  with  Mitch 
Mally, DC   
Sponsor:  Foot Levelers, Inc. 

Description:  A compendium of the 17 entrapment neuropathies from the elbow to fingers is reviewed in depth. Differential diagnoses and discussions 
of cases plus demonstrations are featured in this educational segment.              

• DETAILED REVIEW OF THE ELBOW/WRIST/HAND ENTRAPMENTS               
• DIFFERENTIAL DIAGNOSES AND EXAM PROCEDURES               
• RESEARCH ABSTRACT REVIEW OF LITERATURE             
• CASE STUDIES AND TECHNIQUE DEMONSTRATIONS  

Saturday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Ethics   

Four Steps to Freedom From Insurance Dependence  with  Miles Bodzin, DC   
Sponsor:  ChiroTouch 

Description:  More than ever, today’s chiropractic practice must have the steps in practice to transition to a cashbased practice. With patient 
deductibles reaching over $10,000 in some cases, chiropractic practices have to collect more cash from their patients. How is your practice navigating 
this transition process? If your office and practice procedures have remained the same, this new era in chiropractic will be a challenging one for you. 
Join Dr. Miles Bodzin as he discusses not only how to have a cashbased practice in today’s market, but how to run it compliantly. Everything from your 
fee schedules, discounts, care plan recommendations, and payment options must abide by strict rules set for us. Don’t miss this you will not only take 
away amazing tips to implement in your practice immediately, but more importantly, the peace of mind that you will begin to love practicing once again! 

 

430



Saturday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

Integrating Chiropractic and Posture Exercise in a New Age of Healthcare  with  Steven Weiniger, DC   
Sponsor:  Performance Health and Chiro1Source 

Description:  There’s an historic opportunity for DCs as 77 million boomers approach their elder years and America’s healthcare system undergoes 
radical transformation with Obamacare, ACOs and other structural changes.  The future of healthcare will not look like the past, and research and 
demographics are creating an path for chiropractors within society and the healthcare system as the Posture Specialist.  Declining insurance 
reimbursements are increasing out-of-pocket expenditures for “non-essentials”- including care for chronic, non-life-threatening problems such as back 
pain.  Chiropractic is more than low back care, but by helping people in pain while simultaneously empowering them to avoid a slumping "old person" 
posture with chiropractic and daily posture exercise we build a bridge from acute care to wellness care and successful aging.   The StrongPosture® 
Balance-Alignment-Motion (BAM) exercise protocols are tightly tracked to increase posture awareness and control with focused motion. The MUST-TRY 
cueing logic and sequenced, short time interactions to engage people with posture and retrain muscle and joint awareness and control with low-tech 
tools (eg balls, bands, foam pads, etc).  The future of chiropractic lies in aligning the profession's message with generally accepted concepts, and 
posture is the key to agreement within the profession and with society at large.    From our current core of NMS pain to athletes seeking optimal 
performance, and from people concerned about their appearance to wellness oriented boomers, people witness the synergy with chiropractic and 
posture therapy as their functional ability improves. Learn how functionally strengthening posture is the linchpin for DCs’ creating cultural relevance and 
authority as “the Posture Specialists”. 

*Designated Posture Practice seminar hours also fulfill the live training requirements for CPEP® posture specialist certification (optional). 
Contact cpep@bodyzone.com for more information. 

 

Saturday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Documentation/Coding   

Modality and Therapeutic Procedure Coding and Documentation  with  Evan Gwilliam, DC, MBA, BS, CPC, CCPC, NCICS, CPC-I, CCCPC, MCS-P, 
CPMA   
Sponsor:  ChiroTouch and ChiroHealthUSA 

Description:  Documentation and Chiropractic Care that Satisfies the Coder, Auditor, and Claims Reviewer - To do business in today's healthcare 
environment, providers need to know what payers are looking for.  There must be a way to give them what they want without taking the fun out of 
practicing chiropractic.  In this program Dr. Evan Gwilliam, Certified Professional Medical Auditor, chiropractor, and Vice President of the ChiroCode 
Institute, will teach the most important parts of the 2016 ChiroCode Deskbook, which can be purchased at a discount with your registration.  After this 
presentation is over, doctors and staff will feel enabled and confident about documentation, coding and billing.  Learn how to think like an auditor - 
Document with confidence - Provide the best care to your patients.  Module 3 - Modality and therapeutic procedure coding and documentation; • Review 
coding guidelines, diagnostic indicators, modifiers, and sample documentation for: Modality codes - Therapeutic procedure codes - Compliance and 
audit - Find out how and why payers audit chiropractors - Fraud, abuse, and the OIG - Conduct your own audit, with the right tools. 

 

Saturday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

Practical Assessment and Adjustment of the Chiropractic Patient Part 1 - Exam  with  K. Jeffrey Miller, DC, DABCO   
Sponsor:  NCMIC 

Description:  Practical Assessment of the Chiropractic Patient is designed to bring efficiency to examination.  Complex examination techniques are 
presented that are later formulated into more practical and “efficient” methods of application.  The term “efficient” is emphasized here as it is not to be 
confused with the term “short cut”.     The terms are not equivalent.   Only through understanding the related complexities of the initial information will the 
doctor be able to understand the reasoning and practicality of the final applications.   The course allows the doctor to decrease examination time yet, 
gain greater and more significant information for diagnosis and treatment. 

 

Saturday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Radiology   

 Back Pain: Fundamental Mechanisms   |   The Young Back  |  Applied Advanced Imaging  |   Advanced Imaging Cases   with  Harold Cable, MD  and 
Erick Olson, DO 
Sponsor:  University Imaging Center 

Back Pain: Fundamental Mechanisms with Dr. Cable 

431

mailto:cpep@bodyzone.com


Description:  The common pathologies of the spine with emphasis on the physiologic and biochemical mechanisms that produce the actual pain.  A 
thorough understanding of the anatomy and pathophysiology of back and nerve root pain, which should help in planning specific therapies and strategies 
for patient recovery.   

The Young Back with Dr. Harold Cable 

Description:  Young and adolescent patients:  the common pathologies, the etiologies, and current ideas on therapis, with special emphasis on what to 
avoid.  Identify and understand the unique problems of the back in young patients and their causes, complications, and therapies.  Especially review 
'what to avoid'.   

Applied Advanced Imaging with Dr. Erik Olson 

Description:  How, when and why various imaging modalities are ordered and used to work up spine pathology.  This will include discussion on MRI 
with and without contrast, CT and CT myelogram, and nuclear bone scan.     

1. When an MRI is appropriate to further work up a patient for back and neck pain 
2. When is an MRI with contrast necessary 
3. What are the advantages of MRI over Xray 
4. What are the disadvantages of MRI 
5. MRI contraindications 
6. When is CT preferable to MRI for imaging of the spine 
7. When to order a CT Myelogram 
8. What are the advantages of CT imaging of the spine 
9. What are the disadvantages of CT imaging of the spine 
10. CT contraindications 
11. What is a nuclear medicine bone scan 
12. When is a bone scan used for spine cases 
13. What are the limitations of a bone scan 
14. What are the contraindications for a bone scan 
15.  

Advanced Imaging Cases - Dr. Olson 
Patient cases demonstrating various spine pathology seen using MRI, CT and nuclear medicine bone scan imaging modalities.  This will be co-
presented by Dr. Harold Cable.   

1. Spine Pathology on MRI including intervertebral disc herniation, facet degeneration, spinal stenosis, tumors, metastasis, infection, fracture, 
myelopathy, etc 

2. Spine Pathology seen on CT including intervertebral disc herniation, vertebral fracture, sacral insufficiency fracture, etc 
3. Spine pathology seen on bone scan including facet arthopathy, infection, metastasis, etc 
4.  

 

Saturday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Sat PM - Club Room 1  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

 

Saturday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Sat PM - Club Room 2  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

 

432



Saturday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Ethics   

Ethics, Professional Boundaries, Risk Management & Social Media in the DC Office  with  Lori Holt, RN   
Sponsor:  NCMIC 

Description:  This course will address the issues of professional boundaries and the ethical use of social media both in the office and on the internet. 
This course will enlighten the doctor about ethical and unethical practices including inappropriate patient contact. The attendee will understand the 
ethical considerations as they relate to proper relationship building and patient confidentiality. Attention of pitfalls in the “office place” as they pertain to 
relationships with staff members and patients will be addressed. The attendee will be able to demonstrate the importance of patient confidentiality with 
regards to social media and HIPPA. Doctors upon completion of this program will: 1. Understand the necessity for ethical, accurate, complete, legible 
records and the warning signs of poor documentation. 2. Understand the ethical considerations as they relate to proper relationship building and patient 
confidentiality. 3. The attendee will be able to demonstrate the importance of patient confidentiality with regards to social media and HIPAA. 4. The 
attendee should be able to identify unethical practices that can lead to patient uneasiness.  5. The attendee should be able to identify steps to take if 
unethical behavior has already taken place.  6. The attendee will be able to list negative behaviors that can lead to boundary violations.  7. The attendee 
will achieve awareness of what should and shouldn’t be said to avoid unethical risk situations. 

 

 

Saturday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Radiology   

Imaging the Problematic Shoulder in the 21st Century  with  Alicia Yochum, RN, DC,DACBR   
Sponsor:  Foot Levelers, Inc. 

Description:  This course covers what’s new in imaging of the shoulder with case examples of sports related injuries utilizing plain film, magnetic 
resonance imaging and diagnostic musculoskeletal ultrasound. 

 

Saturday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

Integrating Chiropractic Clinical Evaluation with Functional Movement & Performance Enhancement  with  Jerome Rerucha, BS, CSCS, DC   
Sponsor:  Erchonia 

Description:  Become the expert who combines elite chiropractic care with functional movement exams for the ultimate corrections and communication 
to patients. Dr. Jerome Rerucha was a full time strength coach and world champion lifter prior to becoming a chiropractor. Having extensive experience 
of two professions that brings out human potential he has created a system, specific for chiropractors, to apply a progressive system of analysis and 
correction. The Fitness Integration Technique (F.I.T.)® System will show very obvious structural, strength and flexibility imbalances, related to the 
symptom, of your current clients.    The F.I.T.® exam findings improves the understanding of the need for care beyond symptomatic relief and expands 
the reason for chiropractic care for patients currently NOT coming in for care. There are thousands of ideal, proactive patients in your community who 
are not coming in for chiropractic, are asymptomatic and are training everyday and looking to perform better. This seminar will amplify your current 
chiropractic practice but also prepares you to be The Performance Practitioner” to the largest cash health industry in the world, the fitness industry by 
becoming a BioMechanics Performance Expert! 

 

 

Saturday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Clinical (technique) 

Practical Assessment and Adjustment of the Chiropractic Patient Part 2 - Technique  with  K. Jeffrey Miller, DC, DABCO   
Sponsor:  NCMIC 

Description:  Practical Assessment of the Chiropractic Patient is designed to bring efficiency adjusting techniques.  Complex adjusting techniques are 
presented that are later formulated into more practical and “efficient” methods of application.  The term “efficient” is emphasized here as it is not to be 
confused with the term “short cut”.     The terms are not equivalent.   Only through understanding the related complexities of the initial information will the 
doctor be able to understand the reasoning and practicality of the final applications.   The course allows the doctor to decrease examination time yet, 
gain greater and more significant information for diagnosis and treatment. 

 

 

433



Saturday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Documentation/Coding   

The Keys to Correct Coding and Billing | Building Your Physical Therapy Practice | Building Your Insurance Department - Getting it Right from Day One  
with  Morgan Mullican, DC, DACBN, CCN   
Sponsor:  Breakthrough Coaching 

Description:  Any chiropractor not practicing outcome-based care is at a loss when it comes to the success of his or her practice.  The standard of care 
in the chiropractic profession is the objective evaluation and measurement of each patient’s ability to function.  The medical necessity of the procedures 
you perform can only be established by objectively documenting how your care impacts your patients’ ability to perform their daily activities and the 
quality of their lives. Changing your patient care paradigm from passive to active care can be challenging and knowing the science behind delivering 
active care services in your practice is only half the battle. If you don't properly code and document these services, your practice won't receive the 
reimbursement that has earned.  Performing regular audits to evaluate coding and documentation compliance is essential and also has risen to the top 
of the CMS list of items to monitor. This session will provide you with valuable insight into the accuracy of coding and billing, daily documentation, and 
providing physical therapy for a patient-centered practice. 

 

Saturday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Clinical (nutrition) 

The Six Pillars of Accelerating Recovery with Nutrition  with  Jeannette Birnbach, MS, DC, CN, CCN   
Sponsor:  Standard Process NW 

Description:  THE SIX PILLARS OF ACCELERATING RECOVERY WITH NUTRITION, and the lifestyle issues that stop them from working. There are 
specific lifestyle issues that slow the healing process, and understanding how to properly apply nutrition therapies, adjustments, and other changes can 
accelerate the results for your patients. I will show you how I used these strategies to build my own waiting list clinical nutrition practice.  Brain health; 
Chelation and bone health; Fatigue; Sleep; Omega 3 fats; Declining nutrient content of food and general nutritional support.   

 

Saturday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: NON-CE   

The Bulletproof Associate Program - For Clinic Owners and Associate Doctors - NON CE  with  George Birnbach, DC   
Sponsor:   

Description:  This session will demonstrate the strategies to ATTRACT, HIRE, & LAUNCH SUCCESSFUL ASSOCIATE CHIROPRACTORS in your 
practice to continue the highest quality patient care while freeing up your time as an executive clinic director. A special section will detail how to find a 
quality associate program as an associate doctor, and the landmines to avoid. 

 

  

434



Sunday, October 9th  
Sunday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Sun AM - Club Room 1  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Sunday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

Dynamics of Low Level Laser Therapy  with  Jerome Rerucha, BS, CSCS, DC   
Sponsor:  Erchonia 

Description:  Dynamics of Low Level Laser Therapy Zerona (fat emulsification, obesity and weight loss) Violet Laser Treatment Benefits Low Level 
Laser is one of the most researched and proven modalities. There are 4985 articles in Pubmed (as of May 8, 2016) on the efficacy of Low Level Laser 
Therapy for a wide variety of common clinical conditions.  Applying this FDA cleared research and technology is used in some of the largest markets to 
grow your practice. 

 

Sunday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Ethics (compliance) 

Employment Law 101 - From Hiring to Firing and Everything in Between  with  Renea Saada   
Sponsor:   

Description:  Employment Law 101 -  “From Hiring to Firing and Everything In Between:  Overview of the Employment Law Topics All Employers in 
Alaska Should Know” 

 

Sunday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Radiology   

Everybody Loves an Algorithm  with  Tawnia Adams, DC, DACBR   
Sponsor:  Adams Radiology Consultants 

Description:  An algorithmic approach to working through a variety of clinical presentations and/or radiologic disorders with an expanded discussion on 
radiologic presentation, possible treatment protocol and follow up on the more common entities. Included topics: child versus adult with low back pain;  
child versus adult with hip pain; insidious onset of hand pain; solitary pulmonary nodule; absent pedicle; solitary vertebral collapse. 

 

Sunday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Clinical (repeat class from Fri AM) 

Overview of Autism Spectrum Disorder  with  Janet Lintala, DC   
Sponsor:  NCMIC 

Description:  An introductory level overview of Autism Spectrum disorder (ASD) which discusses basic facts including signs, symptoms, screening and 
diagnosis of ASD, conventional medical approaches, prognosis and aspects of autistic culture.  A brief overview of the underlying health challenges, 
dysfunctions, and comorbid conditions of ASD will be presented.  Simple changes to make the office more suitable for autistic patients will be discussed, 
along with screening questions for the New Patient Questionnaire, helpful referrals, basic lab tests and simple supplement protocols to support improved 
health and function for the autistic patient.  No adjusting techniques will be discussed or demonstrated. 

 

  

435



Sunday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Documentation   

Specific Documentation Protocols for the Whiplash Injury  with  John Maltby, DC, FICA   
Sponsor:  MyoVision 

Description:  Objectives:  To understand the specific requirements when documenting soft tissue injuries related to the whiplash injury.  Hour 1   
Review specific cases and depositions relating to documentation of injury.  Hour 2   Define and review specific documentation protocols, i.e. qualitative 
vs. quantitative.  Hour 3   Demonstrate specific objective protocols for documenting soft tissue injuries.  Hour 4   Demonstrating how to  incorporate 
objective findings into developing patient care recommendations, tracking progress, as well deposition preparation. 

 

Sunday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Clinical/Documentation   

Systematic Case Management  with  Morgan Mullican, DC, DACBN, CCN   
Sponsor:  Breakthrough Coaching 

Description:  Any chiropractor not practicing outcome-based care is at a loss when it comes to the success of his or her practice.  The standard of care 
in the chiropractic profession is the objective evaluation and measurement of each patient’s ability to function.  The medical necessity of the procedures 
you perform can only be established by objectively documenting how your care impacts your patients’ ability to perform their daily activities and the 
quality of their lives. Changing your patient care paradigm from passive to active care can be challenging and knowing the science behind delivering 
active care services in your practice is only half the battle. If you don't properly code and document these services, your practice won't receive the 
reimbursement that has earned.  Coding and documentation compliance have risen to the top of the CMS list of items to monitor. This session will 
provide you with valuable insight into the science, documentation, and coding of the patient-centered practice. 

 

Sunday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: Clinical/Documentation   

Documentation and Compliance Basics  with  Dianne Baynes, RN, DC, MCS-P, CPPM 
Sponsor:  KMC University  

Description:  Mastering the basics of recordkeeping and risk management has become more critical than ever with the passing of the Affordable Care 
Act and other state-level documentation and compliance rulings. No wonder chiropractors often question whether they’re doing the “right” things in these 
areas! Here’s your opportunity to get your answers right away, make sure you’re on track, and bulletproof your recordkeeping. Our distinctive approach 
to explaining case management leaves both doctor and team with a clear understanding of initial and routine visit documentation requirements, 
treatment planning, and compliance requirements. This training covers the action steps and know-how necessary to immediately take control of your 
documentation and compliance.  
 

At the end of this program, the attendee will be able to:  
 

• Understand the mechanics of the beginning of an episode of care from initial history to exam, diagnosis, and treatment planning 
• Master the requirements for daily treatment notes and re-evaluation according to guidelines 
• Establish medical necessity for your care, and be clear on when care is worthy of third-party reimbursement vs. maintenance, wellness, and 

other forms of non-third-party reimbursed care  
• Understand the requirements for documenting primary subluxations vs. secondary compensations, especially when technique-specific 

protocols dictate multiple regions of treatment 
• Interpret compliance advice and regulations directly from the Federal Office of Inspector General; when we’re operating in compliance, it’s 

much easier to sleep at night 
 

  

436



Sunday  8:00 am - 8:55 am  Credit Type: NON-CE 

The Health Insurance Landscape in Alaska  with  Joshua Weinstein, DIA/President, Northrim Benefits Group. LLC   
Sponsor:  Northrim Bank 

Description:  Get an update on the Affordable Care Act with a review of individual vs. employer coverage, insurance mandates & fees, and options 
available to you and your business. We will also share benefit ideas that will differentiate your company from your peers – allowing you to recruit, retain 
and reward those employees that make your company successful.  Further, we will cover important considerations for the healthcare industry. 

Sunday  9:00 am - 9:40 am  Credit Type: NON-CE 

Retirement Plans & Fiduciary Responsibility  with  William Schatz, CFP | Elliott Cove Capital Management   
Sponsor:  Northrim Bank 

Description:  This course will cover the plan sponsor's fiduciary obligation and liability for retirement plans and retirement plan investments. As a 
growing number of plan sponsors seek out products and services from industry specialists, it is vital that they understand their fiduciary responsibilities.  
Plus, we will cover individual retirement planning. 

Sunday  10:20 am - 10:50 am  Credit Type: NON-CE 

Government Lending Programs  with  Sue Wolfe, VP Commercia Real Estate | Bradley Kiefer, VP & Commercial Lending Officer   
Sponsor:  Northrim Bank 

Description:  This course will answer your questions regarding buying or refinancing a building, getting additional working capital, lower down payment 
options or obtain better terms utilizing government lending or participation programs. We will review AIDEA, AHFC, SBA, BIA and USDA programs. 

Sunday  10:55 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: NON-CE 

Internet Security & Fraud Prevention  with  Benjamin Craig, Exec FP & Chief Information Officer | Kathleen Bates, Senior VE & Electronic Delivery 
Manager   
Sponsor:  Northrim Bank 

Description:  This course covers threats to physical technology, internal and external security, Business to Business (vendors & customers) 
relationships as well as regulatory threats. Recommendations and best practices to guard your business and personal information will also be provided. 

 

 

Sunday  8 am - 12 pm  Credit Type: NON-CE 

Understanding Corporate Structures to Lower Tax Liability for the DC  with  Jim Bowen   
Sponsor:  Bowen, Inc. 

Description:  James  Bowen, JD, known as “the second funniest tax guy in America” will educate you on  what they do not teach you in school – using 
corporation law to significantly lower your tax liability.  This seminar has helped thousands of Docs around the country  become more profitable in just a 
few hours. 

 

  

437



Sunday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Sun PM - Club Room 1  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Sunday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: CPR   

CPR, AED and First Aid Combo - Sun PM - Club Room 2  with  Jon Hunt   
Sponsor:  Frontier Safety and Supply 

Description:  CPR and First Aid Certification through American Safety and Health Institute.  Total Credits = 4 --> CPR Credits = 2; Basic Life Support 
Credit = 1; AED Credit = 1 

 

Sunday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Clinical   

Day 1 & Day 2 Clinical Procedures that Create Value  with  Morgan Mullican, DC, DACBN, CCN   
Sponsor:  Breakthrough Coaching 

Description:  Correct clinical procedures include the process of piecing together elements to create a consistent and accurate representation of what 
was done for the patient during a given encounter and why. To perform this task, doctors and practice team members must have a keen knowledge of 
procedure, coding and compliance. In this presentation, you’ll learn the un-skippable steps to help you deliver a world-class consultation and 
examination time after time. You’ll also learn how to code for your examination procedures and structure a diagnosis correctly. We’ll help you and your 
practice team get it right from day one! 

 

Sunday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Documentation/Coding 

Medicare, and Beyond!!  with  Abbie Miller, MCS-P 
Sponsor:  KMC University 

Description:  Even the most seasoned doctors and team members have questions about and are confused by Medicare. Not only do Medicare rules 
change as often as the seasons, but carriers, consultants, and others in the profession each give a slightly different picture of “reality.”  
 
We’ll cover the basics of how Medicare works, benefiting the newest team members and doctors, and we’ll also cover four important areas of focus great 
for anyone interested in managing the Medicare monster. In this session you’ll learn:  
 

• Medicare maintenance from documentation to charges.  
• How to provide notice to Medicare patients for those services not covered by Medicare.  
• The differences when billing and collecting for Medicare patient as opposed to cash or privately insured patients.  
• Just why DCs may not opt out of Medicare.  
• The four reasons why participation in a Discount Medical Plan Organization (DMPO) makes perfect sense for Medicare patients.  
• How the Medicare ABN factors into your Medicare financial policies.  
• The difference between Clinically Appropriate Care and Medically Necessary Care, to keep your records and finances squeaky clean. 

 

Sunday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Ethics - HIPAA Security 

HIPAA Security Awareness 2016  with  Brad Heaston, MCSE   
Sponsor:  Arctic Administrators 

Description:  Describe what the clinician needs to do to achieve compliance with HIPAA Security and HITECH mandates.  Describe security standards 
like encryption and when we need them in clinical practice – legally, ethically and practically.  Relate legal duties of HIPAA covered entities to ethical 
duties around standard of care for security and privacy in clinical practice. Integrate into their practices the new concepts around Security and Privacy 
introduced in the 2013 HIPAA Final Rule.  Describe changes in the national environment around Security and Privacy that have transpired since HIPAA 
was first passed. 

 

438



Sunday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Ethics - Compliance 

Obamacare Crash Course - Making Compliance Work for You NOT Against You  with  Douglas Luther, DC, MCS-P   
Sponsor:  Patient Payment Solutions 

Description:  Do you feel like you are being regulated to death? Let’s face it, in an increasingly regulated system, it’s easy to lose sight of the forest 
through the trees.  Once again we are on the Medicare (OIG) 2016 work plan for documentation errors and maintenance care under close scrutiny.   
Insurance companies watch this, too, spurring more audits for chiropractors in the future.   With all the healthcare legislation, it’s more important than 
ever to stay up to date with all the changes to maintain compliance.  The prices we pay for sticking our heads in the sand are high- civil and criminal 
liability  along with mandatory fines are just the beginning.  What about losing your practice because of profitability issues, fines or audits? It doesn’t 
have to be this way, and we can even make a little more money along the way, if we do things right.   Let me show you how….. 

 

Sunday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: Radiology   

What's THAT?  with  Tawnia Adams, DC, DACBR   
Sponsor:  Adams Radiology Consultants 

Description:  Actual cases in which the referring clinician's question was, "What's that?"  Presentation with a focus on how to localize and characterized 
a variety of bone, joint, chest and abdominal radiographic findings in order to narrow the differential diagnosis and determine if and what type of follow 
up is necessary. Cases of normal variants which mimic disease/pathology will also be presented. 

 

Sunday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: NON-CE 

A Visual Tour of What Makes or Breaks DC Clinics - The Good.  The Bad.  The Ugly  with  Jim Bowen   
Sponsor:  Bowen, Inc. 

Description:  Clinic essentials practice managers will not tell you.  Wonder what makes some clinics successful and others…not so much?  James 
Bowen, JD brings his 25-year, 300+ clinic background of legal, business and tax consulting to teach you what work and what doesn’t work in the small 
Clinic, with over 200 pictures of the Good, the Bad and the just plain ugly.  You will learn tips that dozens have used to take their clinics to the next level. 

 

Sunday  1:30 pm - 5:30 pm  Credit Type: NON-CE 

Mastering Your Day 1 & 2 to Create Life Time Wellness Patients - NON CE  with  Miles Bodzin, DC   
Sponsor:  ChiroTouch 

Description:  Today’s chiropractic practice has changed what are you doing to keep your practice fresh and appealing to today’s new patient? More 
than ever, patients WANT chiropractic and overall wellness. How you introduce a new patient to your practice will lay the foundation for their lifetime of 
chiropractic care. Join Dr. Miles Bodzin as he walks through the steps of creating connection, trust, and hope in your practice. This foundation will set the 
stage for confidently presenting your longterm care plans with affordable payment options, all without feeling or sounding like a salesman. 

 

 

439



From: sryan@akchiro.org
To: Carrillo, Laura N (CED)
Subject: ACS Update @ Board of Chiropractic Examiners meeting 10/6/2016 @ 2:30 pm
Date: Monday, September 26, 2016 12:19:58 PM

Afternoon Laura, 
 
Here's the person I would like to bring along to my ACS Update.  I'm working with Gerry to
put together a Registered Apprenticeship Program for a Certified Chiropractic Clinical
Assistant.  
 
Gerald “Gerry” Andrews, Apprenticeship Coordinator
Alaska Department of Labor and Workforce Development
3301 Eagle Street, Suite 305,  Anchorage, Alaska  99503
 
Office Phone   907-269-3729       
Cell Phone       907-310-4097
Email   gerry.andrews@alaska.gov
 
 

DOLWD logo small

             ApprenticeshipAlaska

 
 
Sheri Ryan  |  Chief Operating Officer
Alaska Chiropractic Society | 550 E. Tudor Rd., Suite 202 |  Anchorage, AK 99503
Direct/Mobile: (907) 903-1350 | Fax: (907) 770-3790
sryan@akchiro.org | Facebook  |  Twitter  | Website
 
 

440

mailto:sryan@akchiro.org
mailto:laura.carrillo@alaska.gov
mailto:gerry.andrews@alaska.gov
https://www.facebook.com/Alaska-Chiropractic-Society-164135923597998/
https://twitter.com/AKChiroSociety
http://www.akchiro.org/


Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

441



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

442



Agenda Item #15

Administrative Business 

443



Task List from May 20
th

 & June 16
th

, 2016 

 

Reinhardt: 

 Dr. Reinhardt will work on a position statement for valid therapies under chiropractic 

manipulation. Dr. Barrington will advise as necessary. 

Examiner: 

 Ms. Carrillo will contact Dr. Risch and Dr. Heston as to whom would be the initial 

reviewer for continuing education applications. 

 Ms. Carrillo will draft a renewal activity log to be posted to the Board’s site. This log will 

not be required to be submitted at the time of renewal, but is intended to be used for 

personal record keeping of continuing education activity. 

 Ms. Carrillo will contact Dr. Kim Lazarus for payment of the continuing education fee 

prior to approving the individual study program. 

 Ms. Carrillo will double-check the minutes from the May 20
th

, 2016 meeting to confirm 

whether or not the Board approved Dr. Heston’s proposed NBCE changes. If there was 

no vote on record, Ms. Carrillo would send the proposed changes for a vote via e-mail 

ballot.  

 Ms. Carrillo will send the minutes relating to regulation changes for courtesy licenses, 

NBCE exams, approved specialty designation programs, and continuing education to the 

regulations specialist once all motions are on record.  

 

 

444



Wall certificates for: 





Tara Workman 
Natalie Phelps

445



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 

446



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

Sec. 44.62.310.  Government meetings public. 
(c) The following subject may be considered in an executive session: 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the public entity; 

(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, provided 
the person may request a public discussion; 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject to 
public disclosure. 

 
 
MOTION WORDING: 
 
“In accordance with the provisions of Alaska Statute 44.62.310 (c), I move to go into 
executive session for the purpose of discussing (select the appropriate statutory citation for 
the situation): 
 

(1) matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 

upon the finances of the public entity;  OR 

 
(2) subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 

provided the person may request a public discussion;  OR 

 

(3) matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be   

confidential;  OR 
 

(4) matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not subject 
to public disclosure. 

 

Board staff is requested to remain during the session  OR   
Board only to remain during session.” 
 
Staff will then state “The board is off the record at __________(time).” 
 

447



 

 

 

 

 

Statutes/Regulations 
 

 

 

448



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  SSttaattuutteess  aanndd  RReegguullaattiioonnss  
 CChhiirroopprraaccttoorrss  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 AAuugguusstt  22001144  
(Centralized Statutes and Regulations not included) 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY,  
AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS  

AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 
 
 

NOTE:  The official version of the statutes in this document is printed in the Alaska Statutes, copyrighted by the 
State of Alaska.  The official version of the regulations in this document is published in the Alaska 
Administrative Code, copyrighted by the State of Alaska.  If any discrepancies are found between this 
document and the official versions, the official versions will apply. 

 

449



TTAABBLLEE  OOFF  CCOONNTTEENNTTSS  

Page 

Section 

1. Chiropractor Statutes
(AS 08.20) ...........................................................................................1 

2. Chiropractor Regulations
(12 AAC 16) .......................................................................................7 

3. Appendix A:  Radiation Protection Regulation
(18 AAC 85) .....................................................................................21 

4. Appendix B: Notice on Superiority Advertising ............................31

450



CHAPTER 20. 
CHIROPRACTORS. 

 
Article 
 1. Board of Chiropractic Examiners (§§ 08.20.010—08.20.090) 
 2. Licensing and Regulation (§§ 08.20.100—08.20.185) 
 3. Unlawful Acts and Penalties (§§ 08.20.200—08.20.210) 
 4. General Provisions (§§ 08.20.230—08.20.900) 

 
 

ARTICLE 1. 
BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS. 

 
Section 
 10. Creation and membership of Board of Chiropractic Examiners 
 20. Members of board 
 25. Removal of board members 
 40. Organization of board 
 50. Power of officers to administer oaths and take testimony 
 55. Board regulations 
 60. Seal 
 90. Quorum of board 

 
Sec. 08.20.010.  Creation and membership of Board of Chiropractic Examiners. There is created the Board 

of Chiropractic Examiners consisting of five members appointed by the governor. 
 
Sec. 08.20.020.  Members of board. Four members of the board shall be licensed chiropractic physicians who 

have practiced chiropractic in this state not less than two years.  One member of the board shall be a person with no 
direct financial interest in the health care industry.  Each member serves without pay but is entitled to per diem and 
travel expenses allowed by law. 

 
Sec. 08.20.025.  Removal of board members. A member of the board may be removed from office by the 

governor for cause. 
 
Sec. 08.20.040.  Organization of board. Every two years, the board shall elect from its membership a president, 

vice-president and secretary. 
 
Sec. 08.20.050.  Power of officers to administer oaths and take testimony. The president and the secretary 

may administer oaths in conjunction with the business of the board. 
 
Sec. 08.20.055.  Board regulations.  The board shall adopt substantive regulations necessary to effect the 

provisions of this chapter, including regulations establishing standards for 
(1) continuing education; and 
(2) the application, performance, and evaluation of chiropractic core methodology. 

 
Sec. 08.20.060.  Seal. The board shall adopt a seal and affix it to all licenses issued. 

 
Sec. 08.20.090.  Quorum of board. A majority of the board constitutes a quorum for the transaction of business. 
 
 

ARTICLE 2. 
LICENSING AND REGULATION. 

 
Section 
 100. Practice of chiropractic 
 110. Application for license 
 120. Qualifications for license 
 130. Examinations 
 141. Licensure by credentials 
 155. Professional designation 
 160. Temporary permits 
 163. Temporary permit for locum tenens practice 
 165. Inactive license status 
 167. Retired license status 
 170. Disciplinary sanctions; refusal to issue or renew license 

451



 180. Fees 
 185. Peer review committee; confidentiality 
 

Sec. 08.20.100.  Practice of chiropractic. (a) A person may not practice chiropractic or use chiropractic core 
methodology in the state without a license. 

(b) A person licensed under this chapter may 
(1) analyze, diagnose, or treat the chiropractic condition of a patient by chiropractic core methodology or by 

ancillary methodology; 
(2) accept referrals for chiropractic treatment; 
(3) consult on chiropractic matters; 
(4) refer patients to other health care professionals; 
(5) sign 

(A) within the scope of chiropractic practice, certificates of physical examinations for children before they 
enter school; 

(B) reports for excuses from employment and from attendance at school or participation in sports 
activities; and 

(C) authorizations for sick leave; 
(6) perform preemployment and workplace health examinations; 
(7) provide disability and physical impairment ratings; and 
(8) provide retirement health and disability authorizations and recommendations. 

(c) A person licensed under this chapter is not authorized to sign affidavits exempting school children from 
immunization requirements under AS 14.30.125 or to administer or interpret the results of infectious disease tests 
required by statute or regulation. 

 
Sec. 08.20.110.  Application for license. A person desiring to practice chiropractic shall apply in writing to the 

board. 
 

Sec. 08.20.120.  Qualifications for license. (a) An applicant shall be issued a license to practice chiropractic if 
the applicant 

(1) has a high school education or its equivalent; 
(2) has successfully completed at least two academic years of study in a college of liberal arts or sciences or 

has engaged in the active licensed practice of chiropractic for three of the four years preceding the filing of the 
application; 

(3) is a graduate of a school or college of chiropractic that 
(A) is accredited by or a candidate for accreditation by the Council on Chiropractic Education or a 

successor accrediting agency recognized by the board; or 
(B) if an accrediting agency under (A) of this paragraph does not exist, requires the completion of a 

minimum of 4,000 hours of formal education and training in order to graduate, including 
 (i) 150 hours of chiropractic philosophy or principles; 
 (ii) 1,200 hours of basic sciences, including anatomy, chemistry, physiology, and pathology; 
 (iii) 1,400 hours of preclinical technique, including diagnosis, chiropractic technique, and x-ray; and 
 (iv) 700 hours of clinical training; 

(4) completes 120 hours of formal training in physiological therapeutics; 
(5) passes an examination given by the board; and 
(6) passes, to the satisfaction of the board, the parts of the examination of the National Board of Chiropractic 

Examiners required by the board.  
(b) Repealed 1996. 
 
Sec. 08.20.130.  Examinations. (a) Examinations for a license to practice chiropractic may be held in the time 

and manner fixed by the board. 
(b) The examination may include practical demonstration and oral and written examination in those subjects 

usually taught in accredited chiropractic schools. 
(c) A general average rating of 75 percent is a passing grade on the examination. 
(d) An applicant may take a reexamination within one year after failing the examination. 

 
Sec. 08.20.141.  Licensure by credentials.  The board may issue a license by credentials to an applicant who 

pays the appropriate fee and presents satisfactory proof that the applicant  
(1) is a graduate of a school or college of chiropractic that  

(A) is accredited by or a candidate for accreditation by the Council on Chiropractic Education or a 
successor accrediting agency recognized by the board; or  

(B) if an accrediting agency under (A) of this paragraph does not exist, requires the completion of a 
minimum of 4,000 hours of formal education and training in order to graduate, including  
 (i) 150 hours of chiropractic philosophy or principles;  
 (ii) 1,200 hours of basic sciences, including anatomy, chemistry, physiology, and pathology;  
 (iii) 1,400 hours of preclinical technique, including diagnosis, chiropractic technique, and x-rays; and 

452



 (iv) 700 hours of clinical training;  
(2) has held a license in good standing to practice chiropractic in another jurisdiction for the five years 

preceding the date of application; for purposes of this paragraph, "good standing" means that  
(A) no action has been reported about the applicant in the national licensee database of the Federation of 

Chiropractic Licensing Boards;  
(B) the applicant has not, within the five years preceding the date of application, been the subject of an 

unresolved review or an adverse decision based on a complaint, investigation, review procedure, or disciplinary 
proceeding undertaken by a foreign, state, territorial, local, or federal chiropractic licensing jurisdiction, chiropractic 
society, or law enforcement agency that relates to criminal or fraudulent activity, chiropractic malpractice, or 
negligent chiropractic care and that adversely reflects on the applicant's ability or competence to engage in the 
practice of chiropractic or on the safety or well-being of patients;  

(C) the applicant has not been convicted of a felony within the five years preceding the date of application;  
(3) has been in active licensed clinical chiropractic practice for at least three of the five years immediately 

preceding the date of application;  
(4) has passed, to the satisfaction of the board, the parts of the examination of the National Board of 

Chiropractic Examiners required by the board; 
(5) has passed an examination approved by the board that is designed to test the applicant's knowledge of the 

laws of the state governing the practice of chiropractic and the regulations adopted under those laws; and  
(6) has completed 120 hours of formal training in physiological therapeutics or has passed, to the satisfaction 

of the board, a physiological therapeutics examination of the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners required by 
the board. 
 

Sec. 08.20.155.  Professional designation. Notwithstanding the provisions of AS 08.02.010 relating to specialist 
designations, a person licensed under this chapter may not designate a specialty unless the person has completed a 
postgraduate specialty program at an accredited school approved by the board and the person has passed a 
certification exam for the specialty approved by the board.  All specialty designations must include the term 
“chiropractic” 
 

Sec. 08.20.160.  Temporary permits. Temporary permits may be issued to persons apparently qualified until the 
next regular meeting of the board. 

 
Sec. 08.20.163. Temporary permit for locum tenens practice. (a) The board may grant a temporary permit to a 

chiropractor for the purpose of the chiropractor’s substituting for another chiropractor licensed in this state. The 
permit is valid for 60 consecutive days. If circumstances warrant, an extension of the permit may be granted by the 
board. 

(b) A chiropractor applying under (a) of this section shall pay the required fee and shall meet the 
(1) requirements of AS 08.20.120; or 
(2) following requirements: 

(A) submit evidence of a current license in good standing, including 
 (i) no action reported in the national licensee database of the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing 
Boards; 
 (ii) not having been, within the five years preceding the date of application, the subject of an unresolved 
review or an adverse decision based upon a complaint, investigation, review procedure, or disciplinary proceeding 
undertaken by a state, territorial, local, or federal chiropractic licensing jurisdiction, chiropractic society, or law 
enforcement agency that relates to criminal or fraudulent activity, chiropractic malpractice, or negligent chiropractic 
care and that adversely reflects on the applicant’s ability or competence to engage in the practice of chiropractic or 
on the safety or well-being of patients; and 
 (iii) no conviction for a felony within the five years preceding the date of application; 

(B) submit evidence of five years of active licensed clinical practice; 
(C) be a graduate of a school or college of chiropractic that is accredited by or a candidate for accreditation 

by the Council on Chiropractic Education or a successor accrediting agency recognized by the board; 
(D) have completed 120 hours of formal training in physiological therapeutics or have passed, to the 

satisfaction of the board, a physiological therapeutic examination of the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners 
required by the board; 

(E) have passed, to the satisfaction of the board, Parts I and II of the examination of the National Board of 
Chiropractic Examiners; and 

(F) pass an examination given by the board. 
(c) Permits and extensions of permits issued under this section to an individual are not valid for more than 240 

days during any consecutive 24 months. 
 
Sec. 08.20.165. Inactive license status. (a) A licensee who does not practice in the state may convert a license to 

inactive status when renewing the license. A person who practices in the state, however infrequently, shall hold an 
active license. A person renewing an inactive license shall meet the same renewal requirements that would be 
applicable if the person were renewing an active license. 

(b) A person who has an inactive license certificate under (a) of this section may reactivate the license by 

453



applying for an active license and paying the required fees.  
 

Sec. 08.20.167. Retired license status. (a) Upon retiring from practice and upon payment of an appropriate one-
time fee, a licensee in good standing with the board may apply for the conversion of an active or inactive license to a 
retired status license. A person holding a retired status license may not practice chiropractic in the state. A retired 
status license is valid for the life of the license holder and does not require renewal. A person holding a retired status 
license is exempt from continuing education requirements adopted by the board under AS 08.20.170 (d). 

(b) A person with a retired status license may apply for active licensure. Before issuing an active license under 
this subsection, the board may require the applicant to meet reasonable criteria, as determined under regulations of 
the board, that may include submission of continuing education credits, reexamination requirements, physical and 
psychiatric examination requirements, an interview with the board, and a review of information in the national 
licensee database of the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards. 
 

Sec. 08.20.170.  Disciplinary sanctions; refusal to issue or renew license. (a) The board may impose a 
disciplinary sanction on a person licensed under this chapter or refuse to issue a license under this chapter when the 
board finds that the person 

(1) secured or attempted to secure a license through deceit, fraud, or intentional misrepresentation; 
(2) engaged in deceit, fraud, or intentional misrepresentation in the course of providing professional services 

or engaging in professional activities; 
(3) advertised professional services in a false or misleading manner; 
(4) has been convicted, including a conviction based on a guilty plea or plea of nolo contendere, of 

(A) a felony or other crime that affects the person's ability to practice competently and safely; or 
(B) a crime involving the unlawful procurement, sale, prescription, or dispensing of drugs; 

(5) intentionally or negligently engaged in or permitted the performance of patient care by persons under the 
licensee’s supervision that does not conform to minimum professional standards established by regulation regardless 
of whether actual injury to the patient occurred; 

(6) failed to comply with this chapter, with a regulation adopted under this chapter, or with an order of the 
board; 

(7) continued or attempted to practice after becoming unfit due to 
(A) professional incompetence; 
(B) addiction or severe dependency on alcohol or a drug that impairs the person's ability to practice safely; 
(C) physical or mental disability or an infectious or contagious disease; 

(8) engaged in lewd or immoral conduct in connection with the delivery of professional service to patients; or 
(9) failed to satisfy continuing education requirements adopted by the board. 

(b) AS 44.62 (Administrative Procedure Act) applies to any action taken by the board for the suspension or 
revocation of a license. 

(c) A person whose license is suspended or revoked may within two years from date of suspension apply for 
reinstatement, and if the board is satisfied that the applicant should be reinstated, it shall order reinstatement. 

(d) The board shall adopt regulations which ensure that renewal of license is contingent on proof of continued 
competency by a practitioner. 
 

Sec. 08.20.180.  Fees. (a) An applicant for an examination, reexamination, issuance of a temporary permit under 
AS 08.20.160, issuance of a locum tenens permit under AS 08.20.163, issuance of a license by credentials under 
AS 08.20.141, one-time issuance of a retired status license, or initial issuance or renewal of an active or inactive 
license shall pay a fee established under AS 08.01.065. 

(b) Repealed Sec. 24 ch. 22 SLA 2001. 
 

Sec. 08.20.185.  Peer review committee; confidentiality. (a) In addition to peer review authorized under 
AS 08.01.075, the board may establish a peer review committee to review complaints concerning the reasonableness 
or appropriateness of care provided, fees charged, or costs for services rendered by a licensee to a patient. A review 
conducted by a peer review committee under this section may be utilized by the board in considering disciplinary 
action against a licensee but the results or recommendations of a peer review committee are not binding upon the 
board. A member of a peer review committee established under this section who in good faith submits a report under 
this section or participates in an investigation or judicial proceeding related to a report submitted under this section 
is immune from civil liability for the submission or participation. 

(b) The board shall charge a complainant a fee, established under AS 08.01.065, for peer review under this 
section. 

(c) Patient records presented to a peer review committee for review under this section that were confidential 
before their presentation to the committee are confidential to the committee members and to the board members and 
are not subject to inspection or copying under AS 40.25.110 - 40.25.125.  A committee member or board member to 
whom confidential records are presented under this subsection shall maintain the confidentiality of the records.  A 
person who violates this subsection is guilty of a class B misdemeanor. 
 
 
 

454



ARTICLE 3. 
UNLAWFUL ACTS AND PENALTIES. 

 
Section 
 200. Unlicensed practice a misdemeanor 
 210. Fraudulent certificates 

 
Sec. 08.20.200.  Unlicensed practice a misdemeanor.  A person who practices chiropractic in the state without 

a license in violation of AS 08.20.100 is guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction is punishable by a fine of not 
more than $1,000, or by imprisonment for not more than a year, or by both. 

 
Sec. 08.20.210.  Fraudulent certificates. Any person who obtains or attempts to obtain a chiropractic certificate 

by dishonest or fraudulent means, or who forges, counterfeits, or fraudulently alters a chiropractic certificate is 
punishable by a fine of not more than $500, or by imprisonment for not more than six months, or by both. 

 
 

ARTICLE 4. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 
Section 
 230. Practice of chiropractic 
 900. Definitions 
 

Sec. 08.20.230.  Practice of chiropractic. The practice of chiropractic 
(1) addresses ramifications of health and disease with a special emphasis on biomechanical analysis, 

interpretation and treatment of the structural and functional integrity of skeletal joint structures, and the 
physiological efficiency of the nervous system as these matters relate to subluxation complex; and 

(2) involves the diagnosis, analysis, or formulation of a chiropractic diagnostic impression regarding the 
chiropractic conditions of the patient to determine the appropriate method of chiropractic treatment. 

 
Sec. 08.20.900.  Definitions. In this chapter, 

(1) “ancillary methodology” means employing within the scope of chiropractic practice, with appropriate 
training and education, those methods, procedures, modalities, devices, and measures commonly used by trained and 
licensed health care providers and includes 

(A) physiological therapeutics; and 
(B) counseling on dietary regimen, sanitary measures, physical and mental attitudes affecting health, 

personal hygiene, occupational safety, lifestyle habits, posture, rest, and work habits that enhance the effects of 
chiropractic adjustment; 

(2) “board” means the Board of Chiropractic Examiners; 
(3) “chiropractic” is the clinical science of human health and disease that focuses on the detection, correction, 

and prevention of the subluxation complex and the employment of physiological therapeutic procedures preparatory 
to and complementary with the correction of the subluxation complex for the purpose of enhancing the body’s 
inherent recuperative powers, without the use of surgery or prescription drugs; the primary therapeutic vehicle of 
chiropractic is chiropractic adjustment; 

(4) “chiropractic adjustment” means the application of a precisely controlled force applied by hand or by 
mechanical device to a specific focal point of the anatomy for the express purpose of creating a desired angular 
movement in skeletal joint structures in order to eliminate or decrease interference with neural transmission and 
correct or attempt to correct subluxation complex; “chiropractic adjustment” utilizes, as appropriate, short lever 
force, high velocity force, short amplitude force, or specific line-of-correction force to achieve the desired angular 
movement, as well as low force neuro-muscular, neuro-vascular, neuro-cranial, or neuro-lymphatic reflex technique 
procedures; 

(5) “chiropractic core methodology” means the treatment and prevention of subluxation complex by 
chiropractic adjustment as indicated by a chiropractic diagnosis and includes the determination of contra-indications 
to chiropractic adjustment, the normal regimen and rehabilitation of the patient, and patient education procedures; 
chiropractic core methodology does not incorporate the use of prescription drugs, surgery, needle acupuncture, 
obstetrics, or x-rays used for therapeutic purposes; 

(6) “chiropractic diagnosis” means a diagnosis made by a person licensed under this chapter based on a 
chiropractic examination; 

(7) “chiropractic examination” means an examination of a patient conducted by or under the supervision of a 
person licensed under this chapter for the express purpose of ascertaining whether symptoms of subluxation 
complex exist and consisting of an analysis of the patient’s health history, current health status, results of diagnostic 
procedures including x-ray and other diagnostic imaging devices, and postural, thermal, physical, neuro-physical, 
and spinal examinations that focuses on the discovery of 

(A) the existence and etiology of disrelationships of skeletal joint structures; and 
(B) interference with normal nerve transmission and expression; 

455



(8) “manipulation” means an application of a resistive movement by applying a nonspecific force without the 
use of a thrust, that is directed into a region and not into a focal point of the anatomy for the general purpose of 
restoring movement and reducing fixations; 

(9) “physiological therapeutics” means the therapeutic application of forces that induce a physiologic 
response and use or allow the natural processes of the body to return to a more normal state of health; physiological 
therapeutics encompasses the diagnosis and treatment of disorders of the body, utilizing 

(A) manipulation; 
(B) the natural healing forces associated with air, cold, heat, electricity, exercise, light, massage, water, 

nutrition, sound, rest, and posture; 
(C) thermotherapy, cryotherapy, high frequency currents, low frequency currents, interferential currents, 

hydrotherapy, exercise therapy, rehabilitative therapy, meridian therapy, vibratory therapy, traction and stretching, 
bracing and supports, trigger point therapy, and other forms of therapy; 

(10) “subluxation complex” means a biomechanical or other disrelation or a skeletal structural disrelationship, 
misalignment, or dysfunction in a part of the body resulting in aberrant nerve transmission and expression. 
 

456



CHAPTER 16. 
BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS. 

 
Article 
 1. The Board (12 AAC 16.010—12 AAC 16.020) 
 2. Licensing (12 AAC 16.030—12 AAC 16.270) 
 3. Continuing Education (12 AAC 16.280—12 AAC 16.390) 
 4. Peer Review (12 AAC 16.400—12 AAC 16.430) 
 5. General Provisions (12 AAC 16.900—12 AAC 16.990) 

 
 

ARTICLE 1. 
THE BOARD. 

 
Section 
 10. Objectives 

20. Meetings 
 

12 AAC 16.010.  OBJECTIVES.  (a) It is the objective of the board to foster professional standards consistent 
with the best interests of the public. 

(b) It is the objective of the board to adhere to the Code of Ethics of the American Chiropractic Association or 
International Chiropractic Association as a basis for considering what comprises the duties and obligations of 
chiropractors to the public. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055 
 

12 AAC 16.020.  MEETINGS.  The board will, in its discretion, meet at least twice each year for the transaction 
of business and examination of applicants. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.130 
 

 
ARTICLE 2. 
LICENSING. 

 
Section 
 30. Application for licensure by examination 
 31. Application for temporary permit for locum tenens practice 
 32. (Repealed) 
 33. Application for licensure by credentials 
 35. (Repealed) 
 37. National examination requirements 
 40. Evaluation of academic study in liberal arts or science  
 45. Accredited school or college 
 46. Chiropractic specialty designation 
 47. Chiropractic specialty program criteria 
 48. Approved chiropractic specialty programs 
 50. (Repealed) 
 60. (Repealed) 
 70. (Repealed) 
 80. (Repealed) 
 90. (Repealed) 
 100. (Repealed) 
 110. (Repealed) 
 120. (Repealed) 
 130. State chiropractic examination 
 140. (Repealed) 
 150. Reexamination 
 160. (Repealed) 
 170. Special examination 
 180. (Repealed) 
 185. (Repealed) 
 190. (Repealed) 
 200. Temporary permits 
 205. Courtesy license 

457



 210. (Repealed) 
 211. (Repealed) 
 220. (Repealed) 
 230. (Repealed) 
 240. (Repealed) 
 250. (Repealed) 
 260. (Repealed) 
 270. (Repealed) 

 
12 AAC 16.030.  APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE BY EXAMINATION.  (a) Except as provided in (b) of 

this section, a person applying for chiropractic licensure by examination shall submit, at least 45 days before the 
next scheduled state chiropractic examination, 

(1) a completed application on a form provided by the department; 
(2) the fees established in 12 AAC 02.150; 
(3) official college transcripts showing that the applicant has met the education requirements of 

AS 08.20.120(a)(1), (3), and (4); 
(4) an official grade transcript sent directly to the department from the National Board of Chiropractic 

Examiners showing that the applicant has passed the applicable examination described in 12 AAC 16.037; 
(5) either 

(A) official college transcripts showing that the applicant has met the education requirements of AS 
08.20.120(a)(2); or 

(B) evidence of active licensed practice of chiropractic for at least three of the four years preceding the 
date that the application was filed;  

(6) if the applicant holds or has ever held a license to practice chiropractic, verification of the present status of 
the applicant’s license from each jurisdiction where the applicant holds or has ever held a license to practice 
chiropractic, sent directly to the department from the licensing jurisdiction; and 

(7) a report under AS 12.62 containing criminal history record information concerning the applicant and 
issued no earlier than 90 days before the application; if a state other than this state is the applicant's primary state of 
residence, or if the applicant holds or has ever held a license in a state other than this state to practice chiropractic, 
the applicant shall also submit an equivalent report issued by that other state and issued no earlier than 90 days 
before the application. 

(b) The board may approve an applicant to take the state chiropractic examination before the applicant meets the 
requirements of (a)(3), (4), and (5)(A) of this section, if the registrar of the applicant's chiropractic college provides 
a letter to the board verifying that the applicant 

(1) is currently enrolled in the chiropractic college; 
(2) is actively pursuing completion of a chiropractic curriculum; and 
(3) has obtained senior status and is working on the clinical portion of the curriculum. 

(c) Repealed 1/29/2009. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.120  AS 08.20.170 
  AS 08.20.110  AS 08.20.130 
 

12 AAC 16.031.  APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY PERMIT FOR LOCUM TENENS PRACTICE. 
(a) A person applying for a temporary permit for locum tenens practice must meet the applicable requirements 

of AS 08.20.163 and this section, including passing the state chiropractic examination described in 12 AAC 16.130. 
(b) An applicant applying for a temporary permit for locum tenens practice under AS 08.20.163(b)(1) and this 

section shall submit 
(1) a completed application on a form provided by the department; 
(2) the applicable fees established in 12 AAC 02.150; 
(3) official college transcripts showing that the applicant meets the education requirements of 

AS 08.20.120(a)(2) - (4); and 
(4) an official grade transcript sent directly to the department from the National Board of Chiropractic 

Examiners showing that the applicant has successfully passed the applicable national examinations described in 12 
AAC 16.037. 

(c) An applicant applying for a temporary permit for locum tenens practice under AS 08.20.163(b)(2) and this 
section shall submit 

(1) a completed application on a form provided by the department; 
(2) the applicable fees established in 12 AAC 02.150; 
(3) official college transcripts showing that the applicant meets the education requirements of 

AS 08.20.163(b)(2)(C) and (D); 
(4) an official grade transcript sent directly to the department from the National Board of Chiropractic 

Examiners showing that the applicant has successfully passed the examinations described in AS 08.20.l63(b)(2)(D) 
and (E); 

(5) verification of practice showing that the applicant meets the requirements of AS 08.20.163(b)(2)(B); 

458



(6) verification of the applicant’s licensure status and complete information regarding any disciplinary action 
or investigation taken or pending, sent directly to the department from all licensing jurisdictions where the applicant 
holds or has ever held a chiropractic license; and 

(7) a notarized, sworn statement by the applicant that the applicant has not been, within the five years 
preceding the date of application, the subject of an unresolved review or an adverse decision based upon a 
complaint, investigation, review procedure, or disciplinary proceeding undertaken by a state, territorial, local, or 
federal chiropractic licensing jurisdiction, chiropractic society, or law enforcement agency that relates to criminal or 
fraudulent activity, chiropractic malpractice, or negligent chiropractic care and that adversely reflects on ability or 
competence to engage in the practice of chiropractic or the safety or well-being of patients;  

(8) repealed 5/27/2006. 
(d) An applicant applying for a temporary permit for locum tenens practice under AS 08.20.163 and this section 

shall submit 
(1) a notarized, sworn statement by the chiropractor licensed in this state for whom the applicant will 

substitute, including the dates of the substitute practice and the date that the chiropractor licensed in this state will 
resume practice; and 

(2) a report under AS 12.62 containing criminal history record information concerning the applicant and 
issued no earlier than 90 days before the application; if a state other than this state is the applicant's primary state of 
residence, or if the applicant holds or has ever held a license in a state other than this state to practice chiropractic, 
the applicant shall also submit an equivalent report issued by that other state and issued no earlier than 90 days 
before the application. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.163  AS 08.20.170 
  AS 08.20.120 
 

12 AAC 16.032.  APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE BY CREDENTIALS.  Repealed 12/7/97. 
 
12 AAC 16.033.  APPLICATION FOR LICENSURE BY CREDENTIALS.  An applicant for licensure by 

credentials must meet the requirements of AS 08.20.141, pass the examination required under AS 08.20.141(5), and 
submit, at least 45 days before the next scheduled state chiropractic examination, the following: 

(1) a completed application on a form provided by the department; 
(2) the applicable fees established in 12 AAC 02.150; 
(3) evidence that the applicant has held a license in good standing to practice chiropractic in another 

jurisdiction for the five years preceding the date of application; 
(4) verification of the present status of the applicant’s license from each jurisdiction where the applicant holds 

or has ever held a license to practice chiropractic; 
(5) evidence of active licensed clinical chiropractic practice for at least three out of the last five years 

immediately preceding the date of application; 
(6) official transcripts showing that the applicant is a graduate of a school or college of chiropractic that was, 

at the time of graduation, accredited by or a candidate for accreditation by the Council on Chiropractic Education or 
a successor accrediting agency recognized by the board; 

(7) an official grade transcript sent directly to the department from the National Board of Chiropractic 
Examiners showing that the applicant has successfully passed either the Special Purposes Examination of 
Chiropractic (SPEC) or both parts one and two of the national examination;  

(8) either 
(A) evidence of completion of 120 hours of formal training in physiological therapeutics; or  
(B) an official grade transcript sent directly to the department from the National Board of Chiropractic 

Examiners showing that the applicant has successfully passed the physiological therapeutics examination; 
(9) a notarized sworn statement by the applicant that the applicant has not, within the five years preceding the 

date of application, been the subject of an unresolved review or an adverse decision based upon a complaint, 
investigation, review procedure, or disciplinary proceeding undertaken by a foreign, state, territorial, local, or 
federal chiropractic licensing jurisdiction, chiropractic society, or law enforcement agency that relates to criminal or 
fraudulent activity, chiropractic malpractice, or negligent chiropractic care and that adversely reflects on the 
applicant’s ability or competence to engage in the practice of chiropractic or on the safety or well-being of patients; 

(10) a report under AS 12.62 containing criminal history record information concerning the applicant and 
issued no earlier than 90 days before the application; if a state other than this state is the applicant's primary state of 
residence, or if the applicant holds or has ever held a license in a state other than this state to practice chiropractic, 
the applicant shall also submit an equivalent report issued by that other state and issued no earlier than 90 days 
before the application. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.130  AS 08.20.170 
  AS 08.20.110  AS 08.20.141 
 

12 AAC 16.035.  LICENSE-BY-EXAMINATION; NATIONAL BOARD CERTIFICATION.  Repealed 
5/10/90. 

 

459



12 AAC 16.037.  NATIONAL EXAMINATION REQUIREMENTS.  (a) To satisfy the examination 
requirements of AS 08.20.120(a)(6), an applicant must pass each subject of the following parts of the examination of 
the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners, and  the elective physiotherapy examination; 

(1) if the applicant graduated before 1987 from a school or college of chiropractic that meets the requirements 
of AS 08.20.120(a)(3), parts one and two of the national examination; 

(2) if the applicant graduated after 1986 from a school or college of chiropractic that meets the requirements 
of AS 08.20.120(a)(3), parts one, two, and three of the national examination. 

(b) An applicant who has been in the active practice of chiropractic for five continuous years before the date of 
application for a license in the state may substitute successful passage of the Special Purposes Examination of 
Chiropractic (SPEC) of the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners for part three of the examination of the 
National Board of Chiropractic Examiners. 

(c) To pass a national examination subject, an applicant must achieve a minimum score of  
(1) 75 percent for an examination taken before October 1983; or 
(2) 375 for an examination taken on or after October 1983. 

(d) Beginning September 1, 1998, to satisfy the examination requirements of AS 08.20.120(a)(6), in addition to 
the requirements of (a) of this section, an applicant must also pass part four of the national examination. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.120  AS 08.20.130 
 

12 AAC 16.040.  EVALUATION OF ACADEMIC STUDY IN LIBERAL ARTS OR SCIENCE.  After 
evaluating an applicant’s academic study as required by AS 08.20.120(a)(3), it must be apparent that the course of 
academic study corresponds with that which is available from the University of Alaska or is acceptable to a regional 
accrediting agency for approved colleges of liberal arts or sciences. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.120 
 

12 AAC 16.045.  ACCREDITED SCHOOL OR COLLEGE.  (a) For the purpose of AS 08.20.120(a)(3), an 
accredited school or college of chiropractic is a chiropractic program or institution that is accredited by or meets 
standards equivalent to those of the Council on Chiropractic Education. 

(b) The definition in (a) of this section applies to all colleges of chiropractic from which an applicant for 
licensure matriculates after the effective date of this section. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.120 
 

12 AAC 16.046.  CHIROPRACTIC SPECIALTY DESIGNATION.  (a) A chiropractor licensed under 
AS 08.20 and this chapter applying for an initial or renewal specialty chiropractic designation shall submit  

(1) a completed application on a form provided by the department; 
(2) the specialty designation fee established in 12 AAC 02.150; 
(3) for the initial specialty chiropractic designation, documentation of the successful completion of a 

postgraduate specialty program at an accredited school approved by the board, mailed directly to the department 
from the accredited school; 

(4) documentation of certification or diplomate status issued by the certification program or diplomate board 
verifying that the licensee has met the protocols, guidelines, standards, continuing competency examinations, and 
coursework established by the certification program or diplomate board, mailed directly to the department from the 
certifying body. 

(b) Upon approval by the board, the department will issue a new license with the specialty designation. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.155 
 

12 AAC 16.047.  CHIROPRACTIC SPECIALTY PROGRAM CRITERIA.  (a) To be approved by the 
board, a postgraduate diplomate chiropractic specialty program must 

(1) be comprised of a minimum of 300 classroom hours; and 
(2) require passage of appropriate examinations administered by the approved specialty board. 

(b) To be approved by the board, a postgraduate chiropractic specialty certification program must 
(1) be offered by a program or institution accredited by the Council on Chiropractic Education; 
(2) be comprised of a minimum of 120 classroom hours; and 
(3) require passage of appropriate examinations administered by the approved program. 

 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.155 
 

12 AAC 16.048.  APPROVED CHIROPRACTIC SPECIALTY PROGRAMS.  (a) The following 
postgraduate diplomate specialty programs are approved by the board, if the board determines that the program 
meets the requirements of 12 AAC 16.047: 

(1) Chiropractic Diagnostic Imaging (DACBR) program administered by the American Chiropractic 
Association Council on Diagnostic Imaging (Roentgenology); 

460



(2) Chiropractic Rehabilitation (DACRB) program administered by the American Chiropractic Association 
Council on Chiropractic Physiological Therapeutics and Rehabilitation; 

(3) Chiropractic Clinical Nutrition (DACBN) program administered by the American Chiropractic 
Association Council on Nutrition; 

(4) Chiropractic Diagnosis and Management of Internal Disorders (DABCI) program administered by the 
American Chiropractic Association Council on Family Practice; 

(5) Chiropractic Orthopedics (DABCO) program administered by the American Chiropractic Association 
Council on Orthopedists; 

(6) Chiropractic Clinical Neurology program administered by the 
(A) American Chiropractic Academy of Neurology (DACAN or FACCN); 
(B) American Chiropractic Association Council on Neurology (DABCN); 
(C) American Chiropractic Neurology Board (DACNB); 

(7) Chiropractic Sports Physician (DACBSP) program administered by the American Chiropractic Board of 
Sports Physicians; 

(8) Chiropractic Forensics (DABFP) program administered by the American Board of Forensic Professionals. 
(b) The following postgraduate specialty certification programs are approved by the board, if the board 

determines that the program meets the requirements of 12 AAC 16.047: 
(1) Certified Chiropractic Sports Physician (CCSP) program administered by the American Chiropractic 

Association Sports Council; 
(2) Certificate in Chiropractic Thermography (CACBT) program administered by the American Chiropractic 

Association Council on Thermography; 
(3) Certificate in Chiropractic Pediatrics program administered by the International Chiropractors Association 

(ICA) Council on Chiropractic Pediatrics. 
(c) The board may approve other postgraduate diplomate specialty programs or specialty certification programs 

upon written request by the program sponsor.  In order to be approved by the board, the program sponsor must 
include in the written request documentation showing that the program meets the requirements in 12 AAC 16.047. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.155 
 

12 AAC 16.050.  NOTIFICATION.  Repealed 6/3/89. 
 
12 AAC 16.060.  SCHEDULE.  Repealed 9/30/81. 
 
12 AAC 16.070.  BASIS OF QUESTIONS.  Repealed 8/21/91. 
 
12 AAC 16.080.  IDENTIFICATION OF EXAMINATION APPLICANTS.  Repealed 1/6/2002. 
 
12 AAC 16.090.  METHOD OF EXAMINATION.  Repealed 6/3/89. 
 
12 AAC 16.100.  MATERIALS.  Repealed 1/6/2002. 
 
12 AAC 16.110.  LEAVING THE EXAMINATION ROOM.  Repealed 1/6/2002. 
 
12 AAC 16.120.  DISTURBANCE.  Repealed 1/6/2002. 
 
12 AAC 16.130. STATE CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINATION.  (a)  The state chiropractic examination 

consists of a written and oral examination, administered by the board or the board’s agent, covering AS 08.01 – AS 
08.03, AS 08.20, 12 AAC 02, 12 AAC 16, and 18 AAC 85, and any other subjects that the board determines are 
necessary to demonstrate knowledge of chiropractic as defined in AS 08.20. 

(b) An examination candidate may not 
(1) have on the examination table any paper or object other than the examination questions, examination 

paper, blotter, pencil, pens, ink, eraser, and a timepiece; 
(2) while the examination is in session, leave the examination room for any reason, unless accompanied by a 

proctor or board member; 
(3) communicate with another candidate during the examination; communication with another candidate will 

result in immediate dismissal from the entire examination. 
(c) A score of 75 percent or above is required to receive a passing grade on the state chiropractic examination. 

 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.120  AS 08.20.130 
 

12 AAC 16.140.  FAILED SUBJECTS.  Repealed 5/10/98. 
 
12 AAC 16.150.  REEXAMINATION.  An applicant who has failed the state chiropractic examination may 

apply for reexamination by submitting to the board at least 30 days before the next scheduled examination 
(1) a written request for reexamination; and 

461



(2) repealed 5/10/98; 
(3) the examination fee established in 12 AAC 02.150. 

 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.130 
 

12 AAC 16.160.  TIME.  Repealed 9/30/81. 
 
12 AAC 16.170. SPECIAL EXAMINATION.  (a)  Repealed 5/27/2006. 
(b) A special examination may be administered at a time other than during a scheduled examination to an 

applicant for a locum tenens permit that meets the requirements of AS 08.20.163 and 12 AAC 16.031. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.130 
 

12 AAC 16.180.  RECONSIDERATION OF PAPERS.  Repealed 6/3/89. 
 
12 AAC 16.185.  EXAMINERS.  Repealed 5/10/98. 
 
12 AAC 16.190.  LICENSES AND CERTIFICATES.  Repealed 1/29/2009. 

 
12 AAC 16.200.  TEMPORARY PERMITS.  (a) The board may issue a temporary permit to an applicant for 

licensure by examination or credentials who is scheduled to sit for the next state chiropractic examination and who 
otherwise 

(1) meets the requirements of 12 AAC 16.030(a) or 12 AAC 16.033, as applicable; 
(2) furnishes the board with the name of the licensed chiropractor in the state with whom the applicant will 

associate while practicing under the authority of the temporary permit; 
(3) has not previously taken and failed the examination; and 
(4) has not previously held a temporary permit. 

(b) Repealed 12/7/97. 
(c) A temporary permit holder must 

(1) provide the board with a statement, sworn to by a licensed chiropractor in the state with whom the 
temporary permit holder will practice, that the licensed chiropractor assumes all legal liability for the practice of the 
temporary permit holder and is physically present in the same facility when the temporary permit holder is 
practicing; 

(2) display the temporary permit in a conspicuous place in the office where the holder practices chiropractic; 
and 

(3) inform the board of a change in the temporary permit holder's mailing and practicing address. 
(d) A temporary permit is valid until the results of the next scheduled examination are received by the applicant.  

If an applicant is unable to appear for the first scheduled examination, the board will, in its discretion, extend the 
temporary permit until the results of the next scheduled examination are received.  The board will not extend a 
temporary permit more than once. 

(e) If, after having been warned by the board once, a permittee continues to practice in an unethical or unlawful 
manner, the board will, in its discretion, terminate that permittee's temporary permit. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.160  AS 08.20.170 
 

12 AAC 16.205.  COURTESY LICENSE.  (a) The board will issue a courtesy license to an applicant who 
meets the requirements of this section.  A courtesy license authorizes the licensee to practice chiropractic for a 
special event only.  A courtesy license does not authorize the licensee to conduct a general chiropractic practice or to 
perform services outside the scope of practice specified in the courtesy license required for that special event. 

(b) An applicant for a courtesy license must submit a complete application on a form provided by the 
department no later than 45 days before the special event for which the courtesy license is requested.  A complete 
application includes 

 (1) the applicable fees established in 12 AAC 02.150; 
 (2) a current signed photograph of the applicant; 
 (3) a certification from the applicant certifying that the applicant is not a resident of this state; 
 (4) verification of a valid and active license to practice chiropractic in another state or other jurisdiction for 

the scope of practice specified in the application; 
 (5) a description of the special event for which the courtesy license is requested; 
 (6) the scope of practice required for the special event; 
 (7) certification that the applicant has not 
  (A) had a chiropractor license suspended or revoked in any jurisdiction; and 
  (B) been convicted of  
   (i) a felony or other crime that affects the applicant’s ability to practice chiropractic competently and 

safely; or 
   (ii) a crime involving the unlawful procurement, sale, prescription, or dispensing of a controlled 

462



substance listed in AS 11.71.140 – 11.71.190 or conviction in another jurisdiction of a crime having substantially 
similar elements; 

(8) a report, issued by the applicant's primary state of residence no earlier than 90 days before the application, 
and that is equivalent to a report under AS 12.62 issued by this state containing criminal history record information 
concerning the applicant; if the applicant holds or has ever held a license in a state other than this state to practice 
chiropractic, a complete application also includes a report, issued by that state no earlier than 90 days before the 
application, and that is equivalent to a report under AS 12.62 issued by this state containing criminal history record 
information concerning the applicant. 

(c) A courtesy license will be issued only after the department receives the results of a background check of the 
applicant from the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards that reports no disciplinary action against the 
applicant. 

(d) The board will waive the 45-day application deadline in (b) of this section if the board determines that the 
applicant’s failure to meet the application deadline is for good cause beyond the control of the applicant.  If the 
board grants the applicant a waiver under this subsection, the applicant may submit a notarized copy of the 
applicant’s license that meets the requirements of (b)(4) of this section in place of license verification from the other 
jurisdiction. 

(e) A document required by (b) or (d) of this section that is not in English must be accompanied by a certified 
English translation of the document. 

(f) A courtesy license is valid for a period beginning seven days before and ending seven days after the event 
for which the courtesy license was issued.  A person may not be issued more than two courtesy licenses in a 12-
month period. 

(g) The holder of a courtesy license must meet the minimum professional standards of 12 AAC 16.920 and is 
subject to the discipline under AS 08.01.075 and AS 08.20.170. 

(h) The holder of a courtesy license is limited to the practice of chiropractic identified under AS 08.20.100, 
08.20.230, and 08.20.900, and may not exceed the scope of practice specified in the courtesy license. 

(i) The holder of a courtesy license may offer chiropractic services only to those individuals involved with the 
special event for which the courtesy license was issued, such as athletes, coaches, and staff. 

(j) In this section, “special event” means an athletic, cultural, or performing arts event held in this state. 
 
Authority: AS 08.01.062  AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170 
 

12 AAC 16.210.  ASSOCIATES.  Repealed 9/30/81. 
 
12 AAC 16.211.  CHIROPRACTIC ASSOCIATES.  Repealed 6/29/84. 
 
12 AAC 16.220.  DUPLICATE LICENSES.  Repealed 6/3/89. 
 
12 AAC 16.230.  MISREPRESENTATION.  Repealed 6/29/84. 
 
12 AAC 16.240.  UNPROFESSIONAL CONDUCT.  Repealed 6/29/84. 
 
12 AAC 16.250.  VIOLATIONS.  Repealed 6/29/84. 
 
12 AAC 16.260.  ADVERTISING.  Repealed 9/30/81. 
 
12 AAC 16.270.  DEFINITIONS.  Repealed 6/29/84. 

 
 

ARTICLE 3. 
CONTINUING EDUCATION. 

 
Section 
 280. Statement of purpose of continuing education 
 290. Hours of continuing education required 
 300. Computation of nonacademic continuing education hours 
 310. Computation of academic credit continuing education hours 
 320. Approved subjects 
 330. Nonacademic program criteria 
 340. Approved nonacademic continuing education programs 
 345. Application for continuing education course approval 
 350. Individual study 
 360. Instructor or discussion leader 
 370. Publications 
 380. (Repealed) 
 390. Renewal and reinstatement of license 

463



12 AAC 16.280.  STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF CONTINUING EDUCATION.  The purpose of 
continuing chiropractic education is to insure that the renewal of licenses is contingent upon proof of continued 
competency and to assure the consumer of an optimum quality of chiropractic health care by requiring licensed 
chiropractors to pursue education designed to advance their professional skills and knowledge. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170(d) 
 

12 AAC 16.290.  HOURS OF CONTINUING EDUCATION REQUIRED.  (a)  Except as provided in (b) of 
this section, an applicant for renewal of a chiropractic license must obtain and document successful completion of 
the following: 

(1) for an applicant who files a complete renewal application with the department for a license period that 
concludes on or before December 31, 2012, 24 credit hours of approved continuing education during the concluding 
licensing period; at least one-third and no more than one-half of the total hours required under this paragraph must 
be devoted to  

(A) radiographic safety; 
(B) radiographic techniques and interpretation; or 
(C) diagnostic imaging; 

(2) for an applicant who files a complete renewal application with the department for a license period that 
concludes after January 1, 2013, 32 credit hours of approved continuing education during the concluding licensing 
period, as follows: 

(A) eight hours of the total hours required under this paragraph must be devoted to 
(i) radiographic safety; 
(ii) radiographic techniques and interpretation; or 
(iii) diagnostic imaging; 

(B) two hours of the total hours required under this paragraph must be devoted to coding and 
documentation; 

(C) two hours of the total hours required under this paragraph must be devoted to ethics and boundaries; 
(D) two hours of the total hours required under this paragraph must be devoted to cardiopulmonary 

resuscitation (CPR) training. 
(b) An applicant for renewal of a chiropractic license for the first time must obtain and document successful 

completion of the following: 
(1) for a license period that concludes on or before December 31, 2012, 12 credit hours of approved 

continuing education for each complete calendar year the applicant was licensed during the concluding licensing 
period; 

(2) for a license period that concludes after January 1, 2013, 16 credit hours of approved continuing education 
for each complete calendar year the applicant was licensed during the concluding licensing period.  

(c) Two of the hours required under (a) of this section will be credited to each applicant for renewal for 
completing the jurisprudence review prepared by the board, covering the provisions of AS 08.20 and this chapter.  
An applicant for renewal must verify, in an affidavit, that the applicant has complied with this subsection before the 
applicant's license renewal will be processed.  

(d) An applicant for renewal of a license to practice chiropractic must submit, on a form provided by the 
department, a sworn statement of the continuing education that the applicant completed during the concluding 
licensing period.  The statement must include the following information:  

(1) the sponsoring organization;  
(2) the title and description of the course;  
(3) the dates of attendance or period of correspondence;  
(4) the number of continuing education hours claimed;  
(5) the course approval number issued by the department.  

(e) An applicant for renewal of a chiropractic license may receive up to four hours of the credit 
(1) required under (a)(1) of this section from one or more of the following subject areas:  

(A) cardiopulmonary resuscitation training (CPR);  
(B) automated external defibrillator training (AED);  
(C) basic life support training (BLS); 

(2) required under (a)(2) of this section from one or more of the following subject areas: 
(A) automated external defibrillator training (AED); 
(B) basic life support training (BLS). 

(f) No more than 16 credit hours of the credit hours required under (a)(2) of this section for a renewal of a 
chiropractic license may be obtained over the Internet or by distance learning. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170 
  

12 AAC 16.300.  COMPUTATION OF NONACADEMIC CONTINUING EDUCATION HOURS.  (a) For 
the purposes of 12 AAC 16.280 — 12 AAC 16.390, 50 minutes of instruction constitutes one hour. 

(b) Credit is given only for class hours and not for hours devoted to class preparation. 
 

464



Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170(d) 
 

12 AAC 16.310.  COMPUTATION OF ACADEMIC CREDIT CONTINUING EDUCATION HOURS.  (a) 
One quarter hour academic credit from a college or university constitutes 10 hours of continuing education. 

(b) One semester hour academic credit from a college or university constitutes 15 hours of continuing 
education. 

(c) Challenged courses are not acceptable for continuing education credit. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170(d) 
 

12 AAC 16.320.  APPROVED SUBJECTS. To be approved by the board, a subject must contribute directly to 
the professional competency of a person licensed to practice as a chiropractor and be directly related to the concepts 
of chiropractic principles, philosophy, and practice, including the following: 

(1) treatment and adjustment technique, including physiotherapy, nutrition and dietetics; 
(2) examination and diagnosis or analysis including physical, laboratory, orthopedic, neurological and 

differential; 
(3) radiographic technique and interpretation involving all phases of roentgenology as permitted by law; 
(4) study of the methods employed in the prevention of excessive radiation and safety precautions to the 

patient; and 
(5) diagnostic imaging. 

 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170 
 

12 AAC 16.330.  NONACADEMIC PROGRAM CRITERIA.  (a) Nonacademic continuing education 
programs requiring class attendance are approved by the board if 

(1) the program is at least one hour in length; 
(2) the program is conducted by a qualified instructor; 
(3) a record of registration or attendance is maintained; and 
(4) an examination or other method of assuring satisfactory completion of program by participant is 

incorporated. 
(b) A qualified instructor or discussion leader is anyone whose background, training, education or experience 

makes it appropriate for the person to lead a discussion on the subject matter of the particular program. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170(d) 
 

12 AAC 16.340.  APPROVED NONACADEMIC CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAMS.  (a) The 
following programs are approved by the board: 

(1) educational meetings of the following associations, if the documentation required by 12 AAC 16.290 
demonstrates that the meeting in question meets the requirements of 12 AAC 16.320 and 12 AAC 16.330. 

(A) American Chiropractic Association; 
(B) International Chiropractors Association; 
(C) Canadian Chiropractic Association; 

(2) educational classes, if 
(A) they are conducted by any chiropractic college that is accredited by or has accreditation status with the 

Council on Chiropractic Education; and 
(B) the program sponsor or the applicant for renewal of a chiropractic license 

 (i) requests board approval; and 
 (ii) demonstrates to the board's satisfaction that the educational classes meet the requirements of 
12 AAC 16.320 and 12 AAC 16.330 

(3) continuing education programs that are certified by the Providers of Approved Continuing Education 
through the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards. 

(b) The board may approve other continuing education programs under 12 AAC 16.345. 
(c) Repealed 1/29/2009. 

 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.120  AS 08.20.170 
 

12 AAC 16.345.  APPLICATION FOR CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSE APPROVAL.  (a)  Except 
as provided in 12 AAC 16.340(a), to be approved by the board to meet the continuing education requirements of 12 
AAC 16.290, 12 AAC 16.320, and 12 AAC 16.330, an applicant for continuing education course approval shall 
submit to the board, not less than 90 days before the date of the proposed program presentation date, 

(1) a completed application on a form provided by the department; 
(2) the continuing education course approval fee specified in 12 AAC 02.150; 
(3) the name of the course provider; 
(4) a complete course description, including the course title and a description of the learning objectives; 
(5) a course syllabus; and 

465



(6) an outline of the major topics covered by the course and the number of classroom hours allowed for each 
topic. 

(b) Approval of a continuing education course under this section is valid until December 31 of the next even-
numbered year.   

(c) A sponsor who has a change in a condition required under (a)(3) – (6) of this section during the approval 
period described in (b) of this section must  

(1) reapply to the board for continuing education credit approval; and  
(2)  submit the continuing education course change approval fee specified in 12 AAC 02.150.  

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions of (a) of this section, the board may award continuing education credit for 
attendance at a course or seminar that has not previously been approved by the board if course or seminar meets the 
requirements of 12 AAC 16.320 and 12 AAC 16.330 and if the applicant submits supporting documentation to the 
board with the application for credit.  The amount of credit awarded, if any, will be determined by the board on an 
individual basis. 

(e) Falsification of any written evidence submitted to the board under this section is unprofessional conduct and 
constitutes grounds for censure, reprimand, or license revocation or suspension.    
 
Authority:  AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170  

 
12 AAC 16.350.  INDIVIDUAL STUDY.  The number of hours of continuing education credit awarded for 

completion of a formal correspondence or other individual study program that requires registration and provides 
evidence of satisfactory completion will be determined by the board on an individual basis.  A request for board 
approval for credit of hours of continuing education for an individual study program must be made to the board in 
writing before the applicant begins the individual study program.  

 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170 

 
12 AAC 16.360.  INSTRUCTOR OR DISCUSSION LEADER.  (a) One hour of continuing education credit is 

awarded for each hour completed in preparation for instruction or discussion as an instructor or discussion leader of 
educational programs meeting the requirements of 12 AAC 16.280—12 AAC 16.390.  The number of hours of 
credit so awarded may not exceed twice the number of hours awarded under (b) of this section. 

(b) One hour of continuing education credit is awarded for each hour completed as an instructor or discussion 
leader of educational programs meeting the requirements of 12 AAC 16.280—12 AAC 16.390.  Credit is awarded 
only for the initial course of instruction of the subject matter unless there have been substantial new developments in 
the subject since the prior presentation. 

(c) The total credit awarded under this section may not exceed one-third of the total hours of continuing 
education reported in any licensing period. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170(d) 
 

12 AAC 16.370.  PUBLICATIONS.  Continuing education credit may be awarded for publication of articles or 
books.  The amount of credit so awarded will be determined by the board on an individual basis. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170(d) 
 

12 AAC 16.380.  REPORT OF CONTINUING EDUCATION.  Repealed 1/29/2009. 
 
12 AAC 16.390. RENEWAL AND REINSTATEMENT OF LICENSE. (a) The department will renew a 

license that has been lapsed or in retired status for less than two years if the applicant submits 
(1) a completed application for renewal, on a form provided by the department;   
(2) the following fees established in 12 AAC 02.150: 

(A) biennial license renewal fee; 
(B)  delayed renewal penalty fee, if the license has been lapsed for more than 60 days, but less than two 

years; and  
(3) documentation that all continuing education requirements of 12 AAC 16.290 – 12 AAC 16.370 have been 

met. 
(b) Unless the board finds that reinstatement of a license is contrary to AS 08.20.170, the board will reinstate a 

license that has been lapsed or in retired status for at least two years, but less than five years if the applicant 
(1) submits an application for reinstatement on a form provided by the department; 
(2) submits the applicable fees established in 12 AAC 02.150;  
(3) submits documentation of completion of all continuing education requirements in 12 AAC 16.290 – 

12 AAC 16.370 that would have been required to maintain a current license for the entire period that the license has 
been lapsed or in retired status; and 

(4) passes the state chiropractic examination under 12 AAC 16.130.   

466



(c) A person may not reinstate a license that has been lapsed or in retired status for five years or more at the 
time of application for reinstatement, and the former licensee must apply for a new license under AS 08.20 and this 
chapter. 

(d) A licensee unable to obtain the required continuing education hours for renewal of a license due to 
reasonable cause or excusable neglect, must request exemption status in writing, to the board, accompanied by a 
statement explaining the reasonable cause or excusable neglect. If an exemption is granted, the board may prescribe 
an alternative method of compliance to the continuing education requirements as determined appropriate by the 
board for the individual situation. 

(e) In this section, "reasonable cause or excusable neglect" includes   
(1) chronic illness;   
(2) retirement; or   
(3) a hardship, as individually determined by the board. 

 
Authority: AS 08.01.100  AS 08.20.167  AS 08.20.170 
  AS 08.20.055 
 

 
ARTICLE 4. 

PEER REVIEW. 
 
Section 
 400. Peer review committee 
 410. Term of appointments to peer review committee 
  420. Conduct of peer review 
  430. Professional standards and guidelines 

 
12 AAC 16.400.  PEER REVIEW COMMITTEE.  (a) For the purposes of AS 08.20.185, the board will, in its 

discretion, appoint a peer review committee that is advisory to the board. 
(b) A peer review committee appointed by the board will consist of four individuals. Three members of the peer 

review committee must be chiropractic physicians licensed under AS 08.20, and one member must be a public 
member who meets the requirements of AS 08.01.025. 

(c) A member of a peer review committee may not review a case if the member is in a direct business 
relationship with the chiropractic physician, insurer, or patient in the case being reviewed. 

(d) In this section, a “direct business relationship” includes an employer-employee relationship, doctor-patient 
relationship, and a legal contractual relationship. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.185 
 

12 AAC 16.410.  TERM OF APPOINTMENTS TO PEER REVIEW COMMITTEE.  (a) Members of the 
peer review committee are appointed for staggered terms of two years. 

(b) Repealed 1/29/2009. 
(c) A member of the peer review committee may be removed by the board for cause. 
(d) A member of the peer review committee may not serve on the committee for more than four consecutive 

years. The member may not be reappointed until two years have elapsed since the member last served on the 
committee. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.185 
 

12 AAC 16.420.  CONDUCT OF PEER REVIEW.  (a) A patient, patient’s representative, insurer, or the 
patient’s chiropractic physician may file a request for peer review with the board by submitting to the department 

(1) a written request for review of the care provided, fees charged, or services rendered by a licensee to a 
patient; 

(2) the peer review fee established in 12 AAC 02.150; and 
(3) if the peer review committee requires a patient’s treatment records for review, a completed release, on a 

form provided by the department, signed by the patient. 
(b) A licensee’s acceptance of or request for payment for treatment given to a patient constitutes the licensee’s 

consent to submit to the peer review committee the information required in (c) of this section. 
(c) A licensee involved in a case submitted to the peer review committee shall submit to the peer review 

committee all necessary records and other information concerning the patient’s treatment. 
(d) The peer review committee shall conduct a peer review for each request for peer review submitted to it in 

accordance with guidelines established by the board. Except as provided in (f) of this section, the peer review 
committee shall report its findings to the board and furnish a copy of its findings to the patient, licensee, and third-
party payor involved in the case. 

(e) The findings of the peer review committee must include a determination of whether the  
(1) licensee provided or ordered appropriate treatment or services; and 

467



(2) fees charged are a reasonable and appropriate cost of treatment; in determining the reasonableness and 
appropriateness of costs, the committee may consider, among other appropriate factors, charges by health care 
providers other than chiropractors for the same or similar services. 

(f) If the peer review committee determines that reasonable cause exists to believe the licensee has violated a 
provision of AS 08.20 or this chapter for which a licensee may be disciplined, the peer review committee may not 
report its finding to the board, but instead shall refer the matter to the department’s investigative section.  The peer 
review committee shall provide all information gathered in connection with the peer review to the department’s 
investigative section. 

(g) Repealed 1/6/2002 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.185 
 

12 AAC 16.430.  PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES.  (a)  When making a determination 
as to whether a licensee provided reasonable and appropriate treatment or services or charged reasonable and 
appropriate costs of treatment to a patient, the peer review committee appointed under 12 AAC 16.400 may rely on 
the guidelines, standards, or recommendations of the following organizations accepted by the board: 

(1) Alaska Worker’s Compensation Board; 
(2) American Chiropractic Association; 
(3) Canadian Chiropractic Association; 
(4) Council on Chiropractic Education; 
(5) Croft Guidelines published by the Spine Research Institute of San Diego; 
(6) Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards; 
(7) repealed 9/7/2012; 
(8) International Chiropractors Association; 
(9) National Board of Chiropractic Examiners; 

(10) World Chiropractic Alliance; 
(11) World Federation of Chiropractic; 
(12) a successor organization to an organization specified in this subsection. 

(b) The peer review committee shall take into consideration the differences between the standards and 
guidelines of the organizations listed in (a) of this section when making a determination as to whether the care 
provided by the licensee was provided in a manner required of a reasonably competent practitioner acting under the 
same or similar circumstances. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.185 
 
 

ARTICLE 5. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 
Section 
 900. Violations 
 920. Minimum professional standards 
 930. Lewd or immoral conduct with patients prohibited 
 980. “Misrepresentation” defined 
 990. Definitions 

 
12 AAC 16.900.  VIOLATIONS.  It is the duty of all members of the board to report to the department instances 

of alleged violations of AS 08.20.100.  The department shall inform a new licensee in the state that it is his or her 
duty to report to the board all known instances of suspected unlicensed practice of chiropractic. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.100 
 

12 AAC 16.920.  MINIMUM PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS. (a)  Chiropractic care that may adversely 
affect the health and welfare of the public constitutes conduct that does not conform to minimum professional 
standards established under AS 08.20.170(a)(5) and this section.  Conduct that does not conform to minimum 
professional standards in this chapter includes 

(1) failing to use sufficient knowledge, skills, or judgment in the practice of chiropractic; 
(2) failing to perform patient care within the chiropractor’s scope of competence, which are necessary to 

prevent substantial risk or harm to a patient; 
(3) engaging in patient care outside the scope of chiropractic practice; 
(4) engaging in patient care outside the scope of the chiropractor’s training and expertise; 
(5) violating established protocols in the delivery of chiropractic treatment or care; 
(6) violating the confidentiality of information or knowledge concerning a patient; 
(7) physically or verbally abusing a patient; 

468



(8) failing to maintain a record for a patient that accurately reflects the chiropractic problems and 
interventions for the patient; 

(9) falsifying a patient’s records; 
(10) intentionally making an incorrect entry in a patient’s chart; 
(11) discrimination in the provision of chiropractic care on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, 

ancestry, or sex; 
(12) exploiting a patient for financial gain or offering, giving, soliciting, or receiving fees for referral of a 

patient; 
(13) knowingly violating laws regulating health insurance, including those laws established in AS 21.36.360; 
(14) using unsanitary or unsafe equipment; 
(15) failing to adhere to the Code of Ethics of the American Chiropractic Association, as revised as of 

September 2007, adopted by reference; 
(16) failing to provide copies of complete patient records in the licensee’s custody and control within 30 days 

after receipt of a written request for the records from the patient or patient’s guardian. 
(b) A licensee shall evaluate patient care on an individual basis and make a reasonable judgment on the course 

of treatment for each patient. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.100  AS 08.20.170 
 

Editor’s note:  A copy of the Code of Ethics of the American Chiropractic Association, September 2007 edition, 
adopted by reference in 12 AAC 16.920(a) is available for inspection at the Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development, Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing, State Office Building, 
9th Floor, 333 Willoughby Avenue, Juneau, Alaska, or may be obtained from the American Chiropractic 
Association, 1701 Clarendon Boulevard, Arlington, VA 22209; telephone: (703)276-8800; website at 
http://www.acatoday.org. 

 
12 AAC 16.930.  LEWD OR IMMORAL CONDUCT WITH PATIENTS PROHIBITED.  (a)  A licensee 

may not engage in lewd or immoral conduct in connection with the delivery of professional services to a patient or 
solicit sexual contact or a romantic relationship with a patient. 

(b) It is a defense to a disciplinary action alleging a violation of this section that 
(1) at the time of, or immediately preceding, the contact the patient was the licensee’s spouse, or was in a 

dating, courtship, or engagement relationship with the licensee; or 
(2) the licensee terminated the doctor-patient professional relationship with the former patient more than six 

months before the contact occurred. 
(c) It is not a defense to a disciplinary action alleging a violation of this section that the contact occurred 

(1) with the consent of the patient; 
(2) outside professional treatment sessions; or 
(3) off of the premises regularly used by the licensee for the professional treatment of patients. 

(d) As used in AS 08.20.170(a)(8) and this section, “lewd or immoral conduct” includes sexual misconduct, 
sexual contact, or attempted sexual contact, with a patient outside the scope of generally accepted methods of 
examination or treatment of the patient during the time the patient is receiving professional treatment from the 
licensee. 

(e) As used in this section, 
(1) “attempted sexual contact” means engaging in conduct that constitutes a substantial step towards sexual 

contact; 
(2) “sexual contact” 

(A) means touching, directly or through clothing, a patient’s genitals, anus, or female breast, or causing the 
patient to touch, directly or though clothing, the licensee’s or patient’s genitals, anus, or female breast; 

(B) includes sexual penetration; 
(C) does not include acts 

(i) that may reasonably be construed to be normal caretaker responsibilities for a child, 
interactions with a child, or affection for a child; or 

(ii) performed for the purpose of administering a recognized and lawful form of chiropractic 
examination or treatment that is reasonably adapted to promoting the physical or mental health of the person being 
treated; 

(3) “sexual misconduct” means behavior, a gesture, or an expression that may reasonably be interpreted as 
seductive, sexually suggestive, or sexually demeaning to a patient; “sexual misconduct” includes 

(A) encouraging the patient to masturbate in the presence of the licensee or masturbation by the licensee 
while the patient is present; 

(B) offering to provide to a patient controlled substances or other drugs in exchange for sexual contact; 
(C) disrobing or draping practice that is seductive, sexually suggestive, or sexually demeaning to a patient, 

such as deliberately watching a patient dress or undress or failing to provide privacy for disrobing; 
(D) making a comment about or to the patient that is seductive, sexually suggestive, or sexually demeaning 

to a patient, including 
(i) sexual comment about a patient’s body or underclothing; 

469



(ii) sexualized or sexually demeaning comment to a patient; 
(iii) demeaning or degrading comments to the patient about the patient’s sexual orientation, 

regardless of whether the patient is homosexual, heterosexual, or bisexual; 
(iv) comments about potential sexual performance of the patient during an examination or 

consultation, except when the examination or consultation is pertinent to the issue of sexual function or dysfunction; 
(v) requesting details of sexual history or sexual likes or dislikes of the patient if the details are 

not clinically indicated for the type of examination or consultation; 
(E) initiation by the licensee of conversation with a patient regarding the sexual problems, preferences, or 

fantasies of the licensee; 
(F) using the doctor-patient professional relationship with the patient to solicit sexual contact or a romantic 

relationship with the patient or another; 
(G) kissing a patient in a romantic or sexual manner; 

(4) “sexual penetration” 
(A) means genital intercourse, cunnilingus, fellatio, anal intercourse, or an intrusion, however slight, of an 

object or any part of a person’s body into the genitals or anus of another person’s body; each party to any of the acts 
defined as “sexual penetration” is considered to be engaged in sexual penetration; 

(B) does not include acts performed for the purpose of administering a recognized and lawful form of 
chiropractic examination or treatment that is reasonably adapted to promoting the physical health of the person 
being treated. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170 
 

12 AAC 16.980.  “MISREPRESENTATION” DEFINED.  In AS 08.20.170, “misrepresentation” means 
(1) the use of any advertising in which untruthful, exaggerated, improper, misleading or deceptive statements 

are made; 
(2) impersonation of another practitioner; 
(3) advertising or holding oneself out to have the ability to treat diseases or other abnormal conditions of the 

human body by any secret formula, method, or procedure; 
(4) knowingly permitting or allowing another person to use a licensee’s license or certificate in the practice of 

any system or mode of treating the sick or afflicted. 
 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.170(d) 
 

12 AAC 16.990. DEFINITIONS.  (a)  In this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise,  
(1) "appropriate treatment or services" means treatment or services performed, because of a substantiated and 

properly diagnosed condition, that is consistent with that diagnosis as reviewed by the peer review committee 
appointed under 12 AAC 16.400; 

(2) "board" means the Board of Chiropractic Examiners; 
(3) "department" means the Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development; 
(4) "licensee" means a chiropractic physician licensed under AS 08.20; 
(5) "reasonable and appropriate cost of treatment" means that charges submitted for services performed are 

necessary and reasonable charges in the judgment of the peer review committee appointed under 12 AAC 16.400; 
(6) "criminal history record information" has the meaning given in AS 12.62.900. 

(b) In AS 08.20.900, 
(1) "prescription drug" means a drug that 

(A) under federal law, before being dispensed or delivered, is required to be labeled with either of the 
following statements: 

(i) "Caution: Federal law prohibits dispensing without prescription";  
(ii) "Caution: Federal law restricts this drug to use by, or on the order of, a licensed veterinarian"; or  

(B) is required by an applicable federal or state law or regulation to be dispensed only under a prescription 
drug order or is restricted to use by practitioners only; 

(2) "surgery" 
(A) means the use of a scalpel, sharp cutting instrument, laser, electrical current, or other device to incise 

or remove living tissue; 
(B) does not include venipuncture or the removal of foreign objects from external tissue. 

 
Authority: AS 08.20.055  AS 08.20.900 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

470



APPENDIX A 
 

TITLE 18 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION REGULATIONS 
 
 

CHAPTER 85. 
RADIATION PROTECTION 

 
NOTICE 
 
Selected sections of the Department of Health and Social Services’ radiation protection regulations (12 AAC 85) 
have been included in this booklet for the convenience of chiropractic students, applicants, licensees, and all other 
interested parties. For total information, please refer to the Alaska Administrative Code 18 AAC 85.020— 18 AAC 
85.780, Radiation Protection. 
 
Effective July 1, 1978 (Chapter 172, SLA 1978) statutory responsibility for control of all ionizing and non-ionizing 
radiation sources except for the discharge of radionuclides to the air, water, land or subsurface land was transferred 
from the Department of Environmental Conservation to the Department of Health and Social Services. Authority 
over the discharge of radionuclides to the environment remained with the Department of Environmental 
Conservation. 
 
The Alaska Radiation Protection regulations in effect at the time of the transfer remain in effect (Section 10). 
 
Requests for assistance or information on radiological health matters should be directed to: 
 

Radiological Physicist 
Division of Public Health Department of Health and Social Services 

P.O. Box 110613 
Juneau, Alaska 99811-0613 

Phone: (907) 465-3019 
 
 

CHAPTER 85. 
RADIATION PROTECTION 

 
Article 
 1. Registration of Ionizing Radiation Sources 
(18 AAC 85.010—18 AAC 85.110) 
 3. Use of X-rays in the Healing Arts 
(18 AAC 85.410—18 AAC 85.490) 
 4. Use of Sealed Radioactive Sources in the Healing Arts 
(18 AAC 85.500) 
 8. General Provisions (18 AAC 85.740—18AAC 85.780) 

 
 

ARTICLE 1. 
REGISTRATION OF IONIZING RADIATION SOURCES 

 
Section 
 10. Registration requirement 
 30. Approval not implied 
 40. Registration procedure 
 50. Maintenance of records 
 60. Access to records 
 70. Access to premises 
 80. Vendor notification 
 90. Out-of-state sources 
 100. Out-of-state users 
 110. Protection requirements 

 
18 AAC 85.010. REGISTRATION REQUIREMENT. Registration with the Alaska Department of 

Environmental Conservation is required of every person, business, institution, or health facility that receives, 
possesses, uses, owns, transfers, or acquires any ionizing radiation source, except those specifically exempted in 18 

471



AAC 85.020. 
 
18 AAC 85.030. APPROVAL NOT IMPLIED. No advertisement may refer to the fact that an ionizing 

radiation source is registered with the department and it may not be stated or implied that any activity under such 
registration has been approved by the department. 

 
18 AAC 85.040. REGISTRATION PROCEDURE. (a) Ionizing radiation sources shall be registered with the 

department within 30 days of the effective date provided in sec. 750 of this chapter. Radiation sources acquired 
subsequent to the effective date shall be registered with the department within 30 days of the date of acquisition. 

(b) Registrations shall be renewed with the department within 30 days of the first day of January of every even 
numbered year, commencing January 1, 1972, and at such other times as the department shall deem necessary. 

(c) Initial registration and renewal of registration shall be made on forms supplied by the department. Registrants 
shall provide all information necessary to complete the form and any other applicable information the department 
may request. 

(d) A separate registration form shall be completed for each and every ionizing radiation source possessed by a 
registrant. 

(e) If completion of the registration form is impractical, the department may, upon written request, approve 
registering by a special form as the department may prescribe. 

(f) Registrants shall notify the department in writing within 30 days of any changes with respect to registered 
ionizing radiation sources so that all information registered with the department is accurate. 

 (g) Every registrant, or his estate, shall notify the department in writing within 30 days of the discontinuance of 
use or permanent disposal of each registered ionizing radiation source. Should a source be transferred to a new 
owner, or owners, the notification to the department shall include the name(s) and address(es) of the transferee(s). 
 

18 AAC 85.050. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS. After the effective date provided in sec. 750 of this 
chapter, possessors of ionizing radiation sources shall keep records of the receipt, transfer, or disposal of each 
source. 

 
18 AAC 85.060. ACCESS TO RECORDS. Registrants shall, upon reasonable notice, make available for 

inspection by the department, or other official agency designated by the department, records pertaining to receipt, 
possession, use, transfer or disposal of ionizing radiation sources. 

 
18 AAC 85.070. ACCESS TO PREMISES. Registrants shall afford the department, or other official agency 

designated by the department, at all reasonable times, opportunity to inspect all ionizing radiation sources in their 
possession and the facility wherein such sources are used or stored. 

 
18 AAC 85.080. VENDOR NOTIFICATION. A distributor, retailer or other agent who sells, lends, or in any 

other manner transfers an ionizing radiation source requiring registration according to sec. 10 of this chapter shall, 
within 30 days of transfer, notify the department in writing of the name(s) and address(es) of the person(s) receiving 
the source and the date of transfer. 

 
18 AAC 85.090. OUT-OF-STATE SOURCES. (a) Any person, business, institution, or health facility 

proposing to bring an out-of-state radiation source into Alaska for any temporary use shall give written notice to the 
department at least 15 days before such entry. The notice shall include the type, maximum potential energy of 
machines or maximum quantity of materials, proposed nature and scope of use, and the duration and exact location 
of use within Alaska. However, if the 15 day notification requirement would impose an undue hardship, the 
department may, upon application, grant permission by letter or telegram to proceed sooner. 

(b) If an out-of-state radiation source is kept within Alaska for more than 30 days in any period of 12 consecutive 
months, it shall be subject to the registration provisions of this chapter. 

 
18 AAC 85.100. OUT-OF-STATE USERS. Out-of-state persons proposing to use ionizing radiation sources 

within Alaska must: 
(1) comply with all applicable regulations of the department; and 
(2) supply the department with any information required in this chapter upon request. 
 
18 AAC 85.110. PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS. Registrants, or their authorized agents, shall be 

responsible for complying with the applicable ionizing radiation protection requirements of secs. 120-400 of this 
chapter. 

 
 

472



ARTICLE 3. 
USE OF X-RAYS IN THE HEALING ARTS 

 
Section 
 410. General safety provisions 
 420. Waiver 
 430. Proper use 
 440. Shielding 
 450. Fluoroscopic installations 
 460. Medical radiographic installations 
 490. Therapeutic X-ray installations 

 
18 AAC 85.410. GENERAL SAFETY PROVISIONS. (a) No person shall make, sell, lease, transfer, lend, or 

install medical, dental or veterinary X-ray equipment or supplies used in connection with such equipment unless 
such equipment and supplies, when properly installed and properly used, will meet the requirements of secs. 430-
490 of this chapter. 

(b) No registrant shall operate or permit the operation of medical, dental, or veterinary X-ray equipment unless 
the equipment and installation meet the applicable requirements of secs. 430-490 of this chapter. 

 
18 AAC 85.420. WAIVER. The department may waive compliance with any specific requirement of secs. 430-

490 of this chapter by an existing machine or installation if: 
(1) compliance would require replacement or substantial modification of the machine or installation; and 
(2) it is demonstrated, to the department’s satisfaction, that protection has been achieved through other means 

equivalent to that required by secs. 430-490 of this chapter. 
 
18 AAC 85.430. PROPER USE. A registrant of medical, dental or veterinary X-ray equipment shall 

(1)  be responsible for assuring that all requirements of secs. 440-490 of this chapter are met; 
(2) assure that all X-ray equipment under his control is operated only by individuals adequately instructed in 

safe operating procedures and competent in safe use of the equipment; and 
(3) provide safety rules to each individual operating X-ray equipment under his control, including any 

restrictions of the operating technique required for the safe operation of the particular X-ray apparatus, and require 
that the operator demonstrates familiarity with these rules. 

 
18 AAC 85.440. SHIELDING. All installations for the use of X-rays in the healing arts shall comply with the 

shielding requirements of this section: 
(1) Each medical or veterinary X-ray installation shall be provided with such primary barriers and/or 

secondary barriers as are necessary to assure compliance with secs. 130, 170, and 180. This requirement shall be 
deemed to be met if the thickness and design of such barriers are equivalent to those as computed and designed in 
accordance with the recommendations of the National Committee on Radiation Protection and Measurements 
(NCRP) in NCRP Report No. 34, “Medical X-Ray and Gamma-Ray Protection for Energies up to 10 MeV-
Structural Shielding Design and Evaluation,” published December 1, 1969. This report is available from NCRP 
publications, 7910 Woodmont Avenue, Suite 800, Bethesda, Maryland, 20814 at a cost of $1.50. 

(2) Each dental X-ray installation shall be provided with such primary barriers and/or secondary barriers as 
are necessary to assure compliance with secs. 130, 170, and 180. This requirement shall be deemed to be met if the 
thickness and design of such barriers are equivalent to those as computed and designed in accordance with the 
recommendations of the National Committee on Radiation Protection and Measurements (NCRP) in NCRP Report 
No. 35, “Dental X-Ray Protection” published March 9, 1970. This report is available from NCRP publications, 7910 
Woodmont Avenue, Suite 800, Bethesda, Maryland, 20814 at a cost of $1.50. 

(3) Lead barriers shall be mounted in such a manner that they will not sag or cold-flow because of their own 
weight and shall be protected against mechanical damage. 

(4) All joints, including those between different kinds of protective materials, and joints at the floor and 
ceiling, shall be so designed that the overall protection provided by the barrier is not impaired. 

(5) Windows, window frames, doors, and door frames shall have the same lead equivalent as that required of 
the adjacent wall. 

(6) Holes in protective barriers shall be covered so that the overall protection is not impaired. 
 

18 AAC 85.450. FLUOROSCOPIC INSTALLATIONS. All healing arts fluoroscopic installations shall 
comply with the following: 

(1) A diagnostic type protective X-ray tube housing shall be used. 
(2) The source-to-panel or source-to-table top distance of equipment installed before March 16, 1972 shall not 

be less than 12 inches, and shall not be less than 15 inches in equipment in stalled or re-installed thereafter. 
(3) The total filtration permanently in the useful beam, including the aluminum equivalent of table top or 

panel top, shall not be less than 2.5 millimeters aluminum equivalent. [Note: This requirement may be assumed to 
have been met if the half-value layer is equivalent to not less than 2.5 millimeters aluminum at normal operating 
voltages]. 

473



(4) The equipment shall be so constructed that the entire cross-section of the useful beam is attenuated by a 
primary barrier designed to automatically terminate exposure when the barrier is removed from the useful beam (this 
barrier is usually the viewing device, either a conventional fluoroscopic screen or an image intensification 
mechanism), and: 

(A) for equipment installed after March 16, 1972 the required lead equivalent of the barrier shall not be 
less than 1.5 millimeters for up to 100 kVp, not less than 1.8 millimeters for greater than 100 and less than 125 kVp, 
and not less than 2.0 millimeters for 125 kVp or greater. [Note: For conventional fluoroscopes these requirements 
may be assumed to have been met if the exposure rate measured at the viewing surface of the fluorescent screen 
does not exceed 20 milliroentgens per hour with the screen in the primary beam of the fluoroscope without a patient, 
under normal operating conditions]; 

(B) a collimator shall be provided to restrict the cross-sectional dimensions of the useful beam to less than 
the corresponding dimensions of the barrier. The tube and collimating system shall be linked with the fluorescent 
screen assembly so that the useful beam at the fluorescent screen is confined within the barrier irrespective of the 
panel-screen distance. The margin requirement does not apply to installations where image intensifiers are used, but 
a shutter or other protective shielding device shall be provided in these installations so that the useful beam is 
restricted to the diameter of the input phosphor; 

(C) the tube mounting and the barrier (the viewing device) shall be so linked together that, under 
conditions of normal use, the barrier always intercepts the entire useful beam; and 

(D) collimators and adjustable diaphragms or shutters used to restrict the size of the useful beam shall 
provide the same degree of protection as is required of the tube housing. 

(5) The exposure switch shall be a dead-man type. 
(6) A manual-reset, cumulative timing device activated by the exposure switch shall be used which will either 

indicate elapsed exposure time by an audible signal or turn off the machine when the total exposure exceeds a 
predetermined limit not exceeding five minutes in one or a series of exposures. 

(7) A shielding device of at least 0.25 millimeters lead equivalent material shall be provided for covering the 
Bucky-slot during fluoroscopy. 

(8) Protective drapes or hinges or sliding panels of at least 0.25 millimeters lead equivalent material shall be 
provided between the patient and fluoroscopist to intercept scattered radiation which would otherwise reach the 
fluoroscopist and others near the machine. [Note: Such devices shall not substitute for wearing of a protective 
apron]. 

(9) For routine fluoroscopy, the exposure rate measured where the beam enters the patient should be as low as 
practicable, but in any case shall not exceed 10 roentgens per minute. 

(10) Mobile fluoroscopic equipment shall meet the requirements of this part where applicable, and the 
following additional requirements: 

(A) in the absence of a table top, a cone or spacer frame shall limit the target-to-skin distance to not less 
than 30 centimeters (12 inches); 

(B) image intensification shall always be provided as conventional fluoroscopic screens shall not be used; 
(C) it shall be impossible to operate a machine except when the collimating cone or diaphragm is in place 

and the entire useful beam intercepted by the image intensifier; and 
(D) the exposure rate measured at the minimum source-to-skin distance should be as low as practical but in 

any case shall not exceed 10 roentgens per minute. 
(11) Protective aprons of at least 0.25 millimeters lead equivalent material shall be worn in the fluoroscopy 

room by each person (other than the patient) whose body is likely to be exposed to five milliroentgens per hours or 
more. 

(12) Dark adaptation shall be observed by the operator for at least 15 minutes prior to a fluoroscopic 
examination if image intensification is not provided. 

 
18 AAC 85.460. MEDICAL RADIOGRAPHIC INSTALLATIONS. All medical radiographic installations 

shall comply with the requirements of this section: 
(1) A diagnostic type protective X-ray tube housing shall be used. 
(2) Diaphragms, cones, or adjustable collimators capable of restricting the useful beam to the area of clinical 

interest shall be provided to define the beam and shall provide the same degree of attenuation as is required of the 
protective tube housing, and when used with photofluorographic equipment these devices shall restrict the useful 
beam to the area of the photofluorographic screen. Such devices shall be calibrated in terms of the size of the 
projected useful beam at specified source-film distances. 

(3) Radiographic equipment equipped with adjustable collimators shall provide light localizers that define the 
entire field and produce a visible indication of adequate collimation and alignment on the X-ray film. Field size 
indication on adjustable collimators shall be accurately aligned with the X-ray field to within one inch for a source-
to-film distance of 72 inches.  

(4) Except when contra-indicated for a particular medical purpose, the aluminum equivalent of the total 
filtration in the useful beam shall not be less than 0.5 millimeters for equipment operating below 50 kVp, shall not 
be less than 1.5 millimeters for equipment operating from 50 kVp to 70 kVp, and shall not be less than 2.5 
millimeters for equipment operating above 70 kVp. [Note: If the filter in the machine is not accessible for 
examination or the total filtration is unknown, the requirements of this section may be assumed to have been met in 
the half-value layer if the useful beam is not less than that shown in Table VI]. 

474



(5) A device shall be provided to terminate the exposure after a preset time or exposure. 
(6) The exposure switch shall be of a dead-man type and shall be arranged so that it cannot be operated 

outside a shielded area, except that exposure switches for “spot film” devices used in con junction with fluoroscopic 
tables and for mobile diagnostic radiographic equipment are exempt from this shielding requirement. 

(7) The exposure switch for mobile equipment shall be arranged so that the operator can stand at least six feet 
from the patient and well away from the useful beam. 

(8) The control panel shall include 
(A) a device which will give positive indication of the production of X-rays whenever the X-ray tube is 

energized; and 
(B) appropriate devices which will give positive indication of the physical factors (e.g. kVp, mA, exposure 

time) used for the exposure. 
(9) All wall, floor, and ceiling areas which could potentially intercept the useful beam shall have primary 

barriers. 
(10) Primary barriers in walls shall extend to a minimum height of 84 inches above the floor. 
(11) Secondary barriers shall be provided in all wall, floor, and ceiling areas not having primary barriers or 

where the primary barrier requirements are lower than the secondary barrier requirements. (Note: In radiographic 
installations where the average radiographic work load is comparatively low, the conventional structural material in 
ordinary walls, floors, and ceilings may suffice as primary and/or secondary barriers without the addition of special 
shielding materials, particularly if the useful beam cannot be directed at occupied areas.) 

(12) The operator’s station shall be behind a protective barrier which will intercept the entire useful beam and 
any radiation which has been scattered only once, and it shall be impossible for the operator to energize the tube 
while outside the protective barrier. (Note: “Spot film” devices used in conjunction with fluoroscopic tables are 
exempted from this requirement.) 

(13) A window of lead equivalent glass equal to that required by the adjacent barrier, or a mirror system, shall 
be provided and it shall be large enough and so placed that the operator can see the patient during the exposure 
without having to leave the protective area. 

(14) When a mobile unit is used routinely in one location, it shall be considered a fixed installation subject to 
the shielding requirements specified in this section and sec. 440 of this chapter. 

(15) When a patient must be held in position for radiography, mechanical supporting or restraining devices 
shall be used unless such devices interfere with the diagnosis. 

(16) If a patient must be held by an individual, that individual shall be protected with appropriate shielding 
devices such as protective gloves and apron and he shall be so positioned that no part of his body will be struck by 
the useful beam. 

(17) No individual occupationally exposed to radiation shall be permitted to hold patients during exposures 
except during emergencies, nor shall any individual be regularly used for this service. 

(18) Only individuals required for the radiographic procedure shall be in the radiographic room during 
exposure and, except for the patient, no unprotected parts of their bodies shall be in the useful beam. 

(19) The useful beam shall be restricted to the area of the film. 
(20) Patients shall be provided with a shield to protect the gonadal area of the body unless the use of such 

shield prohibits proper diagnosis. 
(21) Mobile diagnostic radiographic equipment shall meet the requirements of this section, except for 

paragraph (18), and the following additional requirements: 
(A) all individuals except the patient being examined shall be in shielded positions during exposure; and 
(B) personnel monitoring shall be required for all individuals operating mobile X-ray equipment. 

(22) Chest photofluorographic installations shall meet the requirements of this section, and the following 
additional requirements:  

(A) all individuals except the patient being examined shall be in shielded positions during exposure; and 
(B) personnel monitoring shall be required for all individuals operating photofluorographic equipment. 

 
18 AAC 85.490. THERAPEUTIC X-RAY INSTALLATIONS. All therapeutic X-ray installations shall 

comply with the following requirements: 
(1) A therapeutic type protective X-ray tube housing shall be used. Contact therapy machines shall meet the 

additional requirement that leakage radiation at two inches from the surface of the protective tube housing shall not 
exceed 0.1 roentgen per hour. 

(2) Permanent diaphragms or cones used for colliminating the useful beam shall afford the same degree of 
protection as is required of the tube housing. 

(3) Adjustable or removable beam-defining diaphragms or cones shall transmit not more than five percent of 
the useful beam as determined at the maximum tube potential and with maximum treatment filter. 

(4) Filters shall be securely held in place to prevent them from dropping out during treatment. 
(5) The filter system shall be so arranged as to minimize the possibility of error in filter selection and 

alignment. 
(6) The filter slot shall be so constructed that the radiation escaping through it does not produce an exposure 

exceeding one roentgen per hour at one meter, or if the radiation escaping from the slot is accessible to the patient, 
30 roentgens per hour at two inches from the external opening. 

(7) Removable filters shall be marked to indicate thickness and material. 

475



(8) A filter indication system shall be used on all therapy machines using changeable filters, and shall 
indicate, from the control panel, the presence or absence of any filter, and shall be designed to permit easy 
recognition of the filter in place. 

(9) The X-ray tube shall be so mounted that it cannot turn or slide with respect to the housing aperture. 
(10) Means shall be provided to immobilize the tube housing during stationary portal treatment. 
(11) A timer shall be provided to terminate the exposure after a preset time regardless of what other limiting 

devices are present. 
(12) Equipment utilizing shutters to control the useful beam shall have a shutter position indicator on the 

control. 
(13) There shall be on the control panel an easily discernible indicator which provides positive indication of the 

production of X-rays. 
(14) Mechanical and/or electrical stops shall be provided on X-ray therapy machines capable of operating at 

150 kVp or above to insure that the useful beam is oriented only toward primary barriers. 
(15) Interlocks shall be provided for X-ray therapy equipment capable of operating above 150 kVp so that 

when any door to the treatment room is opened X-ray production will be shut off automatically. After such shut off 
it shall be possible to restore X-ray production only from the control panel. 

(16) The following additional requirements apply to X-ray therapy equipment operated at potentials of 60 kVp 
and below: 

(A) automatic timers shall be provided which will permit accurate presetting and termination of exposure 
as short as one second; 

(B) in the therapeutic application of equipment constructed with beryllium or other low-filtration windows, 
the registrant shall insure that the unfiltered radiation reaches only the part intended and that the useful beam is 
blocked at all times except when actually being used; 

(C) machines having an output of more than 1,000 roentgens per minute at any accessible place shall not 
be left unattended without the power being shut off at the primary disconnecting means; and 

(D) if the tube is hand-held during irradiation, the operator shall wear protective gloves and protective 
apron of no less than 0.5 millimeters lead equivalent. 

 
 

ARTICLE 4. 
USE OF SEALED RADIOACTIVE SOURCES 

IN THE HEALING ARTS. 
 
Section 
 500. Interstitial, intercavitary and superficial applications 

 
18 AAC 85.500. INTERSTITIAL, INTERCAVITARY AND SUPERFICIAL APPLICATIONS.  (a) The 

provisions of this section apply to all registrants who use sealed sources in the healing arts and are in addition to, 
and not in substitution for, other applicable provisions of this chapter. 

(b) Except as otherwise specifically authorized by the department, each registrant or user shall provide 
accountability of sealed sources and shall keep a permanent record of the issue and return of all sealed sources. 

(c) When not in use, sealed sources and applicators containing sealed sources shall be kept in a protective 
enclosure of such material and wall thickness as may be necessary to assure compliance with the provisions of secs. 
130, 170, and 180 of this chapter. 

(d) Provision shall be made for testing sealed sources for leakage and contamination prior to initial use. 
(e) All sealed sources shall be tested for leakage at least every six months or at any interval as may be specified 

by the department. 
(f) If there is reason to suspect a sealed source might have been damaged, it shall be tested for leakage before 

further use. 
(g) Leak tests shall be capable of detecting 0.005 microcurie of removable contamination on the sealed source. 
(h) Any test conducted as required by this section which reveals the presence of 0.005 microcurie or more of 

removable contamination shall be considered evidence that the sealed source is leaking, and the source shall 
immediately be withdrawn from use and shall be decontaminated and repaired or disposed of in accordance with 
applicable provisions of secs. 210 and 270-310 of this chapter. 

 
 

476



ARTICLE 8. 
GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 
Section 
 740. Application of regulations 
 750. Effective date 
 760. Communications 
 770. Definitions 

 
18 AAC 85.740. APPLICATION OF REGULATIONS. Except as otherwise specifically provided, the 

provisions of this chapter apply to all persons in Alaska who receive, possess, use, transfer, own or acquire any 
radiation source except radioactive materials subject to regulation by the United States Atomic Energy Commission. 
The provisions of these regulations shall not be construed to limit the dose of radiation which is intentionally applied 
to a patient for medical purposes by, or under the direction of, a practitioner of the healing arts licensed by the State 
of Alaska. 

 
18 AAC 85.750. EFFECTIVE DATE. The provisions of secs. 10-780 of this chapter become effective on 

September 16, 1971, except where another effective date is specifically noted. 
 
18 AAC 85.760. COMMUNICATIONS. All communications concerning this chapter, and applications filed 

thereunder, should be addressed to the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation, Pouch O, Juneau, Alaska 
99801. 

 
18 AAC 85.770. DEFINITIONS. Definitions in this chapter: 

(1) “AAC” means Alaska Administrative Code; 
(2) “AS” means Alaska Statutes. 
(3) “agreement state” means any state with which the United States Atomic Energy Commission has entered 

into an agreement under sec. 274 b. of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended (73. Stat. 689); 
(4) “airborne radioactive material” means any radioactive material dispersed in the air in the form of dusts, 

fumes, mists, vapors, or gases; 
(5) “aluminum equivalent” means the thickness of aluminum affording the same attenuation, under specified 

conditions, as the material in question; 
(6) “beam blocking device” means a movable portion of any enclosure around a radiation source which may 

be opened or closed to permit or prevent the emergence of an exit beam; 
(7) “by-product material” means any radioactive material 
(except special nuclear material) yielded in or made radioactive by exposure to the radiation incident to the 

process of producing or utilizing special nuclear material; 
(8) “cabinet radiography” means industrial radiography, using ionizing radiation machines, which is 

conducted in an enclosed, interlocked cabinet, such that the radiation machine will not operate unless all openings 
are securely closed, and which cabinet is so shielded that every location on the exterior meets conditions for an 
uncontrolled area as specified in sec. 170 of this chapter; 

(9) “calendar quarter” means any period determined according to either of the following subdivision: 
(A) the first period of any year may begin on any date in January; provided that the second, third and 

fourth periods accordingly begin on the same date in April, July and October, respectively, and that the fourth period 
extend into January of the succeeding year if necessary to complete a three-month quarter.  During the first year of 
use of this method of determination by a registrant, the first period for that year shall also include any additional 
days in January preceding the starting date of the first period; 

(B) the first period in a calendar year of 13 complete, consecutive calendar weeks; the second period in the 
calendar year of 13 complete, consecutive calendar weeks; the third period in a calendar year of 13 complete, 
consecutive calendar weeks; the fourth period in a calendar year of 13 compete, consecutive calendar weeks. 
Alternatively, the four periods may consist of the first 14 complete, consecutive calendar weeks; the next 12 
complete, consecutive calendar weeks; the next 14 complete, consecutive calendar weeks; and the last 12 complete, 
consecutive calendar weeks. If at the end of a calendar year there are any days not falling within a complete calendar 
week of that year, such days shall be included within the last complete calendar week of the previous year. No 
registrant shall change the method observed by him of determining calendar quarters except at the beginning of a 
calendar year; 

(10) “cavity” means that portion of a microwave oven in which food may be heated, cooked, or dried; 
(11) “cold cathode gas discharge tube” means an electronic device in which electron flow is produced and 

sustained by ionization of contained gas atoms and ion bombardment of the cathode;  
(12) “collimator” means a device constructed of attenuating material used to confine a useful beam within a 

designated solid angle; 
(13) “commissioner” means the Commissioner of the Department of Environmental Conservation; 
(14) “cones” mean a type of collimator; 
(15) “continuous wave laser (c.w. laser)” means  a laser which emanates a continuous beam as opposed to a 

pulsed laser; 

477



(16) “controlled area” means any area access to which is controlled by a registrant for purposes of protection of 
individuals from exposure to radiation and radioactivity; provided, areas used for residential quarters are not 
included, although a separate room or rooms in a residential building may be set apart as a controlled area; 

(17) “curie (Ci)” means that quantity of radioactive material which decays at the rate of 3.7 x 10 10 
disintegrations per second; 

(18) “dead-man switch” means a switch so constructed that a circuit-closing contact can only be maintained by 
continuous pressure by the operator; 

(19) “department” means the Department of Environmental Conservation; 
(20) “diagnostic-type tube housing” means an X-ray tube housing so constructed that the leakage X-radiation 

at a distance of one meter from the target cannot exceed 100 milliroentgens in one hour when the tube is operated at 
any of its specified ratings; 

(21) “diaphragms” means a type of collimator; 
(22) “dose” means the quantity of radiation absorbed, per unit of mass, by the whole body  or by any portion of 

the body. When these regulations specify a dose during a period of time, the dose means the total quantity of 
radiation absorbed, per unit of mass during such period or time. Several different units of dose are in current use. 
Definitions of units used in these regulations are provided in paragraphs (41) and (51) of this section; 

(23) “enclosure” means a cabinet, box, or other container, provided by the manufacturer or user of a radiation 
machine, from which the source of the radiation cannot be removed without destroying the function of the source; 

(24) “energy density” means the intensity of electromagnetic radiation energy per unit area; usually expressed 
in joules per square centimeter (j/cm2); 

(25) “field radiography” means all industrial radiography using ionizing radiation machines other than cabinet 
radiography and shielded room radiography; 

(26) “filter” means any material placed in a useful beam to preferentially absorb less penetrating radiations; 
(27) “gas laser” means a type of laser in which the laser action takes place in a gas medium, usually a c.w. 

laser; 
(28) “half-value layer (hvl)” means the thickness of an absorbing material to reduce a beam of radiation to one-

half of its incident exposure rate; 
(29) “high ionizing radiation area” means any area, accessible to individuals, in which there exists ionizing 

radiation at such levels that a major portion of the body could receive in any one hours a dose in excess of 100 
millirems; 

(30) “individual” means any human being; 
(31) “industrial radiography” means the examination of the microscopic structure of materials by 

nondestructive methods utilizing ionizing radiation sources; 
(32) “inherent filtration” means any filtration in a useful beam due to a beam window or any other permanent 

part of a radiation source enclosure; 
(33) “interlock” means a device for precluding exposure to a radiation hazard either by preventing entity to an 

area or by automatically removing the hazard; 
(34) “ionizing radiation” means any electromagnetic or particulate radiation capable of producing ions, directly 

or indirectly, in its passage through matter. Ionizing radiation includes, but is not limited to, gamma rays, X-rays, 
alpha and beta particles, and high speed electrons, neutrons, and protons; 

(35) “ionizing radiation” means any area, accessible to individuals, in which there exists ionizing radiation at 
such levels that a major portion of a body could receive in any one hour a dose in excess of five millirems or in any 
five consecutive days a dose in excess of 100 millirems; 

(36) “kilovolts peak (kVp)” means the crest value of kilovolts of the potentials of a pulsating potential 
generator. When only one-half of the wave is used, the value refers to the useful half of the wave; 

(37) “laser” means light amplification by stimulated emission of radiation and is a device which emits a 
monochromatic, coherent beam of light, i.e., light possessing single wave length and all waves in phase; 

(38) “laser control area” means any area which contains one or more lasers in which the activity of employees 
and transient individuals is subject to control and supervision; 

(39) “lead equivalent” means the thickness of lead affording the same attenuation, under specified conditions, 
as the material in question; 

(40) “leakage radiation” means all radiation emitted from an enclosure except the useful beam; 
(41) “microwave oven” means a device designed to heat, cook to dry food through the application of 

electromagnetic radiation with frequencies in the microwave region. The Federal Communications Commission has 
designed the frequencies of 915 MHz and 2450 MHz for microwave oven use; 

(42) “microwave radiation” means electromagnetic waves in the frequency range of about 300 - 300,000 MHz; 
(43) “non-ionizing” means any electromagnetic or particulate radiation not capable of producing ions, directly 

or indirectly in its passage through matter. Non-ionizing radiation includes, but is not limited to, microwaves, 
infrared light, ultra-violet light, and coherent, monochromic light; 

(44) “person” means any municipal corporation, political subdivision, public or private corporation, individual, 
partnership, or other entity; 

(45) “personnel monitoring equipment” means devices designed to be worn or carried by an individual for the 
purpose of measuring doses (e.g., film badges, pocket chambers, pocket dosimeters, film rights, etc.); 

(46) “power density” means the intensity of electromagnetic radiation power per unit area; usually expressed in 
watts per square centimeter (W/cm2); 

478



(47) “primary protection barrier” means a barrier sufficient to attenuate a useful beam to a required degree; 
(48) “protective apron” means an apron made of attenuating materials used to reduce radiation exposure; 
(49) “protective barrier” means a barrier of attenuating materials used to reduce radiation exposure; 
(50) “protective glove” means a glove made of attenuating materials used to reduce radiating exposure; 
(51) “pulsed laser” means a laser that delivers energy in short pulses, not in a continuous beam as does a 

continuous wave laser; 
(52) “q-switched laser” means a laser capable of extremely high peak powers for very short durations (pulse 

length of several nanoseconds); 
(53) “rad” means a measure of the dose of any ionizing radiation to a material in terms of the energy absorbed 

per unit mass of material. One rad is the dose corresponding to the absorption of 100 ergs per gram of material; 
(54) “radiation” means all ionizing and non-ionizing radiation and sonic, infrasonic, and ultrasonic waves; 
(55) “radiation machine” means any device capable of producing radiation except devices which produce 

ionizing radiation only from radioactive material; 
(56) “radiation source” means a radiation machine or radioactive material; 
(57) “radioactive material” means any material, solid, liquid, or gas, which emits ionizing radiation 

spontaneously; 
(58) “radiographer” means an individual who performs, or who, in attendance at a site where ionizing radiation 

sources are being used, personally supervises industrial radiographic operations; 
(59) “radiographer's assistant” means any individual who, under the personal supervision of a radiographer, 

used ionizing radiation sources, related handling tools, or survey instruments in industrial radiography; 
(60) “radiographic exposure device” means any instrument containing a sealed source of ionizing radiation, in 

which the source of shielding thereof may be moved, or otherwise changed, from shielded to unshielded position for 
purposes of making a radiographic exposure; 

(61) “radionuclide” means a radioactive element; 
(62) “registrant” means a person required by this chapter to registered with the department; 
(63) “rem” means a measure of dose of any ionizing radiation to body tissue in terms of the estimated 

biological effect relative to a dose of one roentgen of X-ray. The relation of the rem to other dose units depends 
upon the biological effect under consideration and upon the condition of irradiation. Any of the following is 
considered to be equivalent to a does of one rem: 

(A) an exposure to one roentgen of X- or gamma radiation; 
(B) a does of one rad due to X-, gamma, or beta radiation; 
(C) a dose of 0.1 rad due to neutrons or high energy protons; 
(D) a dose of .05 rad due to particles heavier than protons and with sufficient energy to reach the lens of 

the eye; 
(64) “roentgen (R)” means an amount of X- or gamma radiation such that the associated corpuscular emission 

per 0.001293 grams of air produces in air ions carrying one electrostatic unit of quantity of electricity of either sign; 
(65) “scattered radiation” means radiation that, during passage through matter, has been deviated in direction; 
(66) “sealed source” means radioactive material that is permanently bonded or fixed in a capsule or matrix 

designed to prevent release and dispersal of the radioactive material under the most severe conditions which are 
likely to be encountered in normal use and handling; 

(67) “secondary protective barrier” means a barrier sufficient to attenuate stray radiation to a required degree; 
(68) “shielded room radiography” means industrial radiography, using ionizing radiation machines, which is 

conducted in an enclosed room, the interior of which is not occupied during radiographic operations, which is so 
shielded that every location on the exterior meets conditions for an uncontrolled area as specified in sec. 170 of this 
chapter, and the only access to which is through openings which are interlocked so that the ionizing radiation 
machine will not operate unless all openings are securely closed; 

(69) “shutter” means a device, generally of lead, fixed to an X-ray tube housing to intercept the useful beam; 
(70) “source material” means uranium or thorium, or any combination thereof, in any physical or chemical 

form or ores which contain 0.05 percent or more of uranium, thorium, or any combination thereof. Source material 
does not include special nuclear material; 

(71) “special nuclear material” means uranium -235, -233 and plutonium; 
(72) “specular reflection” means the reflection from a polished or mirrorlike surface; 
(73) “storage container” means a device in which sealed sources are transported or stored; 
(74) “stray radiation” means radiation not serving any useful purpose and includes leakage and scattered 

radiation; 
(75) “survey” means an evaluation of radiation protection practices. When appropriate, such evaluation 

includes a physical survey of the location of material and equipment, and measurements of levels of radiation or 
concentration of radioactive materials present; 

479



(76) “therapeutic-type tube housing” means an X-radiation at a distance of one meter from the target cannot 
exceed one roentgen in one hours; and at a distance of five centimeters from any point on the surface of the housing 
accessible to the patient cannot exceed 30 roentgens in one hour when the tube is operated at any of its specified 
ratings; 

(77) “uncontrolled area” means any area access to which is not controlled by the registrant for purposes of 
protection of individuals from exposure of radiation and radioactive materials, and any area used for residential 
quarters; 

(78) “useful beam” means that part of an ionizing radiation which passes through a window, aperture, cone or 
other collimating device of a tube housing. 

 
 

480



APPENDIX B 
 

Notice on Superiority Advertising 
 
At the request of the Federal Trade Commission and with the concurrence of the Alaska Attorney General, 
the Board of Chiropractic Examiners has repealed two provisions of the Alaska Administrative Code, effective 
August 31, 1986. 
 
One of the repealed paragraphs, 12 AAC 16.910(b)(2), prohibited the advertising of techniques or modalities to infer 
or imply superiority of treatment or diagnosis by their use.  The other repealed paragraph, 12 AAC 16.910(b)(4), 
prohibited print advertising claiming superiority over or greater skill than other practitioners.  These provisions were 
both repealed so that the advertising practices previously prohibited would no longer be considered 
“misrepresentation” and therefore would be allowed. 
 
 
 

481




